
 

1 
 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MONDAY, MARCH 05, 2018 
7:30 P.M. 

 
Meeting to be held at City Hall 

301 West Main Street 
 

AGENDA 
 
OPENING PRAYER: 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
ROLL CALL: 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 20, 2018: 
 

ADDRESSING THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

1. Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose. 
2. Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak. 
3. When recognized, give your name and address and direct your comments and/or questions to any 

City official in attendance. 
4. Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one 

opportunity of up to four (4) minutes duration during the first occasion for citizen comments and 
questions.  Each person shall also be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration 
during the last occasion provided for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to 
three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing.  Comments made during public hearings shall 
be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held. 

5. In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or 
her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose 
such questions. 

 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Proclamation of Appreciation – Sallysue Gale.  A Mayoral Proclamation recognizing long-time Board 

of Review member Sallysue Gale for her many years of service to the City of Owosso. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
1. Special Assessment District No. 2018-02. Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 

regarding Resolution No. 3 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2018-02 for Hanover Street 
from Harding Avenue to the north end for street resurfacing. 
 

2. Special Assessment District No. 2018-03. Conduct a public hearing to receive citizen comment 
regarding Resolution No. 3 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2018-03 for Harding 
Avenue from Chipman Street to Hanover Street for street resurfacing. 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 



 

2 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Special Assessment District No. 2018-09. Authorize Resolution No. 2 setting a public hearing for 

Monday, March 19, 2018 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2018-09 for the Industrial 
Park Connector Improvement Project for street resurfacing/ reconstruction. 

 
2. Contract Amendment – Addendum No. 1 - 2017 Tall Grass Mowing Program.  Authorize Addendum 

No. 1 to the 2017 Tall Grass Mowing Program Contract with J&M Tree Service a.k.a. Forrest M. 
Spitzer for mowing of private properties in violation of the weed ordinance and for certain city-owned 
properties extending the contract through the 2018 mowing season in the amount of $24,300.00, 
approving a contingency of $2,500.00 to be utilized only upon written approval, and further 
authorizing payment up to the addendum amount plus the contingency. 
 

3. Professional Services Agreement Addendum No. 1 - Professional Engineering Services Contract 
with Eng., Inc.  Approve Addendum No. 1 to the Professional Engineering Services Contract with 
Eng., Inc. for engineering design and construction administration services for the South Washington 
Street Reconstruction Project in the amount of $104,392.50 and further authorize payment to the 
engineer upon satisfactory completion of the work or portion thereof. 

 
4. Professional Services Agreement – Downtown Façade Improvements.  Authorize professional 

services agreement with H2A Architects, Inc. for design related services for the facade improvement 
projects at 114 West Main Street, 114 North Washington Street, 115 North Washington Street, 116 
North Washington Street, and 216 West Main Street (front & rear facades) as a part of the downtown 
façade grant, in an amount not to exceed $60,600.00 and authorize commitment of $30,300.00 as the 
City’s match, the remaining balance to be paid by the individual property owners. 

  

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Zoning Board of Appeals.  Minutes of February 20, 2018. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 19, 2018 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2018 
Historical Commission – term expires December 31, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The City of Owosso will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with 
disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon seventy-two (72) hours notice to the City of Owosso.  Individuals 



 

3 
 

with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Owosso by writing, calling, or 
emailing the following:  Owosso City Clerk’s Office, 301 West Main Street, Owosso, MI  48867; Phone: 
(989) 725-0500; Email:  city.clerk@ci.owosso.mi.us. The City of Owosso Website address is 
www.ci.owosso.mi.us.  
   



Draft 1 02-20-2018 

CITY OF OWOSSO  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 20, 2018        
7:30 P.M. 

 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER:  MAYOR CHRISTOPHER T. EVELETH 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: LEADERSHIP SHIAWASSEE ATTENDEES 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor Pro-Tem Susan J. Osika, 

Councilmembers Loreen F. Bailey, Burton D. Fox, Elaine M. Greenway, 
Daniel A. Law, and Robert J. Teich, Jr. 

 
ABSENT: None. 
 

APPROVE AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve the agenda with the following additions: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – ADDITION 

 
7. Boards and Commissions Appointments.  Approve the following Mayoral boards and 

commissions appointments: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Ron Dankert 
Board of Review 
filling unexpired term of S. Gale 

12-31-2019 

Debbie Gilbert 
Historical Commission 
filling unexpired term of N. Terek 

12-31-2019 

Dave Acton 
Historical Commission 
filling unexpired term of T. Peltier 

12-31-2018 

Tara Jenkins 
Planning Commission 
filling unexpired term of M. Collison 

06-30-2019 
 

COMMUNICATIONS ‐ ADDITION 
 

11. Michelle Collison, Planning Commission.  Letter of Resignation. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF FEBRUARY 5, 2018 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 5, 2018 as 
presented. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 



Draft 2 02-20-2018 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-01 Oliver Street from Oak to Gould 
 
City Manager Donald D. Crawford indicated this is the second public hearing for Phase 2 of the Oliver 
Street reconstruction project the purpose of which is to debate whether the cost for the project has been 
spread equally among those affected by the project. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding authorization of Resolution No. 5 
for Special Assessment District No. 2018-01 for Oliver Street from Oak Street to Gould Street for 
reconstruction. 
 
The following person commented regarding the proposed amendment: 
 
Corin Sandlin, 514 E. Oliver Street, via email, objected to the large assessment proposed for her property 
saying property taxes should pay for the upkeep of roads. 
 
There were no further citizen comments. 
 
Councilmember Fox inquired how the school property had been determined to be commercial.  Utilities 
Director Glenn M. Chinavare that bus traffic and the volume of vehicles qualified the school as a 
commercial property. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fox that the following resolution be adopted:  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 19-2018 
 

DISTRICT NO. 2018-01 
OLIVER STREET FROM OAK STREET TO GOULD STREET 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 5 
      
WHEREAS, the City Council has met, after due and legal notice, and reviewed the special assessment roll 
prepared for the purpose of defraying the special assessment district’s share of the following described public 
improvement:   
 

Oliver Street from Oak Street to Gould Street  
Street Reconstruction  

      
and 
 
WHEREAS, all interested parties were heard and after carefully reviewing said special assessment roll 
the Council deems said special assessment roll to be fair, just and equitable and that each of the 
assessments contained thereon results in the special assessment being in accordance with the benefits 
to be derived by the parcel of land assessed.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. Said special assessment roll as prepared by the City Assessor in the amount of $111,326.36 is 

hereby confirmed and shall be known as Special Assessment Roll No. 2018-01.     
      
 2.  Said special assessment roll shall be divided into ten installments, the first of which shall be due and 

payable on September 1, 2018, and the subsequent installments shall be due on September 1st of 
each and every year thereafter.  Payment of the amount of the special assessment may be made in 
full without interest or penalty by November 1, 2018.  

          



Draft 3 02-20-2018 

 3.  The installments of the special assessment rolls shall bear interest at the rate of 6% per annum; 
provided, however, if the bonds are issued in anticipation of said special assessments, then such 
unpaid special assessment shall bear interest at a rate of interest equal to 1% above the average rate 
of interest borne by said bonds.  Such interest shall commence on September 1, 2018 and shall be 
paid annually on each installment due date.  

          
 4.  Said special assessment roll shall be placed on file in the office of the City Clerk who shall attach her 

warrant to a certified copy thereof within ten (10) days commanding the Assessor to spread the 
various sums shown thereon as directed by the City Council.  

    
Motion supported by Councilmember Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmember Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Teich, Greenway, Bailey, 

Law, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-05 Olmstead Street from West to Chipman 
 
City Manager Crawford noted that this proposed project involved simply resurfacing and no grant monies 
were involved. 
 
A public hearing was conducted to receive citizen comment regarding Resolution No. 3 for proposed 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-05 for Olmstead Street from West Street to Chipman Street for 
street resurfacing. 
 
The following people commented regarding the proposed project: 
 
Thomas and Gail Schultz, 1440 Olmstead Street, via email, voiced their support for the project. 
 
Ellen Myers, 1311 Olmstead Street, via telephone, expressed her objection to the special assessment 
procedure and the estimated amount of her assessment.  She further indicated she felt the street does 
not require any improvement. 
 
Kim Ariss, 1427 Olmstead Street, said the street seems to be in good shape and she didn’t think it 
needed to be resurfaced. 
 
Kelly Jackson, 1409 Olmstead Street, also said she felt the street did not need to be resurfaced.  She 
inquired how streets are selected for maintenance, whether residents could stop the project, and if banks 
pay the assessment for homes that are abandoned. 
 
Mayor Eveleth noted that the assessments for bank-owned properties are paid for by the banks, not other 
residents. 
 
Jennifer Rodriguez, owner of 1408 Olmstead Street, asked for details on the deferments that are 
available and the lien that will be placed on her home.  She also asked if the street was being resurfaced 
because new sewer lines were going to be put in. 
 
City Manager Crawford explained that special assessment liens are unique and do not function like 
mortgage liens.  He indicated that residents requesting a deferment must meet income requirements and 
allow a lien to be placed on the home until it is sold at some point in the future.   
 



Draft 4 02-20-2018 

He went on to explain that all the streets in the City were analyzed and rated and mid-grade streets were 
targeted for maintenance.  In this case Olmstead Street has a good base but the surface is starting to 
deteriorate.  Resurfacing such streets early in their deterioration prevents the need to reconstruct the 
entire street a few years down the road.   
 
Mayor Eveleth defended the choice likening resurfacing the street to repairing one’s roof, which is much 
less expensive than completely replacing the roof.  He added that the Council was trying to do some of 
the less expensive projects so the road bond money could be stretched as far as possible. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Teich that the following resolution be adopted:  
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 20-2018 
 

OLMSTEAD STREET 
FROM WEST STREET TO CHIPMAN STREET 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 3 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and heard all persons to be affected by 
the proposed public improvement more particularly hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          

1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 
improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited:  
 

OLMSTEAD STREET FROM WEST STREET TO CHIPMAN STREET 
STREET RESURFACING 
          

 2.  The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared 
and presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public 
improvement to be $357,189.80 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the 
estimated life of said public improvement is twenty (20) years.  

          
 3.  The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $62,525.58 be paid by 

special assessment upon the property specially benefited, as more particularly hereinafter 
described.  

          
 4.  The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 

district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:  
 

Olmstead Street from West Street to Chipman Street 
Street Resurfacing 

          
 5.  The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land 

within the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each 
such lot or parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in 
the special assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total 
benefits to all lands in such district.  

      
When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment roll with 
the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 



Draft 5 02-20-2018 

Motion supported by Councilmember Fox. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Greenway, Bailey, Teich, Law, Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Tom Manke, Owosso Township resident, wondered why streets in very poor shape on the south side of 
town were not being maintained but streets on the north side with little visible deterioration were being 
scheduled for resurfacing.  It was explained that projects were chosen based on research data and every 
effort was made to ensure that all parts of town were treated equally. 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, commented on the trouble he has with the sidewalk in front of his 
house. 
 
Kim Ariss, 1427 Olmstead Street, inquired whether any of the work planned for Olmstead Street would 
help with the drainage issues in the area.  Utilities Director Chinavare explained that they were looking 
into the drainage issues in the area currently. 
 
Jennifer Rodriguez, owner of 1408 Olmstead Street, inquired whether she could get a transcript of the 
meeting.  It was noted that an audio recording and minutes of the meeting will be available on the 
website. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Osika welcomed members of the civics classes at Owosso High School to the meeting. 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
City Manager Crawford indicated he had nothing to report at this time. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the Consent Agenda as follows: 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-02. Authorize Resolution No. 2 setting a public hearing for 
Monday, March 5, 2018 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2018-02 for Hanover Street from 
Harding Avenue to the North end of street for street resurfacing as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 21-2018 
 

HANOVER STREET 
FROM HARDING AVENUE TO THE NORTH END 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and heard all persons to be affected by 
the proposed public improvement more particularly hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      



Draft 6 02-20-2018 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 

improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited: 

 
HANOVER STREET FROM HARDING AVENUE TO THE NORTH END 
STREET RESURFACING 

 
2. The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared and 

presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public improvement to be 
$273,059.50 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the estimated life of said public 
improvement is twenty (20) years.  

 
3. The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $75,651.44 be paid by 

special assessment upon the property specially benefited, as more particularly hereinafter described, 
and that the sum of $194,408.06 of said total estimated cost shall be the obligation of the City at large 
because of benefit to the City at large.  

 
4. The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 

district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:  
 
Hanover Street from Harding Avenue to the north end 
Street Resurfacing 

 
5. The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land within 

the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each such lot or 
parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in the special 
assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total benefits to all lands in 
such district.  

 
6. When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment roll 

with the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-03. Authorize Resolution No. 2 setting a public hearing for 
Monday, March 5, 2018 for proposed Special Assessment District No. 2018-03 for Harding Avenue from 
Chipman Street to Hanover Street for street resurfacing as detailed below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-2018 
 

HARDING AVENUE 
FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO HANOVER STREET 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 2 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and heard all persons to be affected by 
the proposed public improvement more particularly hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 

improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited: 

 



Draft 7 02-20-2018 

HARDING AVENUE FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO HANOVER STREET 
STREET RESURFACING 

 
2. The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared and 

presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public improvement to be 
$236,251.30 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the estimated life of said public 
improvement is twenty (20) years.  

 
3. The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $52,804.45 be paid by 

special assessment upon the property specially benefited, as more particularly hereinafter described, 
and that the sum of $183,446.85 of said total estimated cost shall be the obligation of the City at large 
because of benefit to the City at large.  

 
4. The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 

district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:  
 
Harding Avenue from Chipman Street to Hanover Street 
Street Resurfacing 

 
5. The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land within 

the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each such lot or 
parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in the special 
assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total benefits to all lands in 
such district.  

 
6. When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment roll 

with the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 
Contract Amendment No. 3 – 2018 Street Program Engineering Services Contract.  Approve 
Amendment No. 3 to the 2018 Street Program Engineering Services Contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering, Inc. adding $7,000 for AutoCAD and Civil 3D training and authorizing payment to the 
contractor upon satisfactory completion of the work or a portion thereof as shown below: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-2018 
  

AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT NO. 3  
TO THE 2018 STREET PROGRAM ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT WITH 

FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. FOR  
ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, approved a Contract with Fleis & 
Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. on July 3, 2017 for Engineering Survey and Design Services for the 2018 
Street Program in the amount of $251,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 6, 2017, City Council approved Amendments No’s. 1 and 2 to the Contract 
with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. for additional engineering services making the current 
Contract amount $288,500.00; and  
  
WHEREAS, the city requests additional services of the consultant to provide AutoCAD and Civil 3D 
drafting training to city staff, that is beyond the original contractual scope of services. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST:  The city of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to amend the contract with Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering Inc. for a cost 



Draft 8 02-20-2018 

to the city of Owosso of $5,200.00 for AutoCAD and Civil 3D training of city staff as 
outlined within its proposal, plus additional training services as required in the amount of 
$1,800.00 through December 31, 2018.  

  
THIRD:  The mayor and city clerk are requested and authorized to sign Contract Amendment No. 

3 to the Contract between the City of Owosso, Michigan and Fleis & Vandenbrink 
Engineering, Inc. 

  
FOURTH:  The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amended 

amount of $295,500.00 to Fleis & Vandenbrink Engineering, Inc. upon successful 
completion of stated work.  

  
FIFTH:   The above expenses shall be paid from the Major Street Construction Account   
 No. 202-451-818.000. 

 
Emergency Repair Authorization – Fire Engine 1. Approve emergency repair of brakes and springs on 
Owosso Fire Engine 1 and authorize payment of $13,275.00 to Front Line Services Inc. for work 
performed as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO 
FRONT LINE SERVICES INC. 

FOR EMERGENCY REPAIR OF  
OWOSSO FIRE DEPARTMENT ENGINE 1 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has a fire department vehicle, Engine 1, 
that required an emergency repair of the vehicle, and  
 
WHEREAS, the City directed Front Line Services Inc., to proceed and make the emergency repair, which 
subsequently totaled $13,275.00, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Safety Chief has reviewed the detailed billing from Front Line Services Inc. for the 
cost of the repair and recommends payment in the amount of $13,275.00 for the work that was 
satisfactorily completed. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it was necessary and in the public 
interest to contract with Front Line Services, Inc. for emergency repairs to Owosso Fire 
Department Engine 1. 

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Front Line Services 

Inc. in the amount of $13,275.00 for said repairs.   
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from the Fire Department vehicle repair fund. 

 
Purchase Authorization – DPW Mobile Radio System. Waive the competitive bid process and 
authorize the purchase of 35 Motorola mobile radio units, 3 portable radio units, one control station and 
installation services from Pro-Comm, Inc. in the amount of $23,652.00 per the terms of State of Michigan 
Contract No. 071B2200101, and approve payment to named vendor upon satisfactory receipt and 
installation of said equipment as detailed: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-2018 
 



Draft 9 02-20-2018 

AUTHORIZING PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO 
PRO-COMM, INC. OF MOUNT PLEASANT, MICHIGAN  

FOR PROCUREMENT OF MOBILE RADIO EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION SERVICES  
FOR USE IN PUBLIC WORKS FLEET MOTOR POOL VEHICLES 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has budgeted from the Public Works 
Replacement Fund for the procurement and installation of Motorola mobile radio units for DPW vehicles, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing Department of Public Works fleet motor pool vehicles do not have mobile radio 
communications, and the Director of Public Services & Utilities has determined the need to procure the 
Motorola mobile radio units from Pro-Comm Inc., utilizing the State of Michigan MiDeal Contract No. 
071B2200101in the amount of $23,652.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Public Services Director has reviewed the equipment on the State of Michigan 
Contract, and the proposal provided by Pro-Comm, Inc. for installation services, and recommends 
authorizing a purchase agreement between the city of Owosso and Pro-Comm, Inc. for the purchase of 
Motorola radio equipment, accessory hardware, and installation services. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that:  
 

FIRST: The city of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to contract with Pro-Comm, Inc. of Mount Pleasant, Michigan for the 
purchase of 35 Motorola mobile radio units, 3 portable Motorola radio units, one control 
station, accessory hardware, and installation services for use at the Department of Public 
Works.  

 
SECOND: The accounts payable department is authorized to submit payment to Pro-Comm, Inc. in 

an amount not to exceed $23,652.00.  
 
THIRD: The above expenses shall be paid from account no. 661-901-979.000.  

 
Warrant No. 555.  Authorize Warrant No. 555 as follows: 
 

Vendor Description Fund Amount 
Michigan Municipal League 
Workers’ Compensation Fund 

Workers’ compensation insurance  
4 of 4 FY 17/18 

Various $19,162.00 

William C. Brown, PC 
Professional services  
1/9/18-2/12/18 

General 10,261.68 

  
Boards and Commissions Appointments.  (This item was added to the agenda.)  Approve the following 
Mayoral boards and commissions appointments: 
 

Name Board/Commission Term Expires 

Ron Dankert 
Board of Review 
filling unexpired term of S. Gale 

12-31-2019 

Debbie Gilbert 
Historical Commission 
filling unexpired term of N. Terek 

12-31-2019 

Dave Acton 
Historical Commission 
filling unexpired term of T. Peltier 

12-31-2018 

Tara Jenkins 
Planning Commission 
filling unexpired term of M. Collison 

06-30-2019 

 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika. 



Draft 10 02-20-2018 

 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Law, Fox, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Bailey, Greenway, 

Teich, and Mayor Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 

ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 
Special Assessment Policy Repeal 
 
City Manager Crawford introduced the item saying that over the years different policies for special 
assessments had been discovered and State law requires that special assessments be determined solely 
by the benefit received by the affected parcels necessitating the repeal of those policies. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Fox  to approve the following resolution repealing all previous policies 
regulating the spread of special assessment rolls upon special assessment districts: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 26-2018 
 

REPEALING ALL PRIOR CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTIONS REGARDING  
THE SPREADING OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS  

UNLESS A PART OF A SPECIFIC SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
 
WHEREAS, each special assessment project and district is unique; and 
 
WHEREAS, it appears that from time-to-time the city council may have adopted resolutions of a general 
nature concerning the assignment of benefits; and 
 
WHEREAS, these resolutions should be repealed to allow each special assessment roll to be spread in a 
fair and equitable manner according to the individual benefits of the corresponding project.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: all prior resolutions establishing special assessment policy be repealed. 
 

SECOND: all future special assessments be spread in accordance with Michigan law. 
 
Motion supported by Councilmember Bailey. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Councilmembers Teich, Greenway, Law, Fox, Bailey, Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
 
Contract Approval – City Manager  
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey  to approve the contract with Nathan Henne for the City Manager 
position as detailed below: 
 



Draft 11 02-20-2018 

RESOLUTION NO. 27-2018 
 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT FOR 
THE EMPLOYMENT OF 

NATHANIEL R. HENNE AS CITY MANAGER 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Michigan has, through the adoption of a charter provision created the 
position of city manager; 
 
WHEREAS, the employment of a municipal manager is a matter pertaining to the local government and 
affairs of the city of Owosso; 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso has authority, pursuant to the Sections 7.2 and 7.3 of the Charter for the 
City of Owosso, to appoint a city manager and enter into an employment agreement for a city manager; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council hereby appoints Nathaniel R. Henne to serve as city manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the city of Owosso 
to enter into an employment agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OWOSSO, 
SHIAWASSEE COUNTY, MICHIGAN THAT: 
 

FIRST: Nathaniel R. Henne be appointed as city manager for the city of Owosso and have those 
powers and duties granted by the Charter for the City of Owosso. 

 
SECOND: the mayor be authorized to execute for and on behalf of the city of Owosso an agreement 

for the employment of a city manager.  A copy of said agreement, marked Exhibit A, is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 
THIRD: the city clerk be authorized and directed to attest to the signature of the mayor on said 

agreement, and retain in the city clerk’s office a fully executed original of said agreement 
for public inspection. 

 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika. 
 
Roll Call Vote. 
 
AYES: Mayor Pro-Tem Osika, Councilmembers Teich, Law, Fox, Bailey, Greenway, and Mayor 

Eveleth. 
 
NAYS: None. 
 
City Manager Crawford indicated that Mr. Henne plans to make April 2nd his first day with the City. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
 
1. Larry D. Cook, City Assessor.  March Board of Review – Assessment Changes. 
2. Glenn M. Chinavare, Utilities Director.  2017 Lead & Copper Monitoring Results. 
3. Karen K. Ruddy, Finance Director.  January 2018 Finance Report 
4. N. Bradley Hissong, Building Official.  January 2018 Building Department Report. 
5. N. Bradley Hissong Building Official.  January 2018 Code Violations Report. 
6. Kevin D. Lenkart, Public Safety Director.  January 2018 Fire Report. 
7. Historical Commission.  Minutes of January 8, 2018. 
8. Planning Commission.  Minutes of January 22, 2018. 



Draft 12 02-20-2018 

9. Parks & Recreation Commission.  Minutes of January 24, 2018. 
10. Downtown Development Authority/Main Street.  Minutes of February 7, 2018. 
11. Michelle Collison, Planning Commission.  Letter of Resignation.  (This item was added to the 

agenda.) 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS 
 
Eddie Urban, 601 Glenwood Avenue, commented on work he has been trying to have done on his home 
recently. 
 
Mayor Eveleth welcomed new City Attorney Scott Gould to the dais. 
 
Councilmember Fox distributed pictures of the flooding at Oakhill Cemetery showing the chapel under 
several feet of water highlighting his comments on the necessity of drainage work in the area. 
 
Councilmember Bailey inquired whether the drainage district for the cemetery area would involve more 
than one jurisdiction.  It was noted it would involve Caledonia Township, Owosso Township, and the City 
at the least. 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, March 05, 2018 
 

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS 
 
Building Board of Appeals - term expires June 30, 2019 
Building Board of Appeals – Alternate - term expires June 30, 2018 
Historical Commission – term expires December 31, 2020 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Councilmember Bailey for adjournment at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Motion supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Osika and concurred in by unanimous vote. 
 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
 
 
     __________________________________________  
     Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: February 25, 2018 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services 
 
SUBJECT: Hanover Street Resurfacing – Special Assessment Resolution No 3 
 
 
When deemed necessary, the city conducts a street improvement program. Public streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection of the city. Hanover Street, from 
Harding Avenue to north end of street, is proposed by the city for street resurfacing. Property owners are 
then specially assessed to cover the cost of the proposed improvement.  Past practice has been to 
assess property owners along the street 40% of the proposed benefit and the remaining 60% to the 
community at large.  Each property owner can pay an assessment in one lump sum or in installments 
over the multi-year period (the period being determined by the amount of the average assessment).  
 
The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  
 

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment district(s), directs the city manager to 
estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the 
proposed improvements. Resolution No. 1 for the proposed improvement was approved by City 
Council at its September 18, 2017 meeting.  
 
Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs 
notices to be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of 
the public hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment. Resolution No. 2 for the 
proposed improvement was approved by City Council at its February 20, 2018 meeting. 

 
Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the 
proper scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  if they 
agree that the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to 
go on with the next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project 
should go forward, but with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and 
proceed; if they feel the project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail 
to act on Resolution No. 3, effectively stopping the process.  Resolution No. 3 for the proposed 
improvement is scheduled for approval by City Council at its March 5, 2018 meeting. 
 
Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment 
amounts are adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A 
second public hearing is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  
Each property owner is sent a second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and 
the amount of the proposed assessment for their property.  

 
 

 
 
 
 



Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment 
roll and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the 
opportunity to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to 
the benefit they receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides 
adjustments need to be made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the 
assessments are fair and equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

 
Tonight the council will be holding a public hearing to receive citizen comments regarding the necessity of 
the proposed project.  At the conclusion of the hearing council will consider approval of Resolution No. 3 
authorizing the project to proceed.  Residents that would be affected by the project have been sent a 
notification for the public hearing, a description of the work being proposed, and an estimate of the 
special assessment for their property. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 3 for the following district: 
 

Special Assessment District No. 2018-02 –  
Hanover Street, a Public Street, from Harding Avenue to north end of street 



  Reso No. 3 

HANOVER STREET 
FROM HARDING AVENUE TO THE NORTH END 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 3 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and heard all persons to be affected by 
the proposed public improvement more particularly hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 

improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited: 

 
HANOVER STREET FROM HARDING AVENUE TO THE NORTH END 
STREET RESURFACING 

 
2. The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared and 

presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public improvement to be 
$273,059.50 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the estimated life of said public 
improvement is twenty (20) years.  

 
3. The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $75,651.44 be paid by 

special assessment upon the property specially benefited, as more particularly hereinafter described, 
and that the sum of $194,408.06 of said total estimated cost shall be the obligation of the City at large 
because of benefit to the City at large.  

 
4. The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 

district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:  
 
Hanover Street from Harding Avenue to the north end 
Street Resurfacing 

 
5. The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land within 

the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each such lot or 
parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in the special 
assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total benefits to all lands in 
such district.  

 
6. When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment roll 

with the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 



29-Jan-18
HANOVER STREET ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

WORK ITEM UNIT QUANTITIES UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60% 

ASSESSMENT
AT 40%
4" RULE

MOBILIZATION, MAX_____________ LSUM 0.40 41,500.00$         16,600.00$         16,600.00$     9,960.00$       6,640.00$         

DR STRUCTURE, REM EA 14.00 350.00$               4,900.00$           

SEWER, REM, LESS THAN 24 INCH LFT 144.00 10.00$                 1,440.00$           

CURB AND GUTTER, REM LFT 694.00 7.00$                   4,858.00$           4,858.00$       2,914.80$       1,943.20$         

PAVT, REM SYD 1070.00 8.00$                   8,560.00$           

SIDEWALK, REM SYD 7.00 8.00$                   56.00$                

EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECTION, FABRIC DROP EA 10.00 100.00$               1,000.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, TEMP LOWERING EA 9.00 250.00$               2,250.00$           2,250.00$       1,350.00$       900.00$            

COLD MILLING HMA SURFACE SYD 4830.00 3.00$                   14,490.00$         14,490.00$     8,694.00$       5,796.00$         

SAWCUTTING LFT 600.00 3.00$                   1,800.00$           1,800.00$       1,080.00$       720.00$            

AGGREGATE BASE, 6 INCH, MOD SYD 880.00 12.00$                 10,560.00$         

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR SYD 880.00 1.50$                   1,320.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 6 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 32.00 35.00$                 1,120.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 8 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 10.00 37.50$                 375.00$              

SEWER, SDR-26, 10 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 184.00 40.00$                 7,360.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 15 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 164.00 52.00$                 8,528.00$           

DR STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1 EA 9.00 475.00$               4,275.00$           4,275.00$       2,565.00$       1,710.00$         

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1060 EA 5.00 600.00$               3,000.00$           3,000.00$       1,800.00$       1,200.00$         

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1060 W/ TYPE N OVAL GRATE EA 2.00 600.00$               1,200.00$           1,200.00$       720.00$          480.00$            

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1120 W/ GASKET SEAL EA 9.00 650.00$               5,850.00$           5,850.00$       3,510.00$       2,340.00$         

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 7000 EA 8.00 700.00$               5,600.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, 24 INCH DIA, MOD EA 1.00 1,200.00$            1,200.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA. MOD EA 8.00 1,400.00$            11,200.00$         

DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA. MOD EA 5.00 1,800.00$            9,000.00$           

HAND PATCHING TON 50.00 125.00$               6,250.00$           4,166.67$       2,500.00$       1,666.67$         

HMA, 2C TON 363.00 65.00$                 23,595.00$         

HMA, 4E3 TON 580.00 75.00$                 43,500.00$         43,500.00$     26,100.00$     17,400.00$       

HMA, 5E3 TON 435.00 73.00$                 31,755.00$         31,755.00$     19,053.00$     12,702.00$       

CONCRETE PAVT, NONREINF, 9 INCH SYD 80.00 60.00$                 4,800.00$           

DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 6 INCH SYD 62.00 45.00$                 2,790.00$           



CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4, MOD LFT 694.00 20.00$                 13,880.00$         13,880.00$     8,328.00$       5,552.00$         

DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE LFT 5.00 35.00$                 175.00$              

SIDEWALK RAMP, CONC, 4 INCH SFT 75.00 5.00$                   375.00$              

MINOR TRAF DEVICES LSUM 0.40 25,000.00$         10,000.00$         10,000.00$     6,000.00$       4,000.00$         

BARRICADE, TYPE III, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 2.00 100.00$               200.00$              

PEDESTRIAN TYPE II BARRICADE, TEMP EA 5.00 150.00$               750.00$              

PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 40.00 20.00$                 800.00$              

SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, FURN & OPER SFT 12.50 5.00$                   62.50$                

TRAF REGULATOR CONTROL LSUM 0.40 5,000.00$            2,000.00$           

TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 1000.00 5.00$                   5,000.00$           

SIGN, TYPE III, REM EA 10.00 10.00$                 100.00$              

SIGN, TYPE III, ERECT, SALV EA 10.00 40.00$                 400.00$              

POST, STEEL, 3 POUND FT 10.00 6.00$                   60.00$                

SUB TOTALS 273,059.50$       157,624.67$   94,574.80$     63,049.87$       

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 23,643.70$     14,186.22$     9,457.48$         
ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 7,881.23$       4,728.74$       3,152.49$         
GRAND TOTALS 189,149.60$   113,489.76$   75,659.84$       



HANOVER ST.      HARDING TO NORTH END SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL
WEST SIDE

ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

1104 HARDING 590-000-001 224.08 0.75 168.06 $26.03 $4,374.60
1017 HANOVER 030-000-016 102.04 1 102.04 $26.03 $2,656.10
1083 HANOVER 030-000-015 102.04 1 102.04 $26.03 $2,656.10
1107 HANOVER 030-000-014 68.03 1 68.03 $26.03 $1,770.82
1121 HANOVER 030-000-013 68.03 1 68.03 $26.03 $1,770.82
1137 HANOVER 030-000-012 68.03 1 68.03 $26.03 $1,770.82
1151 HANOVER 030-000-011 68.03 1 68.03 $26.03 $1,770.82
1165 HANOVER 030-000-010 102.04 1 102.04 $26.03 $2,656.10
1193 HANOVER 030-000-009 102.04 0.75 76.53 $26.03 $1,992.08
1201 HANOVER 230-000-008 75.00 0.75 56.25 $26.03 $1,464.19
1205 HANOVER 230-000-007 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1209 HANOVER 230-000-006 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1213 HANOVER 230-000-005 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1217 HANOVER 230-000-004 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1221 HANOVER 230-000-003 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1225 HANOVER 230-000-002 82.50 1 82.50 $26.03 $2,147.48
1229 HANOVER 230-000-001 64.50 1 64.50 $26.03 $1,678.94

1538.86 1438.58 $37,446.24
EAST SIDE

ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

1200 HANOVER 690-000-010 191.20 0.75 143.40 26.03 3,732.70
HANOVER 690-000-011 109.30 1 109.30 26.03 2,845.08

1100 RIVERSIDE 520-000-001 131.97 0.75 98.98 26.03 2,576.38
1101 RIVERSIDE 520-000-010 147.00 0.75 110.25 26.03 2,869.81
1122 HANOVER 520-000-009 150.00 1 150.00 26.03 3,904.50
1132 HANOVER 690-000-009 124.00 1 124.00 26.03 3,227.72
1202 HANOVER 690-000-008 126.00 1 126.00 26.03 3,279.78
1208 HANOVER 690-000-007 127.00 1 127.00 26.03 3,305.81
1212 HANOVER 690-000-006 128.00 1 128.00 26.03 3,331.84
1332 HANOVER 690-000-002 102.81 1 102.81 26.03 2,676.14
1334 HANOVER 690-000-004 100.00 1 100.00 26.03 2,603.00
1338 HANOVER 690-000-001 148.00 1 148.00 26.03 3,852.44

1585.28 1467.74 $38,205.21
Note: 1200 Handover St. footage is 204.2' used 191.2'



LENN

CAMPBELL       DR

MARION ST.

ORCHARD ST.

HANOVER ST.

CORLETT DR.

RIVERSIDE DR.

CAMPBELL DR.

JENNE

ADA ST.

WOOD CT.

N. CHIPMAN ST.

WILLOW

SPRINGS DR.

HARDING AVE.

MAN LANE

0 400

Feet

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
HANOVER FROM HARDING TO NORTH END



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958   WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: February 25, 2018 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Harding Avenue Resurfacing – Special Assessment Resolution No 3 
 
 
When deemed necessary, the city conducts a street improvement program. Public streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection of the city. Harding Avenue, from 
Chipman Street to Hanover Street, is proposed by the city for street resurfacing. Property owners are 
then specially assessed to cover the cost of the proposed improvement.  Past practice has been to 
assess property owners along the street 40% of the proposed benefit and the remaining 60% to the 
community at large.  Each property owner can pay an assessment in one lump sum or in installments 
over the multi-year period (the period being determined by the amount of the average assessment).  
 
The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  
 

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment district(s), directs the city manager to 
estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the 
proposed improvements. Resolution No. 1 for the proposed improvement was approved by City 
Council at its September 18, 2017 meeting.  
 
Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs 
notices to be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of 
the public hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment. Resolution No. 2 for the 
proposed improvement was approved by City Council at its February 20, 2018 meeting. 

 
Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the 
proper scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  if they 
agree that the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to 
go on with the next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project 
should go forward, but with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and 
proceed; if they feel the project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail 
to act on Resolution No. 3, effectively stopping the process. Resolution No. 3 for the proposed 
improvement is scheduled for approval by City Council at its March 5, 2018 meeting. 
 
Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment 
amounts are adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A 
second public hearing is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  
Each property owner is sent a second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and 
the amount of the proposed assessment for their property.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment 
roll and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the 
opportunity to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to 
the benefit they receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides 
adjustments need to be made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the 
assessments are fair and equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

 
Tonight the council will be holding a public hearing to receive citizen comments regarding the necessity of 
the proposed project.  At the conclusion of the hearing council will consider approval of Resolution No. 3 
authorizing the project to proceed.  Residents that would be affected by the project have been sent a 
notification for the public hearing, a description of the work being proposed, and an estimate of the 
special assessment for their property. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 3 for the following district: 
 

Special Assessment District No. 2018-03 –  
Harding Avenue, Public Street, from Chipman Street to Hanover Street 



  Reso. No. 3 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

HARDING AVENUE 
FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO HANOVER STREET 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT RESOLUTION NO. 3 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after due and legal notice, has met and heard all persons to be affected by 
the proposed public improvement more particularly hereinafter described; and  
      
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it advisable and necessary to proceed with said public improvement 
as more particularly hereinafter described.  
      
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  
          
1. The City Council hereby determines to make and proceed with the following described public 

improvement and to defray a part or the whole cost, as more particularly hereinafter provided, by 
special assessment upon the property specially benefited:  
 
HARDING AVENUE FROM CHIPMAN STREET TO HANOVER STREET 
STREET RESURFACING 

          
 2.  The City Council hereby approves the plans for the aforesaid public improvement as prepared and 

presented by the City Manager and determines the estimated cost of said public improvement to be 
$236,251.30 and approves said estimated cost and determines that the estimated life of said public 
improvement is twenty (20) years.  

          
 3.  The City Council determines that of said total estimated cost, the sum of $52,804.45  be paid by 

special assessment for no longer than ten years upon the property specially benefited, as more 
particularly hereinafter described.  

          
 4.  The City Council hereby designates the following described property as the special assessment 

district upon which the special assessment shall be levied:  
 

Harding Avenue from Chipman Street to Hanover Street 
Street Resurfacing 

          
 5.  The City Assessor shall prepare a special assessment roll including all lots and parcels of land within 

the special assessment district herein designated, and the Assessor shall assess to each such lot or 
parcel of land such relative portion of the whole sum to be levied against all lands in the special 
assessment district as the benefit to such lot or parcel of land bears to the total benefits to all lands in 
such district.  

      
6. When the Assessor shall have completed the assessment roll, he shall file the special assessment roll 

with the City Clerk for presentation to the City Council.      
 



29-Jan-18
HARDING AVE ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

WORK ITEM UNIT QUANTITIES UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60% 

ASSESSMENT
AT 40%
4" RULE

MOBILIZATION, MAX_____________ LSUM 0.27 41,500.00$         11,205.00$         11,205.00$     6,723.00$       4,482.00$         

DR STRUCTURE, REM EA 8.00 350.00$               2,800.00$           

SEWER, REM, LESS THAN 24 INCH LFT 118.00 10.00$                 1,180.00$           

CURB AND GUTTER, REM LFT 330.00 7.00$                   2,310.00$           2,310.00$       1,386.00$       924.00$            

PAVT, REM SYD 33.00 8.00$                   264.00$              

SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPE II CYD 50.00 25.00$                 1,250.00$           

MACHINE GRADING, MOD STA 21.00 700.00$               14,700.00$         

EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECTION, FABRIC DROP EA 9.00 100.00$               900.00$              

MAINTENANCE GRAVEL TON 150.00 25.00$                 3,750.00$           

SANITARY SERV CONFLICT EA 1.00 1,500.00$            1,500.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, TEMP LOWERING EA 4.00 250.00$               1,000.00$           1,000.00$       600.00$          400.00$            

HMA SURFACE, REM SYD 3921.00 3.00$                   11,763.00$         11,763.00$     7,057.80$       4,705.20$         

AGGREGATE BASE, 6 INCH, MOD SYD 3924.00 12.00$                 47,088.00$         

GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR SYD 3924.00 1.50$                   5,886.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 10 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 185.00 40.00$                 7,400.00$           

SEWER, SDR-26, 12 INCH, TRENCH DET B-MOD LFT 113.00 45.00$                 5,085.00$           

DR STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1 EA 4.00 475.00$               1,900.00$           1,900.00$       1,140.00$       760.00$            

DR STRUCTURE. ADJ, ADD DEPTH FT 3.00 325.00$               975.00$              

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1060 EA 3.00 600.00$               1,800.00$           1,800.00$       1,080.00$       720.00$            

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 1120 W/ GASKET SEAL EA 4.00 650.00$               2,600.00$           2,600.00$       1,560.00$       1,040.00$         

DR STRUCTURE COVER, EJ 7000 EA 5.00 700.00$               3,500.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA. MOD EA 5.00 1,400.00$            7,000.00$           

DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA. MOD EA 3.00 1,800.00$            5,400.00$           

HMA, 2C TON 707.00 65.00$                 45,955.00$         38,295.83$     22,977.50$     15,318.33$       

HMA, 5E3 TON 353.00 73.00$                 25,769.00$         25,769.00$     15,461.40$     10,307.60$       

DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 6 INCH SYD 33.00 45.00$                 1,485.00$           

CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4, MOD LFT 330.00 20.00$                 6,600.00$           6,600.00$       3,960.00$       2,640.00$         

MINOR TRAF DEVICES LSUM 0.27 25,000.00$         6,750.00$           6,750.00$       4,050.00$       2,700.00$         

BARRICADE, TYPE III, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 4.00 100.00$               400.00$              

PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN & OPER EA 40.00 20.00$                 800.00$              



WORK ITEM UNIT QUANTITIES UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
 ELLIGIBLE
AMOUNT 

 CITY COST
60% 

ASSESSMENT
AT 40%
4" RULE

SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, FURN & OPER SFT 63.66 5.00$                   318.30$              

TRAF REGULATOR CONTROL LSUM 0.27 5,000.00$            1,350.00$           

TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 1000.00 5.00$                   5,000.00$           

SIGN, TYPE III, REM EA 10.00 10.00$                 100.00$              

SIGN, TYPE III, ERECT, SALV EA 10.00 40.00$                 400.00$              

POST, STEEL, 3 POUND FT 10.00 6.00$                   60.00$                

SUB TOTALS 236,251.30$       109,992.83$   65,995.70$     43,997.13$       

ENGINEERING AT 15% ASSESSABLE COST 16,498.93$     9,899.36$       6,599.57$         
ADMINISTRATIVE AT 5% ASSESSABLE COST 5,499.64$       3,299.79$       2,199.86$         
GRAND TOTALS 131,991.40$   79,194.84$     52,796.56$       



HARDING AVE.  CHIPMAN TO HANOVER SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL
SOUTH SIDE

ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

912 CHIPMAN 690-006-002 75 0.75 56.25 $30.14 $1,695.38
1207 HARDING 690-006-003 90 1 90 $30.14 $2,712.60
721 WILLOW SPRING 690-006-001 132 0.75 99 $30.14 $2,983.86
720 WILLOW SPRING 690-000-016 191 0.75 143.25 $30.14 $4,317.56

1111 HARDING 960-000-017 134 1 134 $30.14 $4,038.76
1109 HARDING 690-000-018 134 1 134 $30.14 $4,038.76
1105 HARDING 690-000-014 151.5 1 151.5 $30.14 $4,566.21
1004 HARDING 690-000-019 37.63 0.75 28.22 $30.14 $850.63
1000 HARDING 690-000-020 0 1 0 $30.14 $0.00

945.13 836.22 $25,203.75

Note: 1004 Harding  Total footage is 49.5' used 37.63'
Note: 1000 Harding  has no footage on the street

NORTH SIDE
ADDRESS STREET ROLL NUMBER FRONT FOOTAGE CORNER LOT ASSESSABLE FRONT FOOT AMOUNT OF 
NO. DISCOUNT FRONT FEET RATE ASSESSMENT

1000 CHIPMAN 590-000-012 132 0.75 99 $30.14 $2,983.86
1212 HARDING 590-000-011 70 1 70 $30.14 $2,109.80
1208 HARDING 590-000-010 105 1 105 $30.14 $3,164.70
1126 HARDING 590-000-009 105 1 105 $30.14 $3,164.70
1124 HARDING 590-000-008 70 1 70 $30.14 $2,109.80
1122 HARDING 590-000-007 70 1 70 $30.14 $2,109.80
1118 HARDING 590-000-006 70 1 70 $30.14 $2,109.80
1116 HARDING 590-000-005 70 1 70 $30.14 $2,109.80
1114 HARDING 590-000-004 105 1 105 $30.14 $3,164.70
1108 HARDING 590-000-002 102.25 1 102.25 $30.14 $3,081.82
1104 HARDING 590-000-001 66 0.75 49.5 $30.14 $1,491.93

965.25 915.75 $27,600.71



1105

1103

1109

1007

1124

802 KING

816

826

714

720

712

706

700

732

622

635

11051111

634 623

619630

626

110511091111

678

721912
1207

906
715

902

814 711

709

806

701804

615

658

805815915 911
645

1015539

721

717

08

12081212

1010

1006

1108

1104

1012

1008

1011

1020

1216

1217

815

06

807

803

903

110411141116111811221126

1213

1209

1012

1016

1100

1110

1116

1120

1101

1122

1202

1132 1124

11281131

1123

1000

1004

635

911

1001

1005

1027

537

540

530

1243

1086

1058

1112

1120

708

704

702

710

1117

1111

1241 1225 11931179 1167

1193

1165

1151

1137

1135

1121

1107

1083

1017

W. KING ST.

MARION ST.

HANOVER ST.

RIVERSIDE DR.

WILLOW

HARDING AVE.

0 100 200 300

Feet

AKKirkland
Typewritten Text
HOWARD FROM CHIPMAN TO HANOVER

AKKirkland
Text Box
CHIPMAN ST.



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

 
 
DATE: February 25, 2018 
 
TO: Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Industrial Park Connector – Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 
 
 
When deemed necessary, the city conducts a street improvement program. Public streets are selected for 
inclusion in the program either by citizen initiated petition or by selection of the city. A method using 
formulas is used to establish proportionality between the amount of special assessment and the benefits 
derived from the improvement program. The streets scheduled for improvements are within the City’s 
Industrial Park complex and are its sole lateral connection to the state-wide truck route system. This 
project will enhance both infrastructure and access to all properties within the Special Assessment 
District. All properties will benefit from both the infrastructure and access enhancements. Some properties 
will also receive a pavement enhancement as result of the project. Each property owner can pay an 
assessment in one lump sum or in installments over the multi-year period (the period being determined by 
the amount of the average assessment).  

The special assessment process has five steps, each having its own purpose and accompanying 
resolution.  

Step One/Resolution No. 1 identifies the special assessment district(s), directs the city manager to 
estimate project costs and the amounts to be specially assessed, and determines the life of the proposed 
improvements. Resolution No. 1 for the proposed improvement will be considered by City Council at its 
January 16, 2018 meeting.  

Step Two/Resolution No. 2 sets the date for the hearing of necessity on the projects.  It directs notices to 
be sent to each affected property owner detailing the proposed project, notifying them of the public 
hearing date, and the estimated amount of their assessment. On March 5, 2018, City Council will be 
asked to act upon Resolution No. 2 for the proposed improvement setting a public hearing for Monday, 
March 19, 2018. 

Step Three/Resolution No. 3 documents the hearing of necessity.  This hearing provides affected 
residents with the opportunity to comment on whether they feel the project is necessary and of the proper 
scale.  After hearing citizen comment on the project the city council has three options:  if they agree that 
the project should proceed as proposed, the district is established and staff is directed to go on with the 
next steps of the proposed project, including obtaining bids; if they feel the project should go forward, but 
with some adjustments they may direct staff to make those adjustments and proceed; if they feel the 
project is not warranted and should not proceed at all they would simply fail to act on Resolution No. 3, 
effectively stopping the process. 

Step Four/Resolution No. 4 takes place after the bids are received.  Estimated assessment amounts are 
adjusted if necessary to reflect the actual cost as dictated by the bids received.  A second public hearing  

 
 
 
 



 

is set to allow property owners to comment on their particular assessment.  Each property owner is sent a 
second notice containing the date and time of the public hearing and the amount of the proposed 
assessment for their property.  

Step Five/Resolution No. 5 documents the second public hearing, finalizes the special assessment roll 
and sets the terms of payment.  This public hearing is designed to allow affected citizens the opportunity 
to argue whether or not the amount of their assessment is fair and equitable in relation to the benefit they 
receive from the project.  If, after hearing citizen comment, the council decides adjustments need to be 
made to the assessment roll they may do so.  Alternately, if they feel all the assessments are fair and 
equitable they may pass the resolution as written.   

On March 5, 2018, City Council will be considering Resolution No. 2 for the proposed district as a part of 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
Staff recommends authorization of Resolution No. 2 for the following district: 
 

Gould Street, a Public Street, from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue  
Monroe Street, a Public Street, from Gould Street McMillan Avenue 
McMillan Avenue, a Public Street, from Monroe Street to south end of street 
Industrial Drive, a Public Street, from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road 
South Street, a Public Street, from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road   

 



Special Assessment Resolution No. 2 for Industrial Park Connector 
 
Special Assessment District No. 2018-09 Industrial Park Connector Improvement Project 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has ordered the City Manager to prepare a report for public improvement, 
more particularly hereinafter described; and 
 

Infrastructure and Access Enhancements 
• Gould Street from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue  
• Monroe Street from Gould Street to McMillan Avenue 
• McMillan Avenue from Monroe Street to south end of street 

 
Access Enhancement  
• Industrial Drive from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road  
• South Street from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road 

 
WHEREAS, the City Manager prepared said report and the same has been filed with the City Council as 
required by the Special Assessment Ordinance of the City of Owosso and the Council has reviewed said 
report. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 
 
1. The plans and estimate of cost and the report of the City Manager for said public improvement 

shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk and shall be available for public examination. 
 
2. The City Council hereby determines that the Public Improvement hereinafter set forth may be 

necessary. 
 
3. The City Council hereby approves the estimate of cost of said public improvement to be 

$1,247,507.70 and determines that $539,945.78 thereof shall be paid by special assessment 
imposed on the lots and parcels of land more particularly hereinafter set forth, which lots and 
parcels of land are hereby designated to be all of the lots and parcels of land to be benefited by 
said improvements and determines that $707,561.92 of the cost thereof shall be paid by the City 
at large because of benefit to the City at large. 

 
4. The City Council hereby determines that the portion of the cost of said public improvement to be 

specially assessed for a period not exceeding ten years, shall be assessed in accordance with 
the benefits to be received. 

 
5. The City Council shall meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, March 19, 

2018 for the purpose of hearing all persons to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 
 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of the time and place of the hearing to be 

published once in The Argus Press, the official newspaper of the City of Owosso, not less than 
seven (7) days prior to the date of said hearing and shall further cause notice of said hearing to 
be sent by first class mail to each owner of property subject to assessment, as indicated by the 
records in the City Assessor's Office as shown on the general tax roll of the City, at least (10) full 
days before the time of said hearing, said notice to be mailed to the addresses shown on said 
general tax rolls of the City. 

 
7. The notice of said hearing to be published and mailed shall be in substantially the following form: 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT HEARING 
CITY OF OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 



 
TO THE OWNERS OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY: 
 

• Gould Street from Monroe Street to Corunna Avenue 
• Monroe Street from Gould Street to McMillan Avenue 
• McMillan Avenue from Monroe Street to south end of street 
• Industrial Drive from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road 
• South Street from McMillan Avenue to Aiken Road 

 
 TAKE NOTICE that the City Council intends to acquire and construct the following described 
public improvement: Infrastructure Enhancement and Access Enhancement. 
 
The City Council intends to defray apart or all of the cost of the above-described public improvement by 
special assessment against the above described property. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that City Council has caused plans and an estimate of the cost and report for 
the above described public improvement to be prepared and made by the City Manager and the same is 
on file with the City Clerk and available for public examination. 
 
TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the City Council will meet at the Owosso City Hall Council Chambers, 
Owosso, Michigan at 7:30 o'clock p.m. on Monday, March 19, 2018 for the purpose of hearing any 
person to be affected by the proposed public improvement. 



GOULD STREET, FROM MONROE TO M71

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

12-Feb-18
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST FOR GOULD STREET, MONROE STREET TO M-71

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT ELIGIBLE PAVEMENT ACCESS CITY AT
PRICE AMOUNT ENHANCEMENT ENHANCEMENT LARGE

MOBILIZATION LSUM 1 4,000.00$      4,000.00$            4,000.00$          1,600.00$              1,600.00$              800.00$               
CURB AND GUTTER, REM FEET 536 8.00$             4,288.00$            4,288.00$          1,715.20$              1,715.20$              857.60$               
SIDEWALK, REM SYD 29 8.00$             232.00$               232.00$             92.80$                   -$                       139.20$               
DRIVEWAY, REM SYD 102 6.00$             612.00$               612.00$             244.80$                 -$                       367.20$               
PAVT, REM, MODIFIED SYD 120 8.00$             960.00$               960.00$             384.00$                 384.00$                 192.00$               
EMBANKMENT, CIP CYD 15 15.00$           225.00$               225.00$             90.00$                   90.00$                   45.00$                 
EXCAVATION, EARTH CYD 20 8.00$             160.00$               160.00$             64.00$                   64.00$                   32.00$                 
NON HAZ CONT MAT'L HADLG & DISP CYD 30 75.00$           2,250.00$            -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                     
EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECT, FABRIC DROP EACH 3 100.00$         300.00$               300.00$             120.00$                 120.00$                 60.00$                 
PROJECT CLEANUP LSUM 1 1,000.00$      1,000.00$            1,000.00$          400.00$                 400.00$                 200.00$               
AGG BASE, 4 INCH, MOD SYD 152 10.00$           1,520.00$            1,520.00$          608.00$                 608.00$                 304.00$               
STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1, MOD EACH 3 500.00$         1,500.00$            1,500.00$          600.00$                 600.00$                 300.00$               
COLD MILLING HMA SURFACE SYD 1722 3.00$             5,166.00$            5,166.00$          2,066.40$              2,066.40$              1,033.20$            
HMA 4E3 (2" DEPTH) TON 223 80.00$           17,840.00$          17,840.00$        7,136.00$              7,136.00$              3,568.00$            
HMA, 5E3 (1.5" DEPTH) TON 167 80.00$           13,360.00$          13,360.00$        5,344.00$              5,344.00$              2,672.00$            
HMA REPAIR SYD 139 75.00$           10,425.00$          10,425.00$        4,170.00$              4,170.00$              2,085.00$            
DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 6 INCH, MOD SYD 84 40.00$           3,360.00$            3,360.00$          1,344.00$              -$                       2,016.00$            
CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4 FEET 454 15.00$           6,810.00$            6,810.00$          2,724.00$              2,724.00$              1,362.00$            
SIDEWALK, CONC, 4 INCH, MOD SFT 20 5.00$             100.00$               100.00$             40.00$                   -$                       60.00$                 
SIDEWALK, CONC, 6 INCH, MOD SFT 245 5.00$             1,225.00$            1,225.00$          490.00$                 -$                       735.00$               
POST, STEEL, 3 LB FEET 84 6.00$             504.00$               -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                     
SIGN, TYPE III, REM EACH 8 20.00$           160.00$               -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                     
SIGN, TYPE IIIA SFT 27 15.00$           405.00$               -$                   -$                       -$                       -$                     
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, 24" STOP BAR FEET 99 10.00$           990.00$               990.00$             396.00$                 396.00$                 198.00$               
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, LT TURN ARROW SYM EACH 1 100.00$         100.00$               100.00$             40.00$                   40.00$                   20.00$                 
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, ONLY EACH 1 125.00$         125.00$               125.00$             50.00$                   50.00$                   25.00$                 
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, RAILROAD SYM EACH 2 300.00$         600.00$               600.00$             240.00$                 240.00$                 120.00$               
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, THRU & RT TURN ARROW EACH 1 175.00$         175.00$               175.00$             70.00$                   70.00$                   35.00$                 
PAVT MRKG, WATERBORNE, 4 INCH WHITE FEET 142 0.25$             35.50$                 35.50$               14.20$                   14.20$                   7.10$                   
PAVT MRKG, WATERBORNE, 4" YELLOW FEET 1040 0.25$             260.00$               260.00$             104.00$                 104.00$                 52.00$                 
TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 101 6.00$             606.00$               606.00$             242.40$                 -$                       363.60$               
MONUMENT BOX EACH 1 700.00$         700.00$               700.00$             280.00$                 280.00$                 140.00$               
MONUMENT PRESERVATION EACH 1 700.00$         700.00$               700.00$             280.00$                 280.00$                 140.00$               
SUB TOTALS 80,693.50$          77,374.50$        30,949.80$            28,495.80$            17,928.90$          

INDIRECT COSTS:
ENGINEERING @ 15% OF SUB TOTAL 11,606.18$        4,642.47$              4,274.37$              2,689.34$            
ADMINISTRATIVE @ 5% OF SUB TOTAL 3,868.73$          1,547.49$              1,424.79$              896.45$               
GRAND TOTALS 92,849.40$        37,139.76$            34,194.96$            21,514.68$          



MCMILLAN AVENUE, FROM MONROE TO SOUTH

EGINEER'S ESTIMATE

12-Feb-18
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST FOR MCMILLAN AVENUE, MONROE STREET TO 750' SOUTH

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT ELIGIBLE PAVEMENT ACCESS CITY AT
PRICE AMOUNT ENHANCEMENT ENHANCEMENT LARGE

MOBILIZATION LSUM 1 18,000.00$     18,000.00$           18,000.00$         7,200.00$             7,200.00$             3,600.00$             
DR STRUCTURE, REM EACH 1 400.00$          400.00$                400.00$              160.00$                160.00$                80.00$                  
SEWER, REM < 24 INCH FEET 340 20.00$            6,800.00$             6,800.00$           2,720.00$             2,720.00$             1,360.00$             
DRIVEWAY, REM SYD 696 6.00$              4,176.00$             4,176.00$           1,670.40$             -$                      2,505.60$             
PAVT, REM, MODIFIED SYD 1889 8.00$              15,112.00$           15,112.00$         6,044.80$             6,044.80$             3,022.40$             
EMBANKMENT, CIP CYD 210 15.00$            3,150.00$             3,150.00$           1,260.00$             1,260.00$             630.00$                
EXCAVATION, EARTH CYD 800 8.00$              6,400.00$             6,400.00$           2,560.00$             2,560.00$             1,280.00$             
NON HAZ CONT MAT'L HADLG & DISP CYD 30 75.00$            2,250.00$             -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPE II CYD 50 50.00$            2,500.00$             -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECT, FABRIC DROP EACH 14 100.00$          1,400.00$             1,400.00$           560.00$                560.00$                280.00$                
PROJECT CLEANUP LSUM 1 2,000.00$       2,000.00$             2,000.00$           800.00$                800.00$                400.00$                
AGG BASE, 6 INCH, MOD SYD 353 10.00$            3,530.00$             3,530.00$           1,412.00$             1,412.00$             706.00$                
AGG BASE, 8 INCH, MOD SYD 2094 13.00$            27,222.00$           27,222.00$         10,888.80$           10,888.80$           5,444.40$             
GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR, MOD SYD 2446 3.00$              7,338.00$             7,338.00$           2,935.20$             2,935.20$             1,467.60$             
SEWER TAP, 12 INCH EACH 3 300.00$          900.00$                900.00$              360.00$                360.00$                180.00$                
SEWER, SDR-26, 12 INCH, SP TR DET FEET 200 60.00$            12,000.00$           12,000.00$         4,800.00$             4,800.00$             2,400.00$             
SEWER, SDR-26, 24 INCH, SP TR DET FEET 634 130.00$          82,420.00$           82,420.00$         32,968.00$           32,968.00$           16,484.00$           
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE B EACH 1 500.00$          500.00$                500.00$              200.00$                200.00$                100.00$                
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE G EACH 7 400.00$          2,800.00$             2,800.00$           1,120.00$             1,120.00$             560.00$                
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE K EACH 7 750.00$          5,250.00$             5,250.00$           2,100.00$             2,100.00$             1,050.00$             
DR STRUCTURE, 24 INCH DIA EACH 3 1,250.00$       3,750.00$             3,750.00$           1,500.00$             1,500.00$             750.00$                
DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA EACH 5 2,000.00$       10,000.00$           10,000.00$         4,000.00$             4,000.00$             2,000.00$             
DR STRUCTURE COLLAR, MOD. EACH 2 500.00$          1,000.00$             1,000.00$           400.00$                400.00$                200.00$                
DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA EACH 7 1,500.00$       10,500.00$           10,500.00$         4,200.00$             4,200.00$             2,100.00$             
STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1, MOD EACH 4 500.00$          2,000.00$             2,000.00$           800.00$                800.00$                400.00$                
HMA, 2C (3" DEPTH) TON 380 80.00$            30,400.00$           30,400.00$         12,160.00$           12,160.00$           6,080.00$             
HMA 4E3 (2" DEPTH) TON 254 80.00$            20,320.00$           20,320.00$         8,128.00$             8,128.00$             4,064.00$             
HMA, 5E3 (1.5" DEPTH) TON 190 80.00$            15,200.00$           15,200.00$         6,080.00$             6,080.00$             3,040.00$             
DRIVEWAY, NONREINF CONC, 9 INCH, MOD SYD 494 60.00$            29,640.00$           29,640.00$         11,856.00$           -$                      17,784.00$           
CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4 FEET 1057 15.00$            15,855.00$           15,855.00$         6,342.00$             6,342.00$             3,171.00$             
DRIVEWAY OPENING, CONC, DET M FEET 357 20.00$            7,140.00$             7,140.00$           2,856.00$             -$                      4,284.00$             
POST, STEEL, 3 LB FEET 72 6.00$              432.00$                -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
SIGN, TYPE III, ERECT, SALV EACH 2 25.00$            50.00$                  -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
SIGN, TYPE III, REM EACH 6 20.00$            120.00$                -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
SIGN, TYPE IIIA SFT 16 15.00$            240.00$                -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, 24" STOP BAR FEET 25 10.00$            250.00$                250.00$              100.00$                100.00$                50.00$                  
TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 2325 6.00$              13,950.00$           13,950.00$         5,580.00$             -$                      8,370.00$             



MCMILLAN AVENUE, FROM MONROE TO SOUTH

EGINEER'S ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT ELIGIBLE PAVEMENT ACCESS CITY AT
PRICE AMOUNT ENHANCEMENT ENHANCEMENT LARGE

MONUMENT BOX EACH 1 700.00$          700.00$                700.00$              280.00$                280.00$                140.00$                
MONUMENT PRESERVATION EACH 1 700.00$          700.00$                700.00$              280.00$                280.00$                140.00$                
CONTINGENCY WORK ITEMS LSUM 1 20,000.00$     20,000.00$           20,000.00$         8,000.00$             8,000.00$             4,000.00$             
SUB TOTALS 386,395.00$         380,803.00$       152,321.20$         130,358.80$         98,123.00$           

INDIRECT COSTS:
ENGINEERING @ 15% OF SUB TOTAL 57,120.45$         22,848.18$           19,553.82$           14,718.45$           
ADMINISTRATIVE @ 5% OF SUB TOTAL 19,040.15$         7,616.06$             6,517.94$             4,906.15$             
GRAND TOTALS 456,963.60$       182,785.44$         156,430.56$         117,747.60$         



MONROE STREET, FROM GOULD TO MCMILLAN

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

12-Feb-18
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST FOR MONROE STREET, GOULD ST TO MCMILLAN AVE

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT ELIGIBLE PAVEMENT ACCESS CITY AT
PRICE AMOUNT ENHANCEMENTENHANCEMENT LARGE

MOBILIZATION LSUM 1 27,000.00$     27,000.00$           27,000.00$         10,800.00$       10,800.00$       5,400.00$             
DR STRUCTURE, REM EACH 1 400.00$          400.00$                400.00$              160.00$            160.00$            80.00$                  
SEWER, REM < 24 INCH FEET 112 20.00$            2,240.00$             2,240.00$           896.00$            896.00$            448.00$                
CURB AND GUTTER, REM FEET 316 8.00$              2,528.00$             2,528.00$           1,011.20$         1,011.20$         505.60$                
GUARDRAIL, REM FEET 66 5.00$              330.00$                330.00$              132.00$            132.00$            66.00$                  
SIDEWALK, REM SYD 22 8.00$              176.00$                176.00$              70.40$              -$                  105.60$                
PAVT, REM, MODIFIED SYD 3903 8.00$              31,224.00$           31,224.00$         12,489.60$       12,489.60$       6,244.80$             
EMBANKMENT, CIP CYD 220 15.00$            3,300.00$             3,300.00$           1,320.00$         1,320.00$         660.00$                
EXCAVATION, EARTH CYD 1810 8.00$              14,480.00$           14,480.00$         5,792.00$         5,792.00$         2,896.00$             
NON HAZ CONT MAT'L HADLG & DISP CYD 30 75.00$            2,250.00$             -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING, TYPE II CYD 50 50.00$            2,500.00$             -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
EROSION CONTROL, INLET PROTECT, FABRIC DROP EACH 13 100.00$          1,300.00$             1,300.00$           520.00$            520.00$            260.00$                
EROSION CONTROL, SILT FENCE FEET 323 2.00$              646.00$                646.00$              258.40$            258.40$            129.20$                
PROJECT CLEANUP LSUM 1 2,000.00$       2,000.00$             2,000.00$           800.00$            800.00$            400.00$                
AGG BASE, 10 INCH, MOD SYD 3399 15.00$            50,985.00$           50,985.00$         20,394.00$       20,394.00$       10,197.00$           
AGG BASE, 4 INCH, MOD SYD 47 10.00$            470.00$                470.00$              188.00$            188.00$            94.00$                  
AGG BASE, 9 INCH, MOD SYD 750 14.00$            10,500.00$           10,500.00$         4,200.00$         4,200.00$         2,100.00$             
MAINTENANCE GRAVEL TON 50 10.00$            500.00$                500.00$              200.00$            200.00$            100.00$                
GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR, MOD SYD 4148 3.00$              12,444.00$           12,444.00$         4,977.60$         4,977.60$         2,488.80$             
SEWER, SDR-26, 12 INCH, SP TR DET FEET 343 60.00$            20,580.00$           20,580.00$         8,232.00$         8,232.00$         4,116.00$             
SEWER, SDR-26, 24 INCH, SP TR DET FEET 732 130.00$          95,160.00$           95,160.00$         38,064.00$       38,064.00$       19,032.00$           
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE B EACH 6 500.00$          3,000.00$             3,000.00$           1,200.00$         1,200.00$         600.00$                
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE G EACH 3 400.00$          1,200.00$             1,200.00$           480.00$            480.00$            240.00$                
DR STRUCTURE COVER, TYPE K EACH 9 750.00$          6,750.00$             6,750.00$           2,700.00$         2,700.00$         1,350.00$             
DR STRUCTURE, 24 INCH DIA EACH 3 1,250.00$       3,750.00$             3,750.00$           1,500.00$         1,500.00$         750.00$                
DR STRUCTURE, 48 INCH DIA EACH 6 2,000.00$       12,000.00$           12,000.00$         4,800.00$         4,800.00$         2,400.00$             
DR STRUCTURE TAP, 12 INCH EACH 1 450.00$          450.00$                450.00$              180.00$            180.00$            90.00$                  
DR STRUCTURE, TAP, 24 INCH EACH 1 450.00$          450.00$                450.00$              180.00$            180.00$            90.00$                  
DR STRUCTURE COLLAR, MOD. EACH 6 500.00$          3,000.00$             3,000.00$           1,200.00$         1,200.00$         600.00$                
DR STRUCTURE, 36 INCH DIA EACH 8 1,500.00$       12,000.00$           12,000.00$         4,800.00$         4,800.00$         2,400.00$             
STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 1, MOD EACH 1 500.00$          500.00$                500.00$              200.00$            200.00$            100.00$                
STRUCTURE COVER, ADJ, CASE 2, MOD EACH 6 500.00$          3,000.00$             3,000.00$           1,200.00$         1,200.00$         600.00$                
HMA, 2C (4" DEPTH) TON 831 80.00$            66,480.00$           66,480.00$         26,592.00$       26,592.00$       13,296.00$           
HMA 4E3 (2" DEPTH) TON 416 80.00$            33,280.00$           33,280.00$         13,312.00$       13,312.00$       6,656.00$             
HMA, 5E3 (1.5" DEPTH) TON 312 80.00$            24,960.00$           24,960.00$         9,984.00$         9,984.00$         4,992.00$             
HMA REPAIR SYD 32 75.00$            2,400.00$             2,400.00$           960.00$            960.00$            480.00$                
CURB AND GUTTER, CONC, DET F4 FEET 2249 15.00$            33,735.00$           33,735.00$         13,494.00$       13,494.00$       6,747.00$             
DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE FEET 10 35.00$            350.00$                350.00$              140.00$            140.00$            70.00$                  
CURB RAMP OPENING, CONC. FEET 14 20.00$            280.00$                280.00$              112.00$            112.00$            56.00$                  



MONROE STREET, FROM GOULD TO MCMILLAN

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT ELIGIBLE PAVEMENT ACCESS CITY AT
PRICE AMOUNT ENHANCEMENTENHANCEMENT LARGE

SIDEWALK RAMP, CONC, 7 INCH, MOD SFT 95 8.00$              760.00$                760.00$              304.00$            304.00$            152.00$                
SIDEWALK, CONC, 4 INCH, MOD SFT 370 5.00$              1,850.00$             1,850.00$           740.00$            740.00$            370.00$                
GUARDRAIL, TYPE B FEET 75 15.00$            1,125.00$             1,125.00$           450.00$            450.00$            225.00$                
GUARDRAIL, CURVED, TYPE B FEET 25 20.00$            500.00$                500.00$              200.00$            200.00$            100.00$                
GUARDRAIL APPROACH TERMINAL, TYPE 2B EACH 2 2,500.00$       5,000.00$             5,000.00$           2,000.00$         2,000.00$         1,000.00$             
GUARDRAIL REFLECTOR EACH 5 6.00$              30.00$                  30.00$                12.00$              12.00$              6.00$                    
POST, STEEL, 3 LB FEET 158 6.00$              948.00$                -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
SIGN, TYPE III, ERECT, SALV EACH 4 25.00$            100.00$                -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
SIGN, TYPE III, REM EACH 12 20.00$            240.00$                -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
SIGN, TYPE IIIA SFT 38 15.00$            570.00$                -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, 6" X-WALK FEET 53 2.75$              145.75$                145.75$              58.30$              58.30$              29.15$                  
PAVT MRKG, OVLY COLD PLASTIC, 24" STOP BAR FEET 27 10.00$            270.00$                270.00$              108.00$            108.00$            54.00$                  
PAVT MRKG, WATERBORNE, 4" YELLOW FEET 1518 0.25$              379.50$                379.50$              151.80$            151.80$            75.90$                  
PVT MRKG, WATERBORNE, 4" YELLOW, 2ND FEET 0 -$                -$                      -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                      
BARRICADE, TYPE III, HI, DS, LIGHTED, FURN EACH 25 50.00$            1,250.00$             1,250.00$           500.00$            500.00$            250.00$                
BARRICADE, TYPE III, HI, DS, LIGHTED, OPER EACH 25 5.00$              125.00$                125.00$              50.00$              50.00$              25.00$                  
DUST PALLATIVE, APPLIED TON 10 250.00$          2,500.00$             2,500.00$           1,000.00$         1,000.00$         500.00$                
LIGHTED ARROW, TYPE C, FURN EACH 2 500.00$          1,000.00$             1,000.00$           400.00$            400.00$            200.00$                
LIGHTED ARROW, TYPE C, OPER EACH 2 100.00$          200.00$                200.00$              80.00$              80.00$              40.00$                  
MINOR TRAFFIC DEVICES LSUM 1 5,000.00$       5,000.00$             5,000.00$           2,000.00$         2,000.00$         1,000.00$             
PAVT MRKG, WET REFLECT, TYPE R, 4" WHITE, TEMP FEET 1500 1.50$              2,250.00$             2,250.00$           900.00$            900.00$            450.00$                
PAVT MRKG, WET REFLECT, TYPE R, 4" YELLOW, TEMP FEET 2500 1.50$              3,750.00$             3,750.00$           1,500.00$         1,500.00$         750.00$                
PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, FURN EACH 100 20.00$            2,000.00$             2,000.00$           800.00$            800.00$            400.00$                
PLASTIC DRUM, HIGH INTENSITY, OPER EACH 100 1.00$              100.00$                100.00$              40.00$              40.00$              20.00$                  
SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, FURN SFT 508 4.00$              2,032.00$             2,032.00$           812.80$            812.80$            406.40$                
SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, OPER SFT 508 1.00$              508.00$                508.00$              203.20$            203.20$            101.60$                
SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, SPECIAL, FURN SFT 122 10.00$            1,220.00$             1,220.00$           488.00$            488.00$            244.00$                
SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC, SPECIAL, OPER SFT 122 1.00$              122.00$                122.00$              48.80$              48.80$              24.40$                  
TRAFFIC REGULATOR CONTROL LSUM 1 10,000.00$     10,000.00$           10,000.00$         4,000.00$         4,000.00$         2,000.00$             
TURF ESTABLISHMENT, PERFORMANCE SYD 2800 6.00$              16,800.00$           16,800.00$         6,720.00$         -$                  10,080.00$           
MONUMENT BOX EACH 1 700.00$          700.00$                700.00$              280.00$            280.00$            140.00$                
MONUMENT PRESERVATION EACH 1 700.00$          700.00$                700.00$              280.00$            280.00$            140.00$                
RAILROAD FLAG PERSON HOUR 24 72.00$            1,728.00$             1,728.00$           691.20$            691.20$            345.60$                
CONTINGENCY WORK ITEMS LSUM 1 20,000.00$     20,000.00$           20,000.00$         8,000.00$         8,000.00$         4,000.00$             
SUB TOTALS 572,501.25$         565,893.25$       226,357.30$     219,566.90$     119,969.05$         

INDIRECT COSTS:
ENGINEERING @ 15% OF SUB TOTAL 84,883.99$         33,953.60$       32,935.04$       17,995.36$           
ADMINISTRATIVE @ 5% OF SUB TOTAL 28,294.66$         11,317.87$       10,978.35$       5,998.45$             
GRAND TOTALS 679,071.90$       271,628.76$     263,480.28$     143,962.86$         



INDUSTRIAL PARK CONNECTOR PROJECT

ASSESSMENT OF BENEFIT ‐ ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Pacel Number Address PARCEL Parcel Sft CLASS STATUS FRONTAGE Land Value Building Value Total Value TIER Owner PAVEMENT ACCESS TOTAL COMPARE TOTAL

ACRES FEET BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT BENEFIT VALUE BENEFIT

GOULD STREET LIST ASSESSABLE ADJUSTED

011‐021‐005 520 S Gould St 1.77 77,101.20 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 311.49 15,500.00$       210,200.00$         225,700.00$        1 Christian and Brenda Bertram 10,811.82$       9,097.94$          19,909.76$           38,750.00$       $19,909.76
011‐021‐002 S Gould St 0.49 21,344.40 EXEMPT VACANT 158.43 3,628.55$          ‐$                       3,628.55$             1 City of Owosso 5,499.11$         2,518.64$          8,017.75$             ‐$                   $0.00
010‐022‐001 525 S Gould 1.93 84,070.80 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 350.00 16,900.00$       193,900.00$         210,800.00$        1 Alliance‐HNI, LLC 12,148.50$       9,920.35$          22,068.85$           42,250.00$       $22,068.85
542‐000‐047 S Gould St 0.34 14,810.40 OTHER VACANT 50.00 2,517.77$          ‐$                       2,517.77$             1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 1,735.50$         1,747.63$          3,483.13$             6,294.42$          $3,483.13
542‐000‐048 S Gould St 0.51 22,215.60 OTHER VACANT 75.00 3,776.65$          ‐$                       3,776.65$             1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 2,603.25$         2,621.44$          5,224.69$             3,305.08$          $3,305.08
010‐011‐002 RR ROW 0.46 20,037.60 OTHER VACANT 50.00 3,406.39$          ‐$                       3,406.39$             1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 1,735.50$         2,364.44$          4,099.94$             8,515.98$          $4,099.94
010‐011‐003 RR ROW 0.69 0.00 OTHER VACANT 75.00 ‐$                  ‐$                       ‐$                      1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 2,603.25$         ‐$                    2,603.25$             ‐$                   $2,603.25

6.19
MONROE STREET LIST

010‐010‐001 Monroe St 1.56 40,152.59 INDUSTRIAL VACANT 723.47 6,825.94$          ‐$                       6,825.94$             1 Consumers Energy, Co 136,235.69$    4,738.01$          140,973.70$         17,064.85$       $17,064.85
542‐000‐048 S Gould St 0.22 0.00 OTHER VACANT 32.59 ‐$                  ‐$                       ‐$                      1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 6,136.55$         ‐$                    6,136.55$             ‐$                   $6,136.55
010‐011‐003 RR ROW 0.39 51,478.50 OTHER VACANT 686.38 8,751.35$          ‐$                       8,751.35$             1 Huron & Eastern Railway Co., Inc 129,251.75$    6,074.46$          135,326.21$         19,275.11$       $19,275.11

2.17
MCMILLAN AVENUE LIST

010‐012‐001 1175 Farr Ave 1.13 49,222.80 EXEMPT VACANT 296.25 8,367.88$          ‐$                       8,367.88$             1 City of Owosso 44,713.01$       5,808.29$          50,521.30$           ‐$                   $0.00
010‐011‐001 1400 Monroe St 2.76 120,225.60 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 391.20 30,300.00$       563,400.00$         593,700.00$        1 Tri‐Mer 59,043.82$       14,186.62$        73,230.44$           75,750.00$       $73,230.44
010‐007‐003 700 McMillan 3.11 135,471.60 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 166.50 27,300.00$       133,200.00$         160,500.00$        1 Tri‐Mer 25,129.85$       15,985.65$        41,115.50$           68,250.00$       $41,115.50
010‐008‐002 705 McMillan 2.10 91,476.00 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 206.85 22,100.00$       1,254,800.00$     1,276,900.00$     1 Ruess Winchester, Inc 31,219.87$       10,794.17$        42,014.04$           55,250.00$       $42,014.04
010‐008‐001 745 McMillan 6.39 278,348.40 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 39.30 30,800.00$       974,100.00$         1,004,900.00$     1 Tri‐Mer 5,931.55$         32,845.11$        38,776.66$           77,000.00$       $38,776.66
010‐010‐001 McMillan Ave 1.56 0.00 INDUSTRIAL VACANT 55.50 ‐$                  ‐$                       ‐$                      1 Consumers Energy, Co 8,376.62$         ‐$                    8,376.62$             ‐$                   $0.00
010‐010‐001 McMillan Ave 1.56 0.00 INDUSTRIAL VACANT 55.50 ‐$                  ‐$                       ‐$                      1 Consumers Energy, Co 8,376.62$         ‐$                    8,376.62$             ‐$                   $0.00
010‐006‐001 Farr Ave 8.34 363,290.40 EXEMPT VACANT 0.00 61,759.37$       ‐$                       ‐$                      2 City of Owosso ‐$                   42,868.27$        42,868.27$           ‐$                   $0.00
010‐007‐002 780 McMillan 2.02 87,991.20 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 17,700.00$       80,300.00$           98,000.00$           2 Thomas Simmington, LLC ‐$                   10,382.96$        10,382.96$           44,250.00$       $10,382.96
553‐000‐001 1370 E South St 6.20 270,072.00 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 40,800.00$       142,100.00$         182,900.00$        2 Industrial Real Estate Company, LLC ‐$                   31,868.50$        31,868.50$           102,000.00$     $31,868.50
553‐000‐002 McMillan 0.75 32,670.00 EXEMPT VACANT 0.00 40,800.00$       ‐$                       40,800.00$           2 City of Owosso ‐$                   3,855.06$          3,855.06$             ‐$                   $0.00
553‐000‐003 1470 McMillan 5.00 217,800.00 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 32,900.00$       283,300.00$         316,200.00$        2 DAC Holdings LLC ‐$                   25,700.40$        25,700.40$           82,250.00$       $25,700.40
553‐000‐008 1500 McMillan 1.69 73,616.40 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 14,800.00$       64,500.00$           79,300.00$           2 Glenn Barnes ‐$                   8,686.74$          8,686.74$             37,000.00$       $8,686.74
553‐000‐009 McMillan 2.16 94,089.60 EXEMPT VACANT 0.00 15,995.23$       ‐$                       15,995.23$           2 City of Owosso ‐$                   11,102.57$        11,102.57$           ‐$                   $0.00
480‐000‐002 1400 McMillan 2.25 98,010.00 COMMERCIAL IMPROVED 0.00 14,800.00$       10,900.00$           25,700.00$           2 David and Richa Stechschulte ‐$                   11,565.18$        11,565.18$           37,000.00$       $11,565.18
480‐000‐001 1450 E South St 0.67 29,054.52 COMMERCIAL IMPROVED 0.00 5,900.00$          42,900.00$           48,800.00$           2 Michael and Cheryl Brown ‐$                   3,428.43$          3,428.43$             14,750.00$       $3,428.43
480‐000‐004 1555 Industrial Dr 5.98 260,488.80 EXEMPT IMPROVED 0.00 ‐$                  136,900.00$         136,900.00$        2 Shiawassee County ‐$                   30,737.68$        30,737.68$           ‐$                   $0.00
480‐000‐011 E South St 0.15 6,480.00 EXEMPT VACANT 0.00 1,101.60$          ‐$                       1,101.60$             2 City of Owosso ‐$                   764.64$              764.64$                 ‐$                   $0.00
480‐000‐006 1650 E South St 2.65 115,434.00 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 23,200.00$       86,900.00$           110,100.00$        2 Rivers Properties, LLC ‐$                   13,621.21$        13,621.21$           58,000.00$       $13,621.21
480‐000‐012 E South St 0.19 8,100.00 EXEMPT VACANT 0.00 1,377.00$          ‐$                       1,377.00$             2 City of Owosso ‐$                   955.80$              955.80$                 ‐$                   $0.00
480‐000‐009 1750 E South St 2.88 125,452.80 COMMERCIAL IMPROVED 0.00 25,300.00$       163,100.00$         188,400.00$        2 OLM Enterprises ‐$                   14,803.43$        14,803.43$           63,250.00$       $14,803.43
480‐000‐003 McMillan 1.03 44,866.80 COMMERCIAL VACANT 0.00 14,900.00$       ‐$                       14,900.00$           2 David and Richa Stechschulte ‐$                   5,294.28$          5,294.28$             37,250.00$       $5,294.28
480‐000‐010 Industrial Dr 1.03 44,866.80 COMMERCIAL VACANT 0.00 15,000.00$       ‐$                       15,000.00$           2 Michael and Cheryl Brown ‐$                   5,294.28$          5,294.28$             37,500.00$       $5,294.28
480‐000‐007 1655 Industrial Dr 2.99 130,244.40 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 26,200.00$       180,000.00$         206,200.00$        2 MRM Industries ‐$                   15,368.84$        15,368.84$           65,500.00$       $15,368.84
480‐000‐008 1070 Aiken Rd 2.88 125,452.80 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 11,400.00$       78,900.00$           90,300.00$           2 M & S Properties, LLC ‐$                   14,803.43$        14,803.43$           28,500.00$       $14,803.43
553‐000‐005 1550 Industrial Dr 7.00 304,920.00 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 46,000.00$       495,500.00$         541,500.00$        2 Industrial Real Estate Company, LLC ‐$                   35,980.56$        35,980.56$           115,000.00$     $35,980.56
553‐000‐006 1650 Industrial Dr 5.31 231,303.60 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 35,900.00$       241,600.00$         277,500.00$        2 Yolt Holdings, LLC ‐$                   27,293.82$        27,293.82$           89,750.00$       $27,293.82
553‐000‐004 1150 Aiken Rd 4.43 192,970.80 INDUSTRIAL IMPROVED 0.00 29,100.00$       132,900.00$         162,000.00$        2 Yolt Holdings, LLC ‐$                   22,770.55$        22,770.55$           72,750.00$       $22,770.55

84.20 3,863,130.41 655,107.72$     5,469,400.00$     6,062,748.35$     491,552.26$    455,849.39$      947,401.65$         $539,945.78

CITY PROPERTY 148,823.07$         RR PROPERTY $38,903.06
NOTES:
1. PARCEL NO. 542‐000‐047 PARCEL AREAS ADJUSTED FOR SPREADSHEET CALCULATIONS. TOTAL ASSESSMENT TO PARCEL CAPPED BY LAND VALUE. TOTAL BENEFIT‐GOULD STREET $55,470.01
2. PARCEL NO. 542‐000‐048 PARCEL AREAS ADJUSTED FOR SPREADSHEET CALCULATIONS. TOTAL ASSESSMENT TO PARCEL CAPPED BY LAND VALUE. TOTAL BENEFIT‐MONROE STREET $42,476.51
3. PARCEL NO. 010‐011‐003 PARCEL AREAS ADJUSTED FOR SPREADSHEET CALCULATIONS. TOTAL ASSESSMENT TO PARCEL CAPPED BY LAND VALUE. TOTAL BENEFIT‐MCMILLAN AVE $441,999.26

$539,945.78



District Properties

Infrastructure 
Project



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

    
 
DATE: February 25, 2018 
 
TO: City Council 
  
FROM: Glenn M. Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
 
SUBJECT: Amendment No. 1 to the 2018 City Wide Mowing and Noxious 
 Weed Removal Services Contract with J&M Tree Service 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Approval to extend through the 2018 mowing season the Mowing and Noxious Weed removal services 
contract to J&M Tree Service of Flint, Michigan in the amount of $24,300.00. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
J&M Tree Service was awarded the City Wide Mowing Contract for 2017, and has offered to perform the 
same services for the 2018 season at the 2017 bid price.  J&M performed last year’s contract very well, 
and I am pleased to welcome them back for the 2018 mowing season. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
Contract services amount of $24,300.00, plus contingency work in the amount of $2,500.00 with prior 
written approval, for a total of $26,800.00.  The costs for these contracted services shall be paid from the 
101-265-818.000 contract services account. 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AMENDMENT NO.1  
TO THE 2017 TALL GRASS MOWING PROGRAM CONTRACT  

BETWEEN THE CITY OF OWOSSO AND J&M TREE SERVICE AKA FORREST M. SPITZER 
EXTENDING THE CONTRACT THROUGH THE 2018 MOWING SEASON  

 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, has determined that maintenance 
of city owned grounds, and private property not in compliance with city ordinances is required, 
necessary, and in the public interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city of Owosso sought bids to perform mowing and noxious weed removal 
services in 2017, J&M Tree Service was the low responsible and responsive bidder and has 
offered to perform these same services for the 2018 mowing season at the 2017 bid price, and it 
is hereby determined that J&M Tree Service of Flint, Michigan is qualified to provide such 
services for the 2018 city wide mowing season. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has heretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to extend the 2017 Tall Grass Mowing Contract with 
J&M Tree Service a.k.a. Forrest M. Spitzer for the 2018 mowing season. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign Amendment No. 1 

to the contract for services between the city of Owosso, Michigan and J&M Tree 
Service a.k.a. Forrest M. Spitzer in the amount of $24,300.00, plus contingency 
work with prior written approval, in the amount of $2,500.00 for a total of 
$26,800.00. 

 
THIRD: The accounts payable department is authorized to pay J&M Tree Service a.k.a. 

Forrest M. Spitzer for work satisfactorily completed up to $26,800.00. 
 
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from account 101-265-818.000. 

 



AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO  
A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES WITH 

J&M TREE SERVICE A.K.A. FORREST M. SPITZER  
FOR THE 2017 TALL GRASS MOWING PROGRAM 

 
This amendment is attached and made part of the contract for services for the 2017 Tall Grass Mowing 
Program, authorized by City Council May 1, 2017, between the city of Owosso, Michigan (City) and J&M 
Tree Service a.k.a. Forrest M. Spitzer (Contractor). 
 
 

2017 TALL GRASS MOWING PROGRAM CONTRACT 
 
 

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The project scope of work remains as stated in the original bid documents. 
 

 
SCHEDULE 

 
The schedule for the project is amended as follows: 
 
Work shall be extended through the 2018 mowing season (May 15, 2018 - October 15, 2018). 
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 
Total compensation for the contract shall be increased $24,300.00, billed on a per unit basis. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals the day and date first 
above written. 
 
 
For the Contractor:      For the City: 
 
 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________                                                   
             Christopher T. Eveleth, Mayor 
Its: ___________________________________         
 
 
By: ___________________________________  By: ___________________________________ 
                   Amy K. Kirkland, City Clerk 
Its: ___________________________________ 
 
 
Executed: ________________________, 2018  Executed: _________________________, 2018
 
 





 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
 
 

  
 
DATE:                   February 26, 2018 
  
TO:                        Owosso City Council 
                              
FROM:                  Glenn Chinavare, Director of Public Services & Utilities 
  
SUBJECT:             Professional Engineering Services for Washington Street Project 
  
   
RECOMMENDATION 
  
Approval of the proposal provided by ENG Engineering and Surveying in the amount of $104,392.50, for 
engineering design and construction administration services for the Washington Street Project.   
  
 BACKGROUND             
  
On February 15, 2018, the City received official notification that its application for the Washington Street 
Project was accepted and awarded for federal Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funding. On 
February 20, 2018, the City received proposals from its four QBS selected firms. Professional engineering 
services are required for engineering design and construction administration services. These services are 
required by MDOT for quality control and construction oversight of the project. All proposals were 
evaluated, with ENG Engineering and Surveying considered the most qualified firm to perform these 
services. Evaluation of qualifications is based on, 1) Firm’s history & capabilities to perform similar 
projects, 2) Key personnel, 3) Performance measures, and 4) Pricing.  A copy of ENG Engineering and 
Surveying proposal can be provided upon request. 
 
Competing firms listed in ranked order with pricings were: 

• OHM Advisors proposal  $127,528.00 
• Fleis & Vandenbrink proposal $112,500.00 
• Spicer Group proposal  $140,300.00 

 
FISCAL IMPACTS          
  
Funds for the above proposed services in the amount of $104,392.50 will be issued from the 2016 
Unlimited Obligation Street Bonds proceeds, federal HSIP grant funds recently awarded by the State of 
Michigan, and other funds as appropriated.  
 
  
ENCLOSURES: (1) Resolution awarding contract to ENG Engineers and Surveyors 

  (2) RFP Washington Street Project 
 (3) MDOT Notification of HSIP Award 
 (4) Map of Project Area 
 

 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  
  

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH 

ENG ENGINEERS AND SURVEYORS 
FOR THE S. WASHINGTON STREET PROJECT 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, Michigan, is considering the necessary resurfacing 
of various streets as outlined within its RFP for professional engineering services; and  
  
WHEREAS, this project requires the services of a professional engineering firm; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City sought proposals from its QBS list of firms to perform such work; and  
  
WHEREAS, ENG engineers and Surveyors is selected as the most qualified firm to perform such work 
and offers to complete full design and construction administration services of said project in return for 
compensation in an amount not to exceed of $104,392.50. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee County, 
Michigan that: 
  

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary and in the 
public interest to employ the firm of ENG Engineers and Surveyors to provide 
professional engineering services for the S. Washington Street Project. 

  
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the necessary documents 

as an Agreement for Professional Engineering Services between the City of Owosso, 
Michigan and ENG Engineers and Surveyors. 

  
THIRD: The Accounts Payable department is authorized to make payment up to the amount of 

$104,392.50 to ENG Engineers and Surveyors upon successful completion of stated 
work. 

  
FOURTH: The above expenses shall be paid from the 2016 Unlimited Obligation Bond Proceeds 

Acct No. _____ and other funds as appropriated. 
 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
CITY OF OWOSSO 

WASHINGTON STREET PROJECT 
 

BACKGROUND: 
The city of Owosso has received preliminary information that it will receive a Local 
Safety (HSIP) Program grant for the 2019 construction season. The grant will be in the 
form of 90/10 share with federal amount capped at $600,000.00. Because of mitigating 
circumstances and that the city of Owosso desires to enter the project into MDOT’s 
queue for its February, 2019 bid letting, this RFP is sent at this time. Construction 
period shall begin after the Curwood Festival, tentatively scheduled June 7-10, 2019. 
 
The project is the S. Washington Street Corridor with improvement. Limits from Gute 
Street northerly to M-71 (Corunna Ave.). Washington Street is designated as a NFC 
minor arterial and is the main north/south artery into the City CBD area. Washington 
Street is the highest volume city-owned street servicing about 9,200 vehicles per day; 
and of that amount, approximately 6% may be assumed as commercial traffic. 
Washington Street is part of the signed commercial traffic connector between state 
highways M-52 and M-71. There are three major intersections within the corridor; Gute 
Street, Stewart Street, and M-71. There also is one rail crossing with the Huron & 
Eastern Railroad. The rail crossing is protected with active devices supplemented with 
overhead pre-signals that are interconnected with those at M-71. Washington Street 
was part of the former state highway M-47. Circa 1960, the City accepted the road and 
is responsible for its maintenance. Over the last 50+ years, significant developmental 
and traffic changes have occurred, most notably is Baker College that sits at the south 
end of the project. The present S. Washington Street is a patchwork creation of various 
short-term attempts to meet the changing environment. The city of Owosso desires to 
improve pavement, simplify the traffic lanes, and improve safety conditions for all road 
users. 
 
PROJECT DETAILS 
Total estimated project cost is $726,825.00; and of that amount, federal HSIP grant 
funds will pay $600,000.00, and the City share is $126,825.00. The City is responsible 
for all additional costs including engineering. The selected consultant will be responsible 
for complete professional engineering design and construction administration services 
for the project. Services shall include the following work items: 
 

1. Simplify the variable lane design to a standard three-lane with center-turn lane 
‘road diet’ design. The center lane will be a continuous two-way left-turn lane, 
from Gute Street through Monroe Street. The Stewart intersection will have 
directional left-turn lanes. The segment between Monroe and M-71 will transition 
into individual movement lanes over the Huron & Eastern Railroad and 
approaches to M-71. A rendering is included with this RFP as a drawing 
attachment. 

 



2. Survey and best fit the new road onto existing road geometry. Adjust curbs, 
widen select sections and realign the road to best fit the proposed road onto 
existing geometry at minimal overall cost to the City. In addition to the road diet 
design, the northbound approach to M-71 will be revised as follows: offset and 
extend the right-turn lane over Huron & Eastern railroad crossing; realign the 
through lane and create a left-turn lane into the private driveway to the west; 
altogether with best fitting the lanes with lane geometry to opposing southbound 
traffic movements. All design work affecting the M-71 intersection must be 
coordinated with and accepted by MDOT. 

3. Add all-way STOP sign controls at the intersection of Washington @ Stewart 
Street intersection. Consultant shall design the intersection for the new controls. 

4. Bicycle lanes shall be designed and installed in conjunction with the ‘road diet’. 
Street parking will be prohibited and bicycle lanes shall be best fitted in 
accordance with AASHTO design guidelines.  

5. Evaluate the existing overhead stop-and-go traffic signals at both Huron & 
Eastern Railroad crossing and M-71. Early evaluation suggests some 
adjustments with the pre-signals and support poles may be required to fit the new 
road realignment. The City has initiated contact with MDOT Davison TSC and 
Bay Region Traffic & Safety Engineers. They may request some layout 
information for signal evaluation. The Consultant will coordinate all work between 
the city of Owosso and MDOT. 

6. Design pavement to meet traffic demand for the next 20 years. Preliminary plans 
are to replace the existing pavement section from Stewart Street through M-71 
with new HMA pavement section using AASHTO design procedure, and do a 
structural overlay from Gute Street to Stewart Street. 

7. Analyze traffic requirements of surrounding area and develop suitable detour 
plan. Detour plan most likely will require using state highways M-52/M21/M-71. 

8. Design and replace existing storm sewer system to adequately drain the revised 
street section. The existing system is old (1916), drains away from Washington 
on lateral streets. Expectation at this time is to replace existing system in kind. 

9. Install ADA compliant handicap ramps at all affected intersections. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
Consultant to furnish the following full Design Engineering services as follows: 

1. Provide geotechnical services; minimum six pavement borings up to three feet 
depth with soil analysis and engineer’s opinion. The City can provide traffic 
control with sufficient notice. 

2. Provide complete survey, engineering design with detailed construction plans, 
bid documents, intersection design, especially at the Huron & Eastern Railroad 
and M-71 intersections; all in compliance with MDOT Local Program Agency 
procedures and pratices.  

3. Produce 90% level preliminary plans for city comment and private utility 
comment. Then provide final plans and bid documents in conformance with 
MDOT standards and procedures. 

 



4. Coordinate the project with all stakeholders of the project that include private and 
public utilities, SHPO, MDOT Local Agency and Davison TSC, MDOT Rail Safety 
Section, Huron & Eastern Railroad, Shiawassee County SESC services, Owosso 
Public Schools Transportation Department, residents and businesses affected by 
the Project, and any other interested party that comes forward as result of the 
Project. 

5. Coordinate and administer the Grade Inspection. 
6. Submit final package of plans and bid documents in timely manner to ensure the 

project is included in the February, 2019 MDOT bid letting schedule. 
7. Address questions and contract addendums during bid phase. 

 
Consultant to furnish full Construction Administration services including; field 
surveying, construction observation and recording, material testing, quality control and 
general project administration as follows: 

1. Analyze contractor bids and make recommendation to City as to bid results. 
2. Schedule and administer the pre-construction meeting at City Hall. 
3. Coordinate utility work with selected contractor. 
4. Provide Quality Control and Quality Assurance with properly certified staff as 

required by MDOT; to ensure that all work is performed in compliance with 
contract documents. 

5. Provide all necessary construction staking and general surveying of project, as 
needed. 

6. Attend progress meetings as required. 
7. Provide, minimum, one full-time Construction Services Technician on a regular 

basis during construction phase. 
8. Provide professional engineer that will report to both MDOT Construction 

Engineer and City Engineer. Act as liaison between both agencies. 
9. Perform all qualified field and plant production testing of materials as required by 

MDOT. Coordinate and administer pre-production meetings. 
10. Provide all daily field reports, material testing reports, soil and sedimentation 

control reports, and any other necessary reports to fulfill services; all in MDOT 
format. 

11. Provide all record keeping and reporting in Field Book and Field Manager, or 
their replacement per MDOT directions. 

12. Process pay estimates. 
13. Process work orders. 
14. Process contract modifications (change orders). 
15. Assist City in resolving problems and/or claims related to the project. 
16. Provide project close-out services to satisfaction of MDOT and City. 
17. Produce all final documents and files at completion of project to MDOT and City. 

 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Any additional services after acceptance of proposal will be administered as a Contract 
Amendment that must be approved by City Council, and after ordered by Purchase 
Order, prior to the start of any additional work. 
 



REQUIREMENTS: 
Scope of services shall be performed in compliance with: 

1. MDOT standards, procedures, and oversight. This includes MDOT Rail Safety 
Section. 

2. MDEQ and City of Owosso standards. 
3. SHPO standards, procedures, and acceptance. 
4. Local Agency HSIP program requirements and City of Owosso application for 

said funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS AND REFERENCES: 
The following attachments and references are part of this proposal: 

1. Master Agreement between the City of Owosso and Consultant: by reference. 
2. MDOT 2012 Standard Specifications for Construction, its Standard Plans, its 

policies and procedures for field inspection and materials testing; all by 
reference. 

3. MDOT Grant Narrative and select submittals dated July 5, 2017. 
4. Engineer’s Estimate of Probable Cost, dated August 1, 2016. 
5. Preliminary design sketches from grant application. 

 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES: 
The City agrees to pay the Consultant as full compensation for services rendered as set 
forth in this contract in the form of Cost-Not-To-Exceed as agreed upon under the 
Contract. Periodic progress payments shall be made on a monthly schedule, based 
upon percent of work completed. Additional compensation must be agreed to between 
both parties, in advance as stated in the Additional Services section of this RFP. 
 
SUBMITTALS EXPECTED FROM CONSULTANT: 
Consultant must submit four (4) copies of written proposals to the City of Owosso’s 
contact person no later than 3:00 p.m., Tuesday, February 20, 2018 to be considered.  
Please include within your proposal, a brief letter of understanding and scope of 
services that will be performed under this agreement. Please include information 
regarding firm background and experience relative to this project’s scope of work. 
Please include any specialized knowledge and qualifications that are specific to this 
project. Consultant’s proposal should include: 

1. Consultant’s team members and role. 
2. Consultant’s familiarity with MDOT local Agency Program, especially Safety 

Projects, with examples (three maximum) of similar projects. 
3. Consultant to affirm that given current workload and current capacity, how it may 

accomplish the project within the required time period. 
4. Level of Effort Estimate with classification and hour distribution of each team 

member, in tabular form. Consultant advised to build construction schedule 
based upon up to 50 construction work hours per week. 

6. Critical Path Bar Schedule of both design and construction phases of this project. 
Schedule should anticipate Consultant receiving its Notice-to-Proceed on March 
5, 2018. Schedule should include logical task process from project initiation 
through project closeout, with important milestones and critical dates. Proposed 



schedule expected to include MDOT bid-letting January, 2019 and construction 
start date no sooner than June 11, 2019. 

5. Cost Proposal identifying all costs for services offered as outlined in this 
proposal, plus any other anticipated costs (list as optional) that Consultant 
believes should be added to complete services to the City. 

 
ISSUING OFFICE: 
This RFP is issued by the City’s Department of Public Services. All correspondence, 
questions, and additional information regarding the RFP shall be addressed in written 
form and submitted no later than seven (7) days prior to the proposal letting date to: 

 
Mr. Randy Chesney, PE, City Engineer 
City of Owosso 
City Hall, 301 W. Main Street 
Owosso, MI 48867 
(989) 725-0550 (office) 
randy.chesney@ci.owosso.mi.us 
 

All responses to written questions will be made available to all three firms that are asked 
to submit proposals. Written proposals (total of four copies) must be sealed and 
delivered to the Department of Public Service no later than the date indicated within this 
RFP. 

mailto:randy.chesney@ci.owosso.mi.us


SELECTION AND AWARD PROCESS: 
The following table will be used by the City’s Selection Committee. The Consultant is 
advised that proposals will be weighed as illustrated herein. Therefore, the Consultant is 
advised to submit proposals that fully address selected criteria so as to gain a maximum 
score of 150 points from each committee member. The combined scores of the 
committee members will be used to establish the successful proposal. The City, at its 
sole discretion, may choose to interview the top rated firm at a future date. The following 
evaluation sheet will be used to determine which consultant’s proposal is ‘In the Best 
Interest of the City’: 
 
 
Firm: __________________________ 
 
 
 
Selection Criteria     Rating (1-5)  x Weight     =
 Score 
 

1. Firm’s History and Capability to Perform 
Required Services:        _______   x      5                _______ 

a. List of Sub-Consultant’s (If any). 
b. Design Services Experience. 
c. Construction Administration Experience. 
d. Quality Control Experience. 

 
2. Evaluation of Firm’s Key Personnel:     ________ x     10               ________ 

a) Experience of Key Members. 
b) Familiarity with Similar Projects. 

 
3. Performance Measures:       ________ x      5                 ________ 

a. Ability to Meet Schedule. 
b. Meet Established Project Budget. 
c. Firm’s performance on previous city of Owosso projects. 

 
4. Firm’s Pricing Proposal:        _______   x     10               ________ 

a. Understanding of Cost-Not-to-Exceed. 
b. Past practice experience on previous projects. 
c. Assurance that Current Pricing Will 

Fulfill Services. 
 

 
        Total Score           ________ 
 
 
 



  

 

 

 
          RICK SNYDER 

 GOVERNOR 

STATE  OF MICHIGAN 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  

LANSING 

 
KIRK T. STEUDLE 

       DIRECTOR 

 

MURRAY D. VAN WAGONER BUILDING • P.O. BOX 30050 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 
www.michigan.gov • (517) 373-2090 

LH-LAN-0 (01/11) 

February 15, 2018 
 
 

Mr. Randy Chesney 
City of Owosso 
301 West Main Street 
Owosso, Michigan  48867 
 
Dear Mr. Chesney: 
 

Project Name:  Washington Street 
Control Section:  HSIP 76000 

Job Number:  TBD 
 
The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) is pleased to inform you that the subject project has 
been approved for federal funding in the 2019 fiscal year (FY).  All agencies were previously notified by 
telephone and approved projects are posted on MDOT’s website at www.michigan.gov/mdot. 
 

Control Section:  HSIP 76000 - Job Number:  TBD 
Safety Improvement Project Approved Amount:  $726,825.00 
Federal Participation:  $600,000.00 
Project Name:  Washington Street 
Project Limits:  Washington Street from Gute Street to M-71 (Corunna Avenue) 
Work Description:  HMA cold milling and resurfacing, modify laneage to a standard 3 lane section with 
bike lanes, and install an all-way stop at the intersection of Stewart Street 

 
This project will be funded with 90 percent federal funds.  Unless otherwise approved in writing by MDOT 
at the time of obligation, the federally participating project costs for the 2019 Highway Safety Improvement 
Program (HSIP) are limited to the project costs submitted with the application and listed above, plus the 
lesser of an increase of 20 percent or $20,000 above the total project cost.  The maximum amount of federal 
funds allowed for this project is $600,000 for the construction phase let to contract, as long as the above 
listed limits are not exceeded.   
 
Preliminary engineering, construction engineering, and right-of-way costs are not eligible for 
reimbursement.  Nonparticipating construction items of work may be included in the overall project 
estimate, but are not reimbursable for federal funding.  Items such as decorative lighting, brick sidewalks, 
street pavers, or any items that are not safety related in nature are not eligible for federal aid.  These items 
will be reviewed once the preliminary plans are developed. 
 
Funds for this project must be obligated in FY 2019.  In order to accomplish this, the programming 
application form must be completed and returned to our office when the engineer’s estimate is completed.  
The programming application form is available on MDOT’s website at www.michigan.gov/mdot.  In the 
‘Doing Business’ menu, select ‘Forms’, under ‘Local Government’ select Program 
Application/Reimbursement Forms - Form 0258 is to be used for bridge projects and Form 0260 is to be 
used for road projects.  As plans near completion, a grade inspection (GI) meeting can then be scheduled 
with our office.   
 
Federal funds cannot be obligated until the following steps have been completed:  



Mr. Randy Chesney  
Page 2 
February 15, 2018 

• The Program Application has been completed  
• GI meeting has been held 
• Environmental/historical clearance is received 
• Permits are obtained and included in the project approval 
• Right-of-way issues are cleared 
• Final plans are submitted 
 
Local Agencies within Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) areas must coordinate with their MPO 
to ensure inclusion of their project in the area’s Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) for the fiscal 
year for which the project was selected.  MDOT’s Local Agency Programs Section will supply a list of 
selected projects to the MDOT Planning group, but it is the local agency’s responsibility to ensure these 
projects are included in the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). 
 
Provided MDOT has obligation authority remaining, HSIP funds will be obligated up through 
August 31, 2019.  Therefore, to ensure funds are obligated prior to this date, it is imperative that the 
project’s final package is completed and submitted to MDOT by August 17, 2019.  Once posted, the 
Local Agency Programs FY 2019 Project Planning Guide can be accessed at www.michigan.gov/mdotlap 
and contains the milestone dates required for a GI submittal in order to obligate your project for the fiscal 
year.  If your local agency wishes to obligate and construct your project prior to the fiscal year for which it 
was selected, they may do so by utilizing the advance construct process.  The Local Agency is responsible 
for ensuring the project is listed in the (S)TIP for both fiscal years (the year obligated and the year federal 
funds are converted). 
  
Every effort has been given to maintain a fiscally constrained program and maximize the use of limited 
available funds.  Projects will be handled on a first come, first served basis, so please make every effort to 
stay on schedule.  
 
If your project is not obligated in FY 2019, MDOT may elect to retract approved funding and you will be 
required to resubmit your project under a future call.  If a project has received prior written approval to be 
carried over to FY 2020, the agency will be scored significantly lower on subsequent project submittals for 
two years.  Funding for any 2019 project not obligated by FY 2020 will be rescinded.  Any changes in the 
scope of work or significant changes in project cost which cannot be justified will be denied. 
 
Please send the programming application form, GI and final plans to:   
 

Pamela R. Blazo, P.E.  
 Michigan Department of Transportation 
 Local Agency Programs, B215 
 425 W. Ottawa Street 
 P.O. Box 30050  
 Lansing, Michigan  48909 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Pamela Blazo, Safety Programs Engineer, at (517) 335-2224 or 
blazop@michigan.gov. 
 

Sincerely, 

  
 Pamela R. Blazo, Safety Engineer 

Local Agency Programs 



 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
  

301 W. MAIN    OWOSSO, MICHIGAN 48867-2958    WWW.CI.OWOSSO.MI.US 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 
DATE: March 1, 2018 
 
TO: Mayor Eveleth and the Owosso City Council 
  
FROM: Susan Montenegro  
 Asst. City Manager/Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: Downtown Facade Grant Professional Design Services 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The façade grant for five downtown properties includes six facades (one has a front and rear façade) has 
been signed and is awaiting final execution by the Michigan Economic Development Corporation. The 
next step is to prepare bid specifications and construction documents so that sealed bids can be received 
for each property. Due to the historic nature of the facades, the creation of these documents is highly 
specialized and will require professional assistance.  
 
Similar services were required early in the process to get preliminary construction estimates. At that time, 
staff received a list of recommended firms from the State Historic Preservation Office to perform such 
work. A request for qualifications invited architectural firms to submit their qualifications to the city for this 
purpose. H2A Architects, Inc. was found to be the most qualified bidder out of six firms and their services 
were utilized for preparation of the preliminary construction estimates. 
 
To expedite the current process for 2017-18 construction, as well as recognize the quality and unique 
circumstances under which such professional services are provided, I recommend the city continue to 
work with H2A Architects, Inc. under a new contract. The scope of services and maximum pricing is 
included in the attached documentation. H2A Architects, Inc. is proposing not-to-exceed costs of $60,600 
of which the city will be responsible to pay $30,300 as its local match portion.  
 
I recommend the city council approve the execution of a professional services agreement with H2A 
Architects, Inc. for the scope of work attached. I further recommend that the city commit its share of the 
design work (estimated at $30,300) and establish escrow accounts for all the property owners in the 
amounts required to cover each respective building’s share of the design fees.   
 



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

A RESOLULTION TO APPROVE THE PROFESSIONAL DESIGN SERVICES  
FOR THE 2017-18 OWOSSO FAÇADE PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Owosso recognizes the importance of its downtown as it relates to the 
economic and cultural development of the community, as well as the overall quality of life; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Owosso Master Plan indicates that investment in the downtown structures so 
that they can sustain modern economic and residential functions in the new economy is essential 
to the community’s future; and 
 
WHEREAS, six properties have been selected to receive façade grant support from the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation, with such properties listed as follows: 
 

114 W. Main St. 
114 N. Washington St.              
115 N. Washington St. 
116 N. Washington St. 
216 & 218 W. Main St. (front and rear façade work) 

 
WHEREAS, professional design services for construction documents and bid specifications are 
now required to bid the individual façade projects out, with the description of such services 
attached as submitted by Jackie Hoist, AIA of H2A Architects, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city finds H2A Architects, Inc. to have the necessary qualifications to perform the 
work as well as competitive pricing given the uncertain nature of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property owners will be responsible for 50% the costs associated with their 
respective façade designs, and the city will be responsible for the remaining 50% of the costs for 
a total of $60,600. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Owosso, Shiawassee 
County, Michigan that: 
 

FIRST: The City of Owosso has theretofore determined that it is advisable, necessary 
and in the public interest to engage the services of H2A Architects, Inc. for the 
provision of professional design services for construction documents and bid 
specifications to bid the Downtown Façade Improvements. 

 
SECOND: The mayor and city clerk are instructed and authorized to sign the professional 

services agreement between the city of Owosso, Michigan and H2A Architects, 
Inc. in the amount of $60,600.00. 

 
THIRD: The same council hereby directs staff to establish escrow accounts in which all 

engaged property owners will contribute the following amounts to cover the 
expected costs of the professional services for their portion of the design 
services:  

 
 $  9,480 114 W. Main St. 
 $  5,160 114 N. Washington St.              
 $  5,160 115 N. Washington St. 
 $  7,920 116 N. Washington St. 
 $  6,540 216 & 218 W. Main St. (front and rear façade work) 
 

FOURTH: The same council hereby directs staff to encumber $30,300 for its portion of said 
professional design services. 

 



������������	
�

�

�������
������������������������������ ����! ����������"#$��"�

%&'()

*

+%+,-./012&(,34546,7,8559,:;.<12<=>,34?4@,A,4BB9C),DEFGHIJKLMNMOPQRSMOPQTSMOPTQSMOPPQMUVWMXYYQMZGM[K\M]̂ \HI_UVM̀VaLILbL\MEcM]H_KIL\_La),+==,<'de(f,
<2f2<g2h),i+jk%klm,ne'f,+%+o,,-./012&(,'f,p<.(2/(2h,q>,r)s),t.p><'de(,uvw,v&h,%&(2<&v('.&v=,n<2v('2f),r&v0(e.<'x2h,<2p<.h0/('.&,.<,h'f(<'q0('.&,.;,
(e'f,+%+o,,-./012&(y,.<,v&>,p.<('.&,.;,'(y,1v>,<2f0=(,'&,f2g2<2,/'g'=,v&h,/<'1'&v=,p2&v=('2fy,v&h,w'==,q2,p<.f2/0(2h,(.,(e2,1vz'101,2z(2&(,p.ff'q=2,0&h2<,
(e2,=vw)M[KIaMWE_b̂ \VLM{UaMFHEWb_\WMZGM]̀]MaEcL{UH\MULMOO|R}|Y~MEVMYX�XT�XYOTMbVW\HM�HW\HM�E�QQQYPO~}P~M{KI_KM\�FIH\aMEVMYX�YX�XYOPSMUVWMIaMVELMcEHMH\aU�\�
rf2<,k.(2fmM �O�RT}T�}�T�

4

+--%n%�ks,+k-,-�u�n%�ksm,

[K\MUbLKEHMEcMLKIaMWE_b̂ \VLMKUaM

UWW\WMIVcEĤULIEVMV\\W\WMcEHMILaM

_Ê F�\LIEV�M[K\MUbLKEHM̂UGMU�aEM

KU�\MH\�Ia\WMLK\ML\�LMEcMLK\MEHIJIVU�M

]̀]MaLUVWUHWMcEĤ�M]VM��������������

�����������������LKULMVEL\aMUWW\WM

IVcEĤULIEVMUaM{\��MUaMH\�IaIEVaMLEMLK\M

aLUVWUHWMcEĤML\�LMIaMU�UI�UZ�\McHÊ M

LK\MUbLKEHMUVWMaKEb�WMZ\MH\�I\{\W�M]M

�\HLI_U�M�IV\MIVMLK\M�\cLM̂UHJIVMEcMLKIaM

WE_b̂ \VLMIVWI_UL\aM{K\H\MLK\MUbLKEHM

KUaMUWW\WMV\_\aaUHGMIVcEĤULIEVM

UVWM{K\H\MLK\MUbLKEHMKUaMUWW\WMLEMEHM

W\�\L\WMcHÊ MLK\MEHIJIVU�M]̀]ML\�L�

[KIaMWE_b̂ \VLMKUaMÎFEHLUVLM�\JU�M

_EVa\�b\V_\a�MDEVab�LULIEVM{ILKMUVM

ULLEHV\GMIaM\V_EbHUJ\WM{ILKMH\aF\_LM

LEMILaM_Ê F�\LIEVMEHM̂EWIcI_ULIEV�

�������� ¡¢£¤ ¢¥ ¦§ ̈©¤ ª«¤¬̈¤̈© £¢® ¦§ ̄¤°±²¢±® ¬ ̈©¤ ®¤¢± ª«¦ ª©¦²¥¢¬£ 
³́©̈¤¤¬
µ¶·̧¹º»¼½¾̧¿·¼¿ÀÁÂÃ̧¼ÁÄ¾̧Åº·ÂÆ̧Á·¼̧ÄÃÁ»ÇÈ

	��É��� ̈©¤ Ê±Ë©̈¤Ë̈Ì¥ ËÍ¤¬̈ £¤¬̈§¤£ ¢¥ ̈©¤ Î«¬¤±Ï
µÐÁÅÃ¾̧ÑÃÒÁŅ̃½ÂÁÂÓ½¾̧Á¼¼»Ã½½̧Á·¼̧ºÂÆÃ»̧¿·Ôº»ÅÁÂ¿º·È

Ṏ® ¦§ Î«¦¥¥¦    
Ö×Ø ÙÚ Û¢¬ Ü̈±¤¤̈  
 Î«¦¥¥¦Ý ÛÞ ßààáâ 
  

¢¬£ ̈©¤ Ê±Ë©̈¤Ë̈Ï
µÐÁÅÃ¾̧ÑÃÒÁŅ̃½ÂÁÂÓ½¾̧Á¼¼»Ã½½̧Á·¼̧ºÂÆÃ»̧¿·Ôº»ÅÁÂ¿º·È

 ãäÊ Ê±Ë©̈¤Ë̈¥ Þ¬ËÚ   
 åØ×× æ¢ç¤¤± è¦¢£ 
 Ü²̈¤ é 
 ê¢ë¥¦¬ ÛÞ  ßàßäÖ 

§¦± ̈©¤ §¦ÍÍ¦«¬́ ì±¦í¤Ë̈Ï
µÐÁÅÃ¾̧ÑºÀÁÂ¿º·̧Á·¼̧¼ÃÂÁ¿ÑÃ¼̧¼Ã½À»¿îÂ¿º·È

Ṏ® ¦§ Î«¦¥¥¦ ̄¢Ë¢£¤ ïḉ±¢£¤¥
 ê¦«¬̈¦«¬ Î«¦¥¥¦Ý ÛË©́¢¬
¢̄Ë¢£¤ ²ḉ±¢£¤¥ §¦±Ï
ØØß ðÚ Ù¢¥©¬́ ¦̈¬
ØØñ ðÚ Ù¢¥©¬́ ¦̈¬
ØØá ðÚ Ù¢¥©¬́ ¦̈¬
äØá ò äØà Ù Û¢¬
ØØß ÙÚ Û¢¬

ª©¤ Î«¬¤± ¢¬£ Ê±Ë©̈¤Ë̈ ¢́±¤¤ ¢¥ §¦ÍÍ¦«¥Ú



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�

cdefghijhdkclmfgn

o lplcldfhlpjikqdclip

r dkmslcgmctnhkgnuipnlelflclgn

v nmiughijhdkmslcgmctnhednlmhngkwlmgn

x dyylclipdfhngkwlmgn

z i{pgktnhkgnuipnlelflclgn

| minchijhcsgh{ik}

~ miu�kl�scnhdpyhflmgpngn

� mfdlqnhdpyhylnu�cgn

� cgkqlpdcliphikhn�nugpnlip

o� qlnmgffdpgi�nhukiwlnlipn

oo miqugpndclip

or nugmldfhcgkqnhdpyhmipylclipn

ov nmiughijhcsghd�kggqgpc

g�slelchdhhhlplcldfhlpjikqdclip

dkclmfghohhhlplcldfhlpjikqdclip
�ho�o��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������
�����������¡�
¢£¤¥¦§̈©̈ª«¬®̄®©ª°±ª²³®©®́§ª²³µ¤¶¥́©®¤³±ª́³·ª®³̧¤¶¦¤¶́©̈ª®©ª®³©¤ª©̈ª°¹¶̈̈ ¥̈³©ª́©ªº̈ ©̧®¤³ª»¼½¾±ª¤¶ª¿©́©̈ª̄̈§¤Àª²³®©®́§ª
²³µ¤¶¥́©®¤³ª¿Á̧ª́¿ª·̈©́®§¿ª¤µª©̈ªÂ¶¤Ã̧̈©Ä¿ª¿®©̈ª́³·ª¦¶¤¹¶́¥±ªÅÀ³̈¶Ä¿ª̧¤³©¶́ ©̧¤¶¿ª́³·ª̧¤³¿Á§©́³©¿±ª°¶̧®©̧̈©Ä¿ª
¤̧³¿Á§©́³©¿±ªÅÀ³̈¶Ä¿ª̄Á·¹̈©ªµ¤¶ª©̈ª£¤¿©ª¤µª©̈ªÆ¤¶Ç±ª́Á©¤¶®È̈·ª¶̈¦¶̈¿̈³©́©®É̈¿±ª́³©®̧®¦́©̈·ª¦¶¤̧Á¶̈¥̈³©ª¥̈©¤·±ª
³́·ª¤©̈¶ª®³µ¤¶¥́©®¤³ª¶̈§̈É́³©ª©¤ª©̈ªÂ¶¤Ã̧̈©½Ê

�Ë��Ì����ÍÎ����ÏÐÐ��Ð�Î���Î��Ñ�Ò����Ó�Ô�Ì¡�Õ���������Ì�Ð�������Î������������Ö��������������Î�������������×�×�
����Ó����Ô�������������������������Ø�������������×�×�

�ho�r�����ÍÎ���×����������������������������������������������Ô����������ÓÔ����������Ë�����������������Ù��Ú�����
��������������Î¡

�o Ë���������������������Ô����������¡

�Û�Ì��Ü �ÝÜ�Þ�

�r ÓÔ����������Ë��������������¡

�ßÔ���� �ÝÜ�à�

�ho�v�����ÍÎ��������������������Ì����Ì���������������������������á�â����������� ���Î�Ø�� ��������ã��������Ô���
��������������Ì����������Ì����������� ����������Ø��� �����ÍÎ����������������������������������������Ì���ÖÔ�������
�����Ô�� ��������������×�����Ø����������������������×��������������á�



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

c

defghijklkkkdehmgfjhfnokejopqrogsgigfgjo
tkluvwxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w�|��~�zw�yzw�|��z��~����w�z|�~}z�w��w�z�w��|�yw~�w�y~�w{�|zz�z���

tklulwxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w�z|��|�w~��w�z|�~}z�w}���~��z��w�~�yw�yzw�|��z��~����w��~��w���w}�|zw�|�~��|~��w�|��~�z�w��w
�|}y~�z}��w�|�}�~}~��w~�w�yzw���zw�|w�~�~��|w��}��~��w���z|w�yzw���zw�|w�~�~��|w}~|}������}z��wxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w
�z|��|�w~��w�z|�~}z�w��wz��z�~�~�����w��w~�w}���~��z��w�~�yw��}yw�|��z��~����w��~��w���w}�|zw���w�yzw�|�z|��w�|��|z��w��w
�yzw�|��z}��w

tklu�wxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w~�z��~��w�w|z�|z�z����~�zw���y�|~�z�w��w�}�w��w�zy���w��w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�~�yw|z��z}�w��w�yzw
�|��z}��

tklu�w��}z��w�~�yw�yzw���z|��w�����z��zw���w}���z���w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w���wz����zw~�w���w�}�~�~���w�|w�}}z��w���w
z������z���w~��z|z��w�|w}���|~���~��w�y��w�����w|z��������w���z�|w��w}���|��~�zw�yzw{|}y~�z}���w�|��z��~����w
�����z��w�~�yw|z��z}�w��w�y~�w�|��z}��

tklu�wxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w��~���~�w�yzw������~��w~���|��}zw��|w�yzw��|��~��w��w�y~�w{�|zz�z���w��w���w��w�yzw
|z��~|z�z���w�z�w��|�yw�z���wz�}zz�w�yzw���z�w���w�~�~��w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w��|�����w��~���~���w�yzw���z|w�y���w|z~���|�zw
�yzw{|}y~�z}�w��|w���w���~�~����w}����
� ¡¢£¤¥¦§̈¤§©¢ª̈«£¡̈¬¥¥¤ª̈®¦̈¥£ª̄°«£±¢̈±®²¢°«³¢́̈«£¡̈®¤µ¢°̈¥£ª̄°«£±¢̈°¢¶̄¥°¢¢£¤ª̈«©©¬¥±«·¬¢̈¤®̈¤µ¢̧̈ ³°¢¢¢£¤́̈¥¦̈
«£§¹º

uv »z�z|��w¼~��~�~��

½¾�¿¿¿�¿¿¿wwÀzzw��y~�~�w�Á�ww

ul {������~�zw¼~��~�~��

w½¾�¿¿¿�¿¿¿wwÀzzw��y~�~�w�Á�ww

u� Â�|�z|��wÃ���z����~��

w½Ä¿¿�¿¿¿wwÀzzw��y~�~�w�Á�w

u� �|��z��~����w¼~��~�~��

w½¾�¿¿¿�¿¿¿wwÀzzw��y~�~�w�Á�w

defghijk�kkkohqpjkqÅkdehmgfjhfnoksdoghkojeÆghjo
tk�uvwxyzw{|}y~�z}���wÁ��~}wÀz|�~}z�w}���~��w��w�y��zw�z�}|~�z�w~�w{|�~}�zwÇw���w~�}���zw�����w���w}������|�w��|�}��|���w
�z}y��~}���w���wz�z}�|~}��wz��~�zz|~��w�z|�~}z��wÀz|�~}z�w���w�z�w��|�yw~�w�y~�w{|�~}�zwÇw�|zw{��~�~����wÀz|�~}z��

tk�uvuvwxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w�����zw�yzw{|}y~�z}���w�z|�~}z��w}������w�~�yw�yzw���z|�w|z�z�|}yw����~}���zw�z�~��w
}|~�z|~��w���z��w�|��z}�w�zz�~����w}�����~}��zw�~�yw�z��z|�w��w�yzw�|��z}�w�z��w���w|z��|�w�|��|z��w��w�yzw���z|�w

tk�uvulwxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w}��|�~���zw~��w�z|�~}z�w�~�yw�y��zw�z|�~}z�w�|��~�z�w��w�yzw���z|w���w�yzw���z|��w
}�����������wxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w�zwz��~��z�w��w|z��w��w�yzw�}}�|�}�w���w}����z�z�z��w��w�z|�~}z�w���w~���|���~��w
��|�~�yz�w��w�yzw���z|w���w�yzw���z|��w}�����������wxyzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w�|��~�zw�|����w�|~��z�w���~}zw��w�yzw���z|w
~�w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�z}��z�w���|zw��w���wz||�|�w��~��~��w�|w~�}���~��z�}�w~�w��}yw�z|�~}z�w�|w~���|���~���

tk�uvu�w{�w����w��w�|�}�~}���zw���z|w�yzw���zw��w�y~�w{�|zz�z���w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w����~�w��|w�yzw���z|��w���|����w�w
�}yz���zw��|w�yzw�z|��|���}zw��w�yzw{|}y~�z}���w�z|�~}z��wxyzw�}yz���zw~�~�~����w�y���w~�}���zw���~}~���z�w���z�w��|w�yzw
}���z�}z�z��w��w}����|�}�~��w���w��|wÀ�������~��wÃ����z�~��w��w�yzwÂ�|�w��w�z�w��|�yw~�w�yzw��~�~��w����|���~���wxyzw
�}yz���zw�y���w~�}���zw�������}z�w��|w�z|~���w��w�~�zw|z��~|z�w��|w�yzw���z|��w|z�~z��w��|w�yzw�z|��|���}zw��w�yzw
���z|��w}�����������w���w��|w���|����w��w����~��~���w��w���y�|~�~z�wy��~��w��|~��~}�~��w��z|w�yzw�|��z}��w��}zw
���|��z�w��w�yzw���z|�w�~�zw�~�~��wz�����~�yz�w��w�yzw�}yz���zw�y���w����wz�}z��w��|w|z�������zw}���z�w�zwz�}zz�z�w��w
�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�|w���z|�wÂ~�yw�yzw���z|��w���|�����w�yzw{|}y~�z}�w�y���w������w�yzw�}yz���z�w~�w�z}z���|��w��w�yzw�|��z}�w
�|�}zz��w���~�w�yzw}���z�}z�z��w��w}����|�}�~���w



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

c

defghgijklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujvwrjxmjomsywvsqxumjzwojtvj{|vmo}sj~qomprq�mjwojs�xsrqr�rqwvj�t~mj|qrlw�rjrlmjnoplqrmpr}sj
tyyow�tu�

defghg�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuu�jtrjtyyowyoqtrmjrq�ms�jpwvrtprjrlmj�w�mov�mvrtujt�rlwoqrqmsjom��qom~jrwjtyyow�mjrlmj
�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrsjtv~jrlmjmvrqrqmsjyow�q~qv�j�rquqr�jsmo�qpmsjrwjrlmj�ow�mpr�j�vj~msq�vqv�jrlmj�ow�mpr�jrlmj
noplqrmprjsltuujomsywv~jrwjtyyuqptxumj~msq�vjom��qom�mvrsjq�ywsm~jx�js�plj�w�mov�mvrtujt�rlwoqrqmsjtv~jx�js�plj
mvrqrqmsjyow�q~qv�j�rquqr�jsmo�qpms�

defghg�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujtssqsrjrlmj{|vmojqvjpwvvmprqwvj|qrljrlmj{|vmo}sjomsywvsqxquqr�jzwojzquqv�j~wp��mvrsj
om��qom~jzwojrlmjtyyow�tujwzj�w�mov�mvrtujt�rlwoqrqmsjlt�qv�j��oqs~qprqwvjw�mojrlmj�ow�mpr�

defg�e���������e������e�����e��������e�e��e��� ¡¢£¢e¤¥¢£�e��£ ¡�¦�e��¥§�̈©§ee�££e�ª«¡¬¡§e�
defg�ghj
®̄°±°²±°³́µ¶·̧¹̧º̧·»
defgfe������e����¼½�����e�����e��������
defgfghj¾tsm~jwvjrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tujwzjrlmj¿plm�trqpj�msq�vj�wp��mvrs�jtv~jwvjrlmj{|vmo}sjt�rlwoqÀtrqwvjwzjtv�j
t~��sr�mvrsjqvjrlmj�ow�mprjom��qom�mvrsjtv~jrlmjx�~�mrjzwojrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�jrlmjnoplqrmprjsltuujyomytomj�msq�vj
�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrsjzwojrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tu�jklmj�msq�vj�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrsjsltuujquu�srotrmjtv~j~mspoqxmj
rlmj~m�muwy�mvrjwzjrlmjtyyow�m~j¿plm�trqpj�msq�vj�wp��mvrsjtv~jsltuujpwvsqsrjwzj~ot|qv�sjtv~jwrlmoj~wp��mvrsj
qvpu�~qv�jyutvs�jsmprqwvs�jmum�trqwvs�jr�yqptujpwvsro�prqwvj~mrtqus�jtv~j~qt�ot��trqpjut�w�rsjwzjx�qu~qv�js�srm�sjrwjzqÃj
tv~j~mspoqxmjrlmjsqÀmjtv~jpltotprmojwzjrlmj�ow�mprjtsjrwjtoplqrmpr�otu�jsro�pr�otu�j�mpltvqptujtv~jmumproqptujs�srm�s�jtv~j
s�pljwrlmojmum�mvrsjtsj�t�jxmjtyyowyoqtrm�jklmj�msq�vj�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrsjsltuujtuswjqvpu�~mjw�ruqvmj
sympqzqptrqwvsjrltrjq~mvrqz�j�t�woj�trmoqtusjtv~js�srm�sjtv~jmsrtxuqsljqvj�mvmotujrlmqoj��tuqr�jum�mus�

defgfg�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuuj�y~trmjrlmjmsrq�trmjwzjrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�j

defgfgfjklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujs�x�qrjrlmj�msq�vj�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrsjrwjrlmj{|vmo�jt~�qsmjrlmj{|vmojwzjtv�j
t~��sr�mvrsjrwjrlmjmsrq�trmjwzjrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�jtv~jom��msrjrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tu�j

defgie�½����¤���½�e�½�¤�����e�����e��������
defgighj¾tsm~jwvjrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tujwzjrlmj�msq�vj�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrs�jtv~jwvjrlmj{|vmo}sjt�rlwoqÀtrqwvjwzj
tv�jt~��sr�mvrsjqvjrlmj�ow�mprjom��qom�mvrsjtv~jrlmjx�~�mrjzwojrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�jrlmjnoplqrmprjsltuujyomytomj
�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrsjzwojrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tu�jklmj�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrsjsltuujquu�srotrmjtv~j~mspoqxmjrlmj
z�orlmoj~m�muwy�mvrjwzjrlmjtyyow�m~j�msq�vj�m�muwy�mvrj�wp��mvrsjtv~jsltuujpwvsqsrjwzj�ot|qv�sjtv~j
¿ympqzqptrqwvsjsmrrqv�jzworljqvj~mrtqujrlmj��tuqr�jum�musjwzj�trmoqtusjtv~js�srm�sjtv~jwrlmojom��qom�mvrsjzwojrlmj
pwvsro�prqwvjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�jklmj{|vmojtv~jnoplqrmprjtpÂvw|um~�mjrltrjqvjwo~mojrwjpwvsro�prjrlmjÁwoÂjrlmj�wvrotprwoj
|quujyow�q~mjt~~qrqwvtujqvzwo�trqwv�jqvpu�~qv�j¿lwyj�ot|qv�s�j�ow~�prj�trt�j¿t�yumsjtv~jwrlmojsq�qutojs�x�qrrtus�j
|lqpljrlmjnoplqrmprjsltuujom�qm|jqvjtppwo~tvpmj|qrlj¿mprqwvjÄ�Å�Æ�j

defgig�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujqvpwoywotrmjqvrwjrlmj�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrsjrlmj~msq�vjom��qom�mvrsjwzj�w�mov�mvrtuj
t�rlwoqrqmsjlt�qv�j��oqs~qprqwvjw�mojrlmj�ow�mpr�j

defgigfj��oqv�jrlmj~m�muwy�mvrjwzjrlmj�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrs�jrlmjnoplqrmprjsltuujtssqsrjrlmj{|vmojqvjrlmj
~m�muwy�mvrjtv~jyomytotrqwvjwzjÇÈÉjxq~~qv�jtv~jyowp�om�mvrjqvzwo�trqwvjrltrj~mspoqxmsjrlmjrq�m�jyutpmjtv~jpwv~qrqwvsj
wzjxq~~qv��jqvpu�~qv�jxq~~qv�jwojyowywstujzwo�sjtsj|muujtsjqvpu�sqwvjwzjrlmj{|vmo}sjxq~jrm�yutrmj~wp��mvrsÊjÇËÉjrlmj
zwo�jwzjt�omm�mvrjxmr|mmvjrlmj{|vmojtv~j�wvrotprwoÊjtv~jÇÄÉjrlmj�wv~qrqwvsjwzjrlmj�wvrotprjzwoj�wvsro�prqwvj
ÇÌmvmotu�j¿�yyum�mvrto�jtv~jwrlmoj�wv~qrqwvsÉ�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujtuswjpw�yqumjtjyow�mprj�tv�tujrltrjqvpu�~msjrlmj
�wv~qrqwvsjwzjrlmj�wvrotprjzwoj�wvsro�prqwvjtv~j¿ympqzqptrqwvsjtv~j�t�jqvpu�~mjxq~~qv�jom��qom�mvrsjtv~jst�yumj
zwo�s�j

defgigij�zjsympqzqptuu�jom��msrm~jx�jrlmj{|vmo�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuuj�y~trmjrlmjmsrq�trmjzwojrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�j

defgig�jklmjnoplqrmprjsltuujs�x�qrjrlmj�wvsro�prqwvj�wp��mvrsjrwjrlmj{|vmo�jtv~jqzjmsrq�trmsj|momjom��msrm~jrwjxmj
�y~trm~�jt~�qsmjrlmj{|vmojwzjtv�jt~��sr�mvrsjrwjrlmjmsrq�trmjwzjrlmj�wsrjwzjrlmjÁwoÂ�jrtÂmjtv�jtprqwvjom��qom~j�v~moj
¿mprqwvjÅ�Í�jtv~jom��msrjrlmj{|vmo}sjtyyow�tu�j



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�

cdefgdhijjikldmndkolmpiqpimkdrsqtodtonuivot
cdefgfwdlokonqx
yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|������|�z{|���{~|��|{�������z���|�|����|��|�~���{����{|����~����~��|���������|�z{|���{~��|���~����|
��|�z{|�����~������|�����{����|�z{|}~�z��{��|�z���|������|�z{|���{~|��|���|���������|{��z{~|����{�����{|����|�~|
�{������{�|�~��������|���|�����~����|~{�������{�{��|��|����|�~|�~��������|���|�{�{~������|�z{|����{�����|���|�~|
�~�������|��|����|����|���|���~����|���|�~{��~���|����~����|��~|�����~�������|

cdefgf�dvm ropipiuodhijjikl
cdefgf�fw|¡������|�����{���|�z���|�������|��|�������|~{¢��~{�{���|���|�~����{�|����~���|�����{����|

cdefgf�f�|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|������|�z{|���{~|��|�������|�z{|£~�¤{��|��
fw �~���~���|�z{|~{�~��������|��|¡������|�����{���|��~|����~�������|��|�~���{����{|����{~��|
f� ����~�������|�z{|¡������|�����{���|��|�~���{����{|����{~��|���|�����������|�|���|��|����~���������
fe �~����¥���|���|����������|�|�~{¦���|����{~{��{|��~|�~���{����{|����{~��
f§ �~{��~���|~{�����{�|��|¢�{������|�~��|�~���{����{|����{~�|���|�~�������|���~����������|���|

���{~�~{�������|��|�z{|¡������|�����{���|��|���|�~���{����{|����{~�|��|�z{|��~�|��|���{����|���
fg �~����¥���|���|����������|�z{|��{����|��|�z{|�����|���|����{¢�{����|�����{�����|���|����~�������|�z{|

�������|~{������|��|��~{��{�|��|�z{|���{~�|

cdefgf�fe|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|������{~|~{¢�{���|��~|��������������|��|�z{|¡������|�����{���|�{~���|��������������|���|
�z���|�~{��~{|���|����~����{|���{���|��{��������|���~��{�|�������������|��|���|�~���{����{|����{~��|

©̈ª«ª¬«ª®̄°±²³²́²±µ
cdefgfd

cdef¶dvmktpn·vpimkdrsqtodtonuivot
cdef¶fwdlokonqx
cdef¶fwfw|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|�~����{|�����{�|��������~�����|��|�z{|����~���|�{��{{�|�z{|���{~|���|�z{|����~����~|��|
�{�|��~�z|�{���|���|��|}̧}|�����{��|}�¹�º»�¹¹¼�|½{�{~��|����������|��|�z{|����~���|��~|�����~�������|̧�|�z{|
���{~|���|����~����~|������|}̧}|�����{��|}�¹�»�¹¹¼�|�z��{|�������������|�z���|���|���{��|�z{|}~�z��{����|
�{~���{�|���{~|�z��|}�~{{�{��|���{��|�z{|���{~|���|�z{|}~�z��{��|��{��|�z��|}�~{{�{���

cdef¶fwf�|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|�~����{|�����{�|�{~���{�|���������|�|�~{¦�����~������|�{{����|���|�|�����|����{�����||���|
��|�|�����{�|�����|�����{|���|�������|���z|�z{|���{~|��~���|�z{|�����~������|£z��{|¾{~���{��|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|z��{|
���z�~���|��|���|��|�{z���|��|�z{|���{~|����|��|�z{|{¿�{��|�~����{�|��|�z��|}�~{{�{���|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|���|z��{|
����~��|��{~�|�z�~�{|���|�~|~{������������|��~|�z{|�����~������|�{����|�{�z����|�{�z��¢�{��|�{¢�{��{�|�~|�~��{��~{��|�~|
��~|���{��|�~{��������|���|�~��~���|��|����{�����|���z|�z{|À�~Á�|��~|�z���|�z{|}~�z��{��|�{|~{��������{|��~|�z{|
����~����~��|�����~{|��|�{~��~�|�z{|À�~Á|��|����~����{|���z|�z{|~{¢��~{�{���|��|�z{|����~���|�����{����|yz{|
}~�z��{��|�z���|�{|~{��������{|��~|�z{|}~�z��{����|�{����{��|����|�~|����������|���|�z���|���|z��{|����~��|��{~|�~|�z�~�{|
���|���|�z���|���|�{|~{��������{|��~�|����|�~|���������|��|�z{|����~����~|�~|��|���|��z{~|�{~����|�~|{�����{�|�{~��~����|
��~�����|��|�z{|À�~Á�

cdef¶fwfe|¾��¤{��|��|¾{�����|����|�z{|}~�z��{����|~{������������|��|�~����{|�����~������|£z��{|¾{~���{�|����{��{�|���z|
�z{|���~�|��|�z{|����~���|��~|�����~������|���|�{~�����{�|��|�z{|���{|�z{|}~�z��{��|����{�|�z{|�����|�{~�������{|��~|
£���{���|

cdef¶f�douqx·qpimktdmÂdpsodÃmnÄ
cdef¶f�fw|yz{|}~�z��{��|�z���|�����|�z{|���{|��|�|�����{�|�����|��||�{���~�z|��|¾{�����|������|��|�{���{|�{�{~����|�������~|
���z|�z{|||¢������|��|�z{|�z{|À�~Á|�����{�{��|���|��|�{�{~���{�|��|�{�{~���|��|�z{|À�~Á|���{~�{�|��|�{���|�{~��~�{�|��|
�|����{~|����������|�z��|�z{|À�~Á�|�z{�|�����|�����{�{��|����|�{|��|����~����{|���z|�z{|����~���|�����{����|
Å��{�{~�|�z{|}~�z��{��|�z���|���|�{|~{¢��~{�|��|��Á{|{¿z������{|�~|����������|��¦���{|����{������|��|�z{�Á|�z{|¢������|
�~|¢�������|��|�z{|À�~Á�|��|�z{|�����|��|�z{|���{|�������|�z{|}~�z��{��|�z���|Á{{�|�z{|���{~|~{��������|����~�{�|�����|
�z{|¢������|��|�z{|À�~Á|�����{�{��|���|~{��~�|��|�z{|���{~|���|Á����|�{��������|�~��|�z{|����~���|�����{���|���|
�{�{���|���|�{����{���{�|���{~�{�|��|�z{|À�~Á�|

cdef¶f�f�|yz{|}~�z��{��|z��|�z{|���z�~���|��|~{¤{��|À�~Á|�z��|��{�|���|�����~�|��|�z{|����~���|�����{����|Àz{�{�{~|
�z{|}~�z��{��|������{~�|��|�{�{���~�|�~|��������{�|�z{|}~�z��{��|�z���|z��{|�z{|���z�~���|��|~{¢��~{|����{�����|�~|�{�����|



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

c

defghifjdklfmnfoppdkqonpifrmghfghifskdtmumdnufdefghifvdngkopgfwdpxyinguzfrhighikfdkfndgfuxphfjdklfmufeo{kmpogiqzf
mnugo||iqfdkfpdys|igiq}f~dritikzfnimghikfghmufoxghdkmg�fdefghif�kphmgipgfndkfofqipmumdnfyoqifmnf�ddqfeomghfimghikfgdf
i�ikpmuifdkfndgfgdfi�ikpmuifuxphfoxghdkmg�fuho||f�mtifkmuifgdfofqxg�fdkfkiusdnum{m|mg�fdefghif�kphmgipgfgdfghifvdngkopgdkzf
�x{pdngkopgdkuzfyogikmo|fonqfi�xmsyingfuxss|mikuzfghimkfo�ingufdkfiys|d�iiufdkfdghikfsikudnufdkfingmgmiufsikedkymn�f
sdkgmdnufdefghifjdkl}

���������f�hif�kphmgipgfuho||fmngikskigfonqfqipmqifyoggikufpdnpiknmn�fsikedkyonpifxnqikzfonqfki�xmkiyingufdezfghif
vdngkopgfwdpxyingufdnfrkmgginfki�xiugfdefimghikfghif�rnikfdkfvdngkopgdk}f�hif�kphmgipg�ufkiusdnuifgdfuxphfki�xiuguf
uho||f{ifyoqifmnfrkmgmn�frmghmnfon�fgmyif|mymgufo�kiiqfxsdnfdkfdghikrmuifrmghfkioudno{|ifskdysgniuu}

���������f�ngikskigogmdnufonqfqipmumdnufdefghif�kphmgipgfuho||f{ifpdnumugingfrmghfghifmngingfdefonqfkioudno{|�fmneiko{|if
ekdyfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyingufonqfuho||f{ifmnfrkmgmn�fdkfmnfghifedkyfdefqkormn�u}fjhinfyolmn�fuxphfmngikskigogmdnuf
onqfqipmumdnuzfghif�kphmgipgfuho||finqiotdkfgdfuipxkifeomghex|fsikedkyonpif{�f{dghf�rnikfonqfvdngkopgdkzfuho||fndgf
uhdrfsokgmo|mg�fgdfimghikzfonqfuho||fndgf{if|mo{|ifedkfkiux|gufdefmngikskigogmdnufdkfqipmumdnufkinqikiqfmnf�ddqfeomgh}f�hif
�kphmgipg�ufqipmumdnufdnfyoggikufki|ogmn�fgdfoiughigmpfieeipgfuho||f{ifemno|fmefpdnumugingfrmghfghifmngingfi�skiuuiqfmnfghif
vdngkopgfwdpxyingu}

���������f�n|iuufghif�rnikfonqfvdngkopgdkfqium�nogifondghikfsikudnfgdfuiktifoufonf�nmgmo|fwipmumdnf�olikzfoufghogfgikyf
mufqiemniqfmnf���fwdpxyingf���������zfghif�kphmgipgfuho||fkinqikfmnmgmo|fqipmumdnufdnfv|omyuf{igriinfghif�rnikfonqf
vdngkopgdkfoufskdtmqiqfmnfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyingu}f

���������������������� ��¡�¢£�¤��� �� ¤����� �
��������¥f�hif�rnikfuho||fkitmirfghifvdngkopgdkufki�xiugfedkfso�yingfonqfghif�kphmgipgfuho||fdn|�frhinfusipmempo||�f
ki�xiugiqf{�fghif�rnikzfkitmirfonqfpikgme�fghifoydxngufqxifghifvdngkopgdkfonqfuho||fmuuxifpikgmempogiufmnfuxphf
oydxngu}f�hif�kphmgipg�ufpikgmempogmdnfedkfso�yingfuho||fpdnugmgxgifofkiskiuingogmdnfgdfghif�rnikzf{ouiqfdnfghif
�kphmgipg�ufito|xogmdnfdefghifjdklfoufskdtmqiqfmnf�ipgmdnf¦}§}�fonqfdnfghifqogofpdyskmumn�fghifvdngkopgdk�uf
�ss|mpogmdnfedkf̈o�yingzfghogzfgdfghif{iugfdefghif�kphmgipg�uflndr|iq�izfmnedkyogmdnfonqf{i|miezfghifjdklfhouf
skd�kiuuiqfgdfghifsdmngfmnqmpogiqfonqfghogfghif�xo|mg�fdefghifjdklfmufmnfoppdkqonpifrmghfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyingu}f�hif
edki�dmn�fkiskiuingogmdnufokifux{©ipgfª�«fgdfonfito|xogmdnfdefghifjdklfedkfpdnedkyonpifrmghfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyinguf
xsdnf�x{ugongmo|fvdys|igmdnzfª�«fgdfkiux|gufdefux{ui�xingfgiugufonqfmnusipgmdnuzfª¦«fgdfpdkkipgmdnfdefymndkfqitmogmdnuf
ekdyfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyingufskmdkfgdfpdys|igmdnzfonqfª¬«fgdfusipmempf�xo|mempogmdnufi�skiuuiqf{�fghif�kphmgipg}

���������f�hifmuuxonpifdefofvikgmempogifedkf̈o�yingfuho||fndgf{ifofkiskiuingogmdnfghogfghif�kphmgipgfhoufª�«fyoqif
i�hoxugmtifdkfpdngmnxdxufdnumgifmnusipgmdnufgdfphiplfghif�xo|mg�fdkf�xongmg�fdefghifjdklzfª�«fkitmiriqfpdnugkxpgmdnf
yionuzfyighdquzfgiphnm�xiuzfui�xinpiufdkfskdpiqxkiuzfª¦«fkitmiriqfpdsmiufdefki�xmumgmdnufkipimtiqfekdyf
�x{pdngkopgdkufonqfyogikmo|fuxss|mikufonqfdghikfqogofki�xiugiqf{�fghif�rnikfgdfux{ugongmogifghifvdngkopgdk�ufkm�hgfgdf
so�yingzfdkfª¬«foupikgomniqfhdrfdkfedkfrhogfsxksduifghifvdngkopgdkfhoufxuiqfydni�fskitmdxu|�fsomqfdnfoppdxngfdefghif
vdngkopgf�xy}

���������f�hif�kphmgipgfuho||fyomngomnfofkipdkqfdefghif�ss|mpogmdnufonqfvikgmempogiufedkf̈o�ying}

���������®̄£����°�
��������¥f�hif�rnikfuho||fkitmirfghifvdngkopgdkufux{ymggo|fuphiqx|ifonqffghif�kphmgipgfuho||fdn|�frhinfusipmempo||�f
ki�xiugiqf{�fghif�rnikfkitmirfghifvdngkopgdk�ufux{ymggo|fuphiqx|ifonqfuho||fndgfxnkioudno{|�fqi|o�fdkfrmghhd|qf
osskdto|}f�hif�kphmgipg�ufopgmdnfmnfkitmirmn�fux{ymggo|ufuho||f{ifgolinfmnfoppdkqonpifrmghfghifosskdtiqfux{ymggo|f
uphiqx|ifdkzfmnfghifo{uinpifdefonfosskdtiqfux{ymggo|fuphiqx|izfrmghfkioudno{|ifskdysgniuufrhm|ifo||drmn�fuxeempmingf
gmyifmnfghif�kphmgipg�ufskdeiuumdno|f©xq�yingfgdfsikymgfoqi�xogifkitmir}

���������f�nfoppdkqonpifrmghfghifux{ymggo|fuphiqx|izfghif�rnikfuho||fkitmirfghifvdngkopgdk�ufux{ymggo|ufonqfghif
�kphmgipgfuho||fdn|�frhinfusipmempo||�fki�xiugiqf{�fghif�rnikfkitmirfonqfosskdtifdkfgolifdghikfosskdskmogifopgmdnf
xsdnfghifvdngkopgdk�ufux{ymggo|ufuxphfouf�hdsfwkormn�uzf̈kdqxpgfwogofonqf�oys|iuzf{xgfdn|�fedkfghif|mymgiqfsxksduif
defphiplmn�fedkfpdnedkyonpifrmghfmnedkyogmdnf�mtinfonqfghifqium�nfpdnpisgfi�skiuuiqfmnfghifvdngkopgfwdpxyingu}f
±itmirfdefuxphfux{ymggo|ufmufndgfedkfghifsxksduifdefqigikymnmn�fghifoppxkop�fonqfpdys|iginiuufdefdghikfmnedkyogmdnf
uxphfoufqmyinumdnuzf�xongmgmiuzfonqfmnugo||ogmdnfdkfsikedkyonpifdefi�xmsyingfdkfu�ugiyuzfrhmphfokifghifvdngkopgdk�uf
kiusdnum{m|mg�}f�hif�kphmgipg�ufkitmirfuho||fndgfpdnugmgxgifosskdto|fdefuoeig�fskipoxgmdnufdkzfxn|iuufdghikrmuif
usipmempo||�fugogiqf{�fghif�kphmgipgzfdefon�fpdnugkxpgmdnfyionuzfyighdquzfgiphnm�xiuzfui�xinpiufdkfskdpiqxkiu}f�hif
�kphmgipg�ufosskdto|fdefofusipmempfmgiyfuho||fndgfmnqmpogifosskdto|fdefonfouuiy{|�fdefrhmphfghifmgiyfmufofpdysdning}f



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�

cdefgfhfeijkilmniopqlrstliuptvwnqlxixyntzkzts{{|irn}vzrnilmniopqlrstlprilpiyrp~z�niyrpknxxzpqs{i�nxz�qixnr~ztnxipri
tnrlzkztslzpqxi�|isi�nxz�qiyrpknxxzpqs{irn{sln�ilpix|xlnwx�iwslnrzs{xiprin}vzywnql�ilmni�rtmzlntlixms{{ixyntzk|ilmni
syyrpyrzslniynrkprwsqtnisq�i�nxz�qitrzlnrzsilmslixvtmixnr~ztnxiwvxlixslzxk|�i
cdefgfhfhi�v��ntlilpilmniyrp~zxzpqxipki�ntlzpqi����ilmni�rtmzlntlivypqirn}vnxlipkilmni��qnrixms{{irn~zn�isq�irnxypq�ilpi
rn}vnxlxikprizqkprwslzpqis�pvlilmniopqlrstliuptvwnqlx�i�mni�rtmzlntlixms{{ixnlikprlmizqilmniopqlrstliuptvwnqlxilmni
rn}vzrnwnqlxikprirn}vnxlxikprizqkprwslzpq�i�n}vnxlxikprizqkprwslzpqixms{{izqt{v�n�islisiwzqzwvw�isi�nlsz{n�i�rzllnqi
xlslnwnqlilmslizq�ztslnxilmnixyntzkztiurs�zq�xipri�yntzkztslzpqxizqiqnn�ipkit{srzkztslzpqisq�ilmniqslvrnipkilmni
t{srzkztslzpqirn}vnxln��i�mni�rtmzlntl�xirnxypqxnilpixvtmirn}vnxlxixms{{i�niws�nizqi�rzlzq�i�zlmzqisq|ilzwni{zwzlxi
s�rnn�ivypq�ipriplmnr�zxni�zlmirnsxpqs�{niyrpwylqnxx�ijkisyyrpyrzsln�ilmni�rtmzlntlixms{{iyrnysrnisq�izxxvni
xvyy{nwnqls{iurs�zq�xisq�i�yntzkztslzpqxizqirnxypqxnilpirn}vnxlxikprizqkprwslzpq�i

cdefgfhf�i

cdefgf�d�������d��d���d����
cdefgf�f�i�mni�rtmzlntliws|isvlmprz�niwzqpritmsq�nxizqilmni�pr�ilmslisrnitpqxzxlnqli�zlmilmnizqlnqlipkilmniopqlrstli
uptvwnqlxisq�i�piqplizq~p{~nisqis��vxlwnqlizqilmniopqlrstli�vwiprisqin lnqxzpqipkilmniopqlrstli�zwn�i�v��ntlilpilmni
yrp~zxzpqxipki�ntlzpqi����ilmni�rtmzlntlixms{{iyrnysrniomsq�ni�r�nrxisq�iopqxlrvtlzpqiomsq�niuzrntlz~nxikprilmni
��qnr�xisyyrp~s{isq�in ntvlzpqizqisttpr�sqtni�zlmilmniopqlrstliuptvwnqlx�i

cdefgf�f¡i�mni�rtmzlntlixms{{iwszqlszqirntpr�xirn{slz~nilpitmsq�nxizqilmni�pr��

cdefgfgd¢��£���d��¤¢¥�����
cdefgfgf�i�mni�rtmzlntlixms{{itpq�vtlizqxyntlzpqxilpi�nlnrwzqnilmni�slnipkikzqs{itpwy{nlzpq¦izxxvnionrlzkztslnxipki
�v�xlsqlzs{iopwy{nlzpq
cdefgfgf¡i�mni�rtmzlntl�xizqxyntlzpqxixms{{i�nitpq�vtln�i�zlmilmni��qnrilpitmnt�itpqkprwsqtnipkilmni�pr�i�zlmilmni
rn}vzrnwnqlxipkilmniopqlrstliuptvwnqlxisq�ilpi~nrzk|ilmnisttvrst|isq�itpwy{nlnqnxxipkilmni{zxlixv�wzlln�i�|ilmni
opqlrstlpripki�pr�ilpi�nitpwy{nln�ipritprrntln��i

cdefgfgfei

cdefgfgfhi
cdefgfgf�i
�����¥�dhddd�§§������¥d���̈����d
cdhf�i���zlzpqs{i�nr~ztnxi{zxln�i�n{p�isrniqplizqt{v�n�izqi©sxzti�nr~ztnxi�vliws|i�nirn}vzrn�ikprilmniªrp�ntl�i�mni
�rtmzlntlixms{{iyrp~z�nilmni{zxln�i���zlzpqs{i�nr~ztnxipq{|izkixyntzkzts{{|i�nxz�qsln�izqilmnils�{ni�n{p�isxilmni�rtmzlntl�xi
rnxypqxz�z{zl|�isq�ilmni��qnrixms{{itpwynqxslnilmni�rtmzlntlisxiyrp~z�n�izqi�ntlzpqi««�¬�i
®̄°±²³́µ̄¶µ·̄¶̧¹¹±µ±º³́»¶¼̄½¾±¿̄°¶µ·̄¶̧½¿·±µ̄¿µ¶°·́»»¶À½º¾±¹̄¶±³¶µ·̄¶°̄¿º³¹¶¿º»ÁÂ³¶ºÃ¶µ·̄¶µ́Ä»̄¶Ǟ»ºÅÆ¶Ç³¶µ·̄¶µ·±½¹¶
¿º»ÁÂ³¶±³¹±¿́µ̄¶Å·̄µ·̄½¶µ·̄¶°̄½¾±¿̄¶¹̄°¿½±Àµ±º³¶±°¶»º¿́µ̄¹¶±³¶¼̄¿µ±º³¶ÈÆÉ¶º½¶±³¶́³¶́µµ́¿·̄¹¶̄Ê·±Ä±µÆ¶ÇÃ¶±³¶́³¶̄Ê·±Ä±µË¶
±¹̄³µ±ÃÌ¶µ·̄¶̄Ê·±Ä±µÆÍ

�ÎÎÏÐÏÑÒÓÔd�ÕÖ×ÏØÕÙ �ÕÙÚÑÒÙÏÛÏÔÏÐÜ
̧½¿·±µ̄¿µË¶ÝÅ³̄½¶
º½¶Þºµ¶ß½º¾±¹̄¹Í

¥ÑØÓÐÏÑÒdÑàd�ÕÖ×ÏØÕd§ÕÙØÖÏÚÐÏÑÒ
¼̄¿µ±º³¶ÈÆÉ¶Ǟ»ºÅ¶º½¶±³¶́³¶̄Ê·±Ä±µ¶
µ́µ́¿·̄¹¶µº¶µ·±°¶¹º¿ÁÂ̄³µ¶́³¹¶

±¹̄³µ±Ã±̄¹¶Ǟ»ºÅÍ
cdhf�f� ªrp�rswwzq�iá©¬â¬ãä¬ââåæi ç�
cdhf�f¡ èv{lzy{niyrn{zwzqsr|i�nxz�qx ç�

cdhf�fe ènsxvrn�i�rs�zq�x

�rtmzlntlilpiénrzk|i
ªrn~zpvxi
ènsxvrnwnqlx

cdhf�fh ê zxlzq�ikstz{zlznxixvr~n|x ç�
cdhf�f� �zlniê~s{vslzpqisq�iª{sqqzq�iá©¬â�ãä¬ââëæ ç�
cdhf�fg ©vz{�zq�ijqkprwslzpqièp�n{zq�iáê¬â¬ãä
¬ââìæ

ç�

cdhf�fí oz~z{inq�zqnnrzq� ç�
cdhf�fî ïsq�xtsyni�nxz�q ç�
cdhf�fð �rtmzlntlvrs{ijqlnrzpriunxz�qiá©¬ñ¬ãä¬ââëæ ç�



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

c

defghghi jklmnopqklrstsouvwxyz{wxx|} ~p
defghghh �n�ktln�o��s�ons�t�k�tq� ~p
defghgh� �q�st�no����n��o�n��nsnq�k�t�qouvwx|z{wxx�} ~p
defghgh� ��q����n�o��qs��m��t�qo���m�nq�s ~p
defghghf ps��nst�qn�o�n����o��k�tq�s ~p
defghgh� ps���qs��m��n�o�n����o��k�tq�s ~p
defghgh� ��s�o���m�kq�ron�klmk�t�q ~p
defghgh� �k�tlt�ro�m�����o�n��t�nsouvw�xz{wxx|} ~p
defghgh� �nqkq���nlk�n�osn��t�ns ~p
defghgh� �����tqk�t�qo��o��qn��so��qsml�kq�s ~p
defghg�i �nln����mqt�k�t�qs��k�ko�nst�q ~p
defghg�h �n�m�t�ro��klmk�t�qokq�o�lkqqtq�ouvwx z{
wxx|}

~p

defghg�� ����tsst�qtq�ouvw��z{wxx|} ~p
defghg�� �¡�nqst�nonq�t��q�nq�kllro�ns��qst¢lno�nst�q ~p o
defghg�f £���¤o�n��t�t�k�t�qouvw�yz{wx�w} ~p
defghg�� �ks����k�¥o�nst�qosn��t�nso ~p
defghg�� ¦ts���t�o��nsn��k�t�qouvwx§z{wxx|}o ~p
defghg�� �m�qt�m�n̈o�m�qts©tq�s̈okq�o�ªmt��nq�o�nst�qo
uvw§«z{wxx|}

~p

defg�o¬qsn��oko�ns��t��t�qo��onk�©op��t�t�qklo�n��t�no�nst�qk�n�otqo�n��t�qoy�okso�©nop��©t�n���so�ns��qst¢tlt�r̈ot�oq��o
�m��©n�o�ns��t¢n�otqokqon¡©t¢t�ok��k�©n�o��o�©tso���m�nq�

oo

defg�op��t�t�qklo�n��t�nso�kro¢no����t�n�ok��n�on¡n�m�t�qo��o�©tsop��nn�nq�̈o�t�©�m�otq�klt�k�tq�o�©nop��nn�nq�o
�¡�n��o���osn��t�nso�nªmt�n�o�mno��o�©no�kml�o��o�©nop��©t�n��̈okqrop��t�t�qklo�n��t�nso����t�n�otqok�����kq�no�t�©o�©tso
�n��t�qoy«os©kllonq�t�lno�©nop��©t�n��o��o����nqsk�t�qo�m�smkq�o��o�n��t�qo��«okq�okqok������tk�nok��ms��nq�otqo�©no
p��©t�n���sos�©n�mlno

defg�gho®��qo�n���qt̄tq�o�©noqnn�o��o�n�����o�©no��ll��tq�op��t�t�qklo�n��t�ns̈o�©nop��©t�n��os©klloq��t�ro�©no��qn�o
�t�©o�nks�qk¢lno������qnssokq�on¡�lktqo�©no�k��sokq�o�t��m�s�kq�nso�t�tq�o�tsno��o�©noqnn�o�©nop��©t�n��os©klloq��o
����nn�o��o����t�no�©no��ll��tq�osn��t�nsomq�tlo�©nop��©t�n��o�n�nt�nso�©no��qn��so��t��nqokm�©��t̄k�t�q°o

gh �n��t�nsoqn�nsst�k�n�o¢roko�©kq�notqo�©no¬qt�tklo¬q����k�t�q̈o��n�t�msotqs��m��t�qso��ok�����klso�t�nqo¢ro
�©no��qn�̈o��oko�k�n�tklo�©kq�notqo�©no����n��otq�lm�tq�̈o¢m�oq��olt�t�n�o��̈ost̄n̈oªmklt�r̈o����ln¡t�r̈o
�©no��qn��sos�©n�mlno��o¢m��n�o���o��s�o��o�©no±��¥̈o��o����m�n�nq�o��o�nlt�n�ro�n�©��²o

g� �n��t�nsoqn�nsst�k�n�o¢ro�©no��qn��so�nªmns�o���on¡�nqst�nonq�t��q�nq�kllro�ns��qst¢lno�nst�qo
kl�n�qk�t�ns̈osm�©oksomqtªmnosrs�n�o�nst�qs̈otq��n��©o�k�n�tklo�nsnk��©̈onqn��ro���nltq�̈o��o£���¤o
�n��t�t�k�t�q²

g� �©kq�tq�o��on�t�tq�o��n�t�mslro��n�k�n�o¬qs��m�nq�so��o�n��t�noqn�nsst�k�n�o¢ro�©nonqk���nq�o��o
�n�tst�qo��o���ns̈olk�so��o�n�mlk�t�qso��o���t�tklotq�n���n�k�t�qs²

gf �n��t�nsoqn�nsst�k�n�o¢ro�n�tst�qso��o�©no��qn�oq��o�nq�n�n�otqoko�t�nlro�kqqn�o��okqro��©n�o�ktlm�no��o
�n�����kq�no�qo�©no�k��o��o�©no��qn�o��o�©no��qn��so��qsml�kq�so��o��q��k����s²

g� o
g� g�g� ��n�k�k�t�qo���̈okq�ok��nq�kq�nok�oko�ts�m�no�ns�lm�t�qo����nn�tq�o��oln�klo����nn�tq�̈o

n¡�n��o�©n�no�©nop��©t�n��otso�k��ro�©n�n��²
g� ²
ghi ��qsml�k�t�qo��q�n�qtq�o�n�lk�n�nq�o��o±��¥o�nsml�tq�o����o�t�no��o��©n�o�kmsno�m�tq�o��qs��m��t�q²o��
ghh pssts�kq�no��o�©no¬qt�tklo�n�tst�qo³k¥n�̈ot�o��©n�o�©kqo�©nop��©t�n��

defg�g�o��ok��t�o�nlkrotqo�©no��qs��m��t�qo�©ksn̈o�©nop��©t�n��os©kllo����t�no�©no��ll��tq�op��t�t�qklo�n��t�ns̈oq��t�ro
�©no��qn�o�t�©o�nks�qk¢lno������qnss̈okq�on¡�lktqo�©no�k��sokq�o�t��m�s�kq�nso�t�tq�o�tsno��o�©noqnn�o¬�o�©no��qn�o
sm¢snªmnq�lro�n�n��tqnso�©k�okllo��o�k��so��o�©�snosn��t�nsok�noq��o�nªmt�n�̈o�©no��qn�os©kllo�t�no������o��t��nqoq��t�no
��o�©nop��©t�n��̈okq�o�©no��qn�os©kllo©k�noq�o�m��©n�o�¢lt�k�t�qo��o����nqsk�no�©nop��©t�n��o���o�©�snosn��t�ns°o



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�

cd efghfihjklmlnojpqmrpoqstltuvwhppmxlouployltfzufjrflyqowlp{fltuvwhppmxltr{f|uxflmkqff|lpolv}lp{fl
~qr{hpfrp�

c� eft�oj|hjklpolp{flnojpqmrpoqstlqfzuftptlyoqlhjyoqwmphojlp{mplmqfljopl�qf�mqf|lhjlmrroq|mjrflihp{lp{fl
nojpqmrpl�oruwfjptloqli{fqfltur{lhjyoqwmphojlhtlmgmhxmvxflpolp{flnojpqmrpoqlyqowlmlrmqfyuxltpu|}lmj|l
row�mqhtojloylp{flnojpqmrpl�oruwfjpt�lyhfx|lroj|hphojt�lop{fql�ijfq��qogh|f|lhjyoqwmphoj�l
nojpqmrpoq��qf�mqf|lrooq|hjmphojl|qmihjkt�loql�qhoql�qo�frplroqqft�oj|fjrfloql|oruwfjpmphoj�

c� �qf�mqhjkln{mjkfl�q|fqtlmj|lnojtpqurphojln{mjkfl�hqfrphgftlp{mplqfzuhqflfgmxumphojloylnojpqmrpoqstl
�qo�otmxtlmj|ltu��oqphjkl|mpm�loqlp{fl�qf�mqmphojloqlqfghthojloyl�jtpquwfjptloyl�fqghrf�

c� �gmxumphjklmjlf�pfjthgfljuwvfqloylnxmhwtlmtlp{fl�jhphmxl�frhthojl�m�fq�
c� �gmxumphjkltuvtphpuphojtl�qo�otf|lv}lp{fl�ijfqloqlnojpqmrpoqlmj|lwm�hjkltuvtfzufjplqfghthojtlpol

�jtpquwfjptloyl�fqghrflqftuxphjklp{fqfyqow�loq
c� �olp{flf�pfjplp{fl~qr{hpfrpstl�mthrl�fqghrftlmqflmyyfrpf|�l�qogh|hjklnojtpqurphojl�{mtfl�fqghrftl��l

|m}tlmypfql���lp{fl|mpfloyl�uvtpmjphmxlnow�xfphojloylp{fl�oq�loql���lp{flmjphrh�mpf|l|mpfloyl�uvtpmjphmxl
now�xfphojlh|fjphyhf|lhjl�jhphmxl�jyoqwmphoj�li{hr{fgfqlhtlfmqxhfq�

���c�c�l�{fl~qr{hpfrplt{mxxl�qogh|flnojtpqurphojl�{mtfl�fqghrftlf�rff|hjklp{flxhwhptltfplyoqp{lvfxoilmtl~||hphojmxl
�fqghrft�l�{fjlp{flxhwhptlvfxoilmqflqfmr{f|�lp{fl~qr{hpfrplt{mxxljophy}lp{fl�ijfq�

cd �fqolll�ll�ll�lqfghfitloylfmr{l�{o�l�qmihjk�l�qo|urpl�mpmlhpfw�ltmw�xflmj|lthwhxmqltuvwhppmxloylp{fl
nojpqmrpoq

c� l�{qffll�l lll�lghthptlpolp{flthpflv}lp{fl~qr{hpfrplogfqlp{fl|uqmphojloylp{fl�qo�frpl|uqhjklrojtpqurphoj
c� l�fqoll�ll�ll�lhjt�frphojtlyoqlmj}l�oqphojloylp{fl�oq�lpol|fpfqwhjfli{fp{fqltur{l�oqphojloylp{fl�oq�lhtl

tuvtpmjphmxx}lrow�xfpflhjlmrroq|mjrflihp{lp{flqfzuhqfwfjptloylp{flnojpqmrpl�oruwfjpt
c� l�jfll�ll�ll�lhjt�frphojtlyoqlmj}l�oqphojloylp{fl�oq�lpol|fpfqwhjflyhjmxlrow�xfphoj

���c�c�l�ylp{fltfqghrftlrogfqf|lv}lp{htl~kqffwfjpl{mgfljoplvffjlrow�xfpf|lihp{hjl�hk{pffjlll�l�¡lll�lwojp{tloylp{fl|mpfl
oylp{htl~kqffwfjp�lp{qouk{ljolymuxploylp{fl~qr{hpfrp�lf�pfjthojloylp{fl~qr{hpfrpstltfqghrftlvf}oj|lp{mplphwflt{mxxlvfl
row�fjtmpf|lmtl~||hphojmxl�fqghrft�l

¢£¤¥¦§̈�����©ª«̈£¬�£̈®©«¥̄¥§¥¤¥̈
���cdl°jxfttlop{fqihtfl�qogh|f|lyoqluj|fqlp{htl~kqffwfjp�lp{fl�ijfqlt{mxxl�qogh|flhjyoqwmphojlhjlmlphwfx}lwmjjfql
qfkmq|hjklqfzuhqfwfjptlyoqlmj|lxhwhpmphojtlojlp{fl�qo�frp�lhjrxu|hjklmliqhppfjl�qokqmwli{hr{lt{mxxltfplyoqp{lp{fl�ijfqstl
ov�frphgft�ltr{f|uxf�lrojtpqmhjptlmj|lrqhpfqhm�lhjrxu|hjklt�mrflqfzuhqfwfjptlmj|lqfxmphojt{h�t�lyxf�hvhxhp}�l
f��mj|mvhxhp}�lt�frhmxlfzuh�wfjp�lt}tpfwtlmj|lthpflqfzuhqfwfjpt�l�hp{hjl�±l|m}tlmypfqlqfrfh�ploylmliqhppfjlqfzuftplyqowl
p{fl~qr{hpfrp�lp{fl�ijfqlt{mxxlyuqjht{lp{flqfzuftpf|lhjyoqwmphojlmtljfrfttmq}lmj|lqfxfgmjplyoqlp{fl~qr{hpfrplpol
fgmxumpf�lkhgfljophrfloyloqlfjyoqrflxhfjlqhk{pt�l

���c�l�{fl�ijfqlt{mxxlftpmvxht{lmj|l�fqho|hrmxx}lu�|mpflp{fl�ijfqstlvu|kfplyoqlp{fl�qo�frp�lhjrxu|hjkl���lp{flvu|kfpl
yoqlp{flnotploylp{fl�oq�lmtl|fyhjf|lhjl�frphojl����l���lp{fl�ijfqstlop{fqlrotpt�lmj|�l� �lqfmtojmvxflrojphjkfjrhftl
qfxmpf|lpolmxxloylp{ftflrotpt�l�ylp{fl�ijfqlthkjhyhrmjpx}lhjrqfmtftloql|frqfmtftlp{fl�ijfqstlvu|kfplyoqlp{flnotploylp{fl
�oq��lp{fl�ijfqlt{mxxljophy}lp{fl~qr{hpfrp�l�{fl�ijfqlmj|lp{fl~qr{hpfrplt{mxxlp{fqfmypfqlmkqfflpolmlroqqft�oj|hjkl
r{mjkflhjlp{fl�qo�frpstltro�flmj|lzumxhp}�l

���c�l�{fl�ijfqlt{mxxlh|fjphy}lmlqf�qftfjpmphgflmup{oqh²f|lpolmrplojlp{fl�ijfqstlvf{mxylihp{lqft�frplpolp{fl�qo�frp�l�{fl
�ijfqlt{mxxlqfj|fql|frhthojtlmj|lm��qogflp{fl~qr{hpfrpstltuvwhppmxtlhjlmlphwfx}lwmjjfqlhjloq|fqlpolmgoh|lujqfmtojmvxfl
|fxm}lhjlp{floq|fqx}lmj|ltfzufjphmxl�qokqfttloylp{fl~qr{hpfrpstltfqghrft�

���c�l�{fjljfrfttmq}�lp{fl�ijfqlt{mxxlyuqjht{ltuqgf}tlpol|ftrqhvfl�{}thrmxlr{mqmrpfqhtphrt�lxfkmxlxhwhpmphojtlmj|luphxhp}l
xormphojtlyoqlp{flthpfloylp{fl�qo�frp�lmj|lmliqhppfjlxfkmxl|ftrqh�phojloylp{flthpf�l�{fltuqgf}tlmj|lxfkmxlhjyoqwmphojlt{mxxl
hjrxu|f�lmtlm��xhrmvxf�lkqm|ftlmj|lxhjftloyltpqffpt�lmxxf}t�l�mgfwfjptlmj|lm|�ohjhjkl�qo�fqp}lmj|ltpqurpuqft�l|fthkjmpf|l
ifpxmj|t�lm|�mrfjpl|qmhjmkf�lqhk{pt�oy�im}�lqftpqhrphojt�lfmtfwfjpt�lfjrqomr{wfjpt�l²ojhjk�l|ff|lqftpqhrphojt�l
vouj|mqhftlmj|lrojpouqtloylp{flthpf�lxormphojt�l|hwfjthojtlmj|ljfrfttmq}l|mpmlihp{lqft�frplpolf�htphjklvuhx|hjkt�lop{fql
hw�qogfwfjptlmj|lpqfft�lmj|lhjyoqwmphojlrojrfqjhjklmgmhxmvxfluphxhp}ltfqghrftlmj|lxhjft�lvop{l�uvxhrlmj|l�qhgmpf�l
mvogflmj|lvfxoilkqm|f�lhjrxu|hjklhjgfqptlmj|l|f�p{t�l~xxlp{flhjyoqwmphojlojlp{fltuqgf}lt{mxxlvflqfyfqfjrf|lpolml�qo�frpl
vfjr{wmq��

���c�l�{fjljfrfttmq}�lp{fl�ijfqlt{mxxlyuqjht{ltfqghrftloylkfopfr{jhrmxlfjkhjffqt�li{hr{lwm}lhjrxu|flvuplmqfljopl
xhwhpf|lpolpftplvoqhjkt�lpftpl�hpt�l|fpfqwhjmphojtloyltohxlvfmqhjklgmxuft�l�fqroxmphojlpftpt�lfgmxumphojtloyl{m²mq|outl



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

��

cdefghdijkljfhjchmlfndiodehpqklrgpoqslmpggpjhpqlefjejldqslgfjhjehnhetlefjejklhqmioshqrlqfmfjjdgtlpufgdehpqjlvpgl
dqehmhudehqrljowjphilmpqshehpqjklxheylxgheefqlgfupgejldqslduugpughdeflgfmpccfqsdehpqjz

{|}~�l�yfl�xqfgljydiilmppgshqdefleyfljfgnhmfjlpvlhejlpxqlmpqjoiedqejlxheyleypjfljfgnhmfjlugpnhsfslwtleyfl�gmyhefmezl
�upqleyfl�gmyhefme�jlgf�ofjekleyfl�xqfgljydiilvogqhjylmpuhfjlpvleyfljmpuflpvljfgnhmfjlhqleyflmpqegdmejlwfexffqleyfl
�xqfgldqsleyfl�xqfg�jlmpqjoiedqejzl�yfl�xqfgljydiilvogqhjyleyfljfgnhmfjlpvlmpqjoiedqejlpeyfgleydqleypjflsfjhrqdefslhql
eyhjl�rgffcfqeklpgldoeypgh�fleyfl�gmyhefmeleplvogqhjyleyfcldjldql�sshehpqdil�fgnhmfklxyfqleyfl�gmyhefmelgf�ofjejljomyl
jfgnhmfjldqslsfcpqjegdefjleydeleyftldgflgfdjpqdwitlgf�ohgfslwtleyfljmpuflpvleyfl�gp�fmezl�yfl�xqfgljydiilgf�ohgfleydel
hejlmpqjoiedqejlcdhqedhqlugpvfjjhpqdilihdwhihetlhqjogdqmfldjlduugpughdeflepleyfljfgnhmfjlugpnhsfsz

{|}~�l�yfl�xqfgljydiilvogqhjylefjejklhqjufmehpqjldqslgfupgejlgf�ohgfslwtlidxlpgleyfl�pqegdmel�pmocfqejkljomyldjl
jegomeogdiklcfmydqhmdikldqslmyfchmdilefjejklefjejlvpgldhgldqslxdefglupiioehpqkldqslefjejlvpglyd�dgspojlcdefghdijz

{|}~�l�yfl�xqfgljydiilvogqhjyldiilifrdiklhqjogdqmfldqsldmmpoqehqrljfgnhmfjklhqmioshqrldoshehqrljfgnhmfjkleydelcdtlwfl
gfdjpqdwitlqfmfjjdgtldeldqtlehcflvpgleyfl�gp�fmeleplcffeleyfl�xqfg�jlqffsjldqslhqefgfjejzl

{|}~�l�yfl�xqfgljydiilugpnhsflugpcuelxgheefqlqpehmflepleyfl�gmyhefmelhvleyfl�xqfglwfmpcfjldxdgflpvldqtlvdoielpgl
sfvfmelhqleyfl�gp�fmeklhqmioshqrlfggpgjklpchjjhpqjlpglhqmpqjhjefqmhfjlhqleyfl�gmyhefme�jl�qjegocfqejlpvl�fgnhmfz

{|}~��l��mfueldjlpeyfgxhjflugpnhsfslhqleyhjl�rgffcfqeklpglxyfqlshgfmelmpccoqhmdehpqjlydnflwffqljufmhdiitl
doeypgh�fskleyfl�xqfgljydiilfqsfdnpgleplmpccoqhmdeflxheyleyfl�pqegdmepgldqsleyfl�gmyhefme�jlmpqjoiedqejleygporyleyfl
�gmyhefmeldwpoelcdeefgjldghjhqrlpoelpvlpglgfidehqrlepleyfl�pqegdmel�pmocfqejzl�yfl�xqfgljydiilugpcueitlqpehvtleyfl
�gmyhefmelpvldqtlshgfmelmpccoqhmdehpqjleydelcdtldvvfmeleyfl�gmyhefme�jljfgnhmfjzl

{|}~��l�fvpgflf�fmoehqrleyfl�pqegdmelvpgl�pqjegomehpqkleyfl�xqfgljydiilmppgshqdefleyfl�gmyhefme�jlsoehfjldqsl
gfjupqjhwhihehfjljfelvpgeylhqleyfl�pqegdmelvpgl�pqjegomehpqlxheyleyfl�gmyhefme�jljfgnhmfjljfelvpgeylhqleyhjl�rgffcfqezl�yfl
�xqfgljydiilugpnhsfleyfl�gmyhefmeldlmputlpvleyflf�fmoefsldrgffcfqelwfexffqleyfl�xqfgldqsl�pqegdmepgklhqmioshqrleyfl
�fqfgdil�pqshehpqjlpvleyfl�pqegdmelvpgl�pqjegomehpqzl

{|}~��l�yfl�xqfgljydiilugpnhsfleyfl�gmyhefmeldmmfjjlepleyfl�gp�fmeljheflughpgleplmpccfqmfcfqelpvleyfl�pg�ldqsljydiil
pwihrdefleyfl�pqegdmepgleplugpnhsfleyfl�gmyhefmeldmmfjjlepleyfl�pg�lxyfgfnfglhelhjlhqlugfudgdehpqlpglugprgfjjz

�������|�|||� ¡�| ¢|�£�|¤ �¥
{|�~�l¦pgluogupjfjlpvleyhjl�rgffcfqekleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�ljydiilwfleyflepedilmpjelepleyfl�xqfgleplmpqjegomeldiilfifcfqejl
pvleyfl�gp�fmelsfjhrqfslpgljufmhvhfslwtleyfl�gmyhefmeldqsljydiilhqmiosflmpqegdmepgj�lrfqfgdilmpqshehpqjlmpjejklpnfgyfdsl
dqslugpvhezl�yfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�lspfjlqpelhqmiosfleyflmpcufqjdehpqlpvleyfl�gmyhefmekleyflmpjejlpvleyflidqsklghryej§pv§
xdtklvhqdqmhqrklmpqehqrfqmhfjlvpglmydqrfjlhqleyfl�pg�lpglpeyfglmpjejleydeldgfleyflgfjupqjhwhihetlpvleyfl�xqfgzl

{|�~�l�yfl�xqfg�jlwosrfelvpgleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�lhjlugpnhsfslhql�qhehdil�qvpgcdehpqkldqslcdtlwflds�ojefsleygporypoel
eyfl�gp�fmeldjlgf�ohgfsloqsfgl�fmehpqjl̈z©klªz«ldqslªz̈zl�ndiodehpqjlpvleyfl�xqfg�jlwosrfelvpgleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�kleyfl
ugfihchqdgtlfjehcdeflpvleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�lugfudgfslwtleyfl�gmyhefmeklgfugfjfqeleyfl�gmyhefme�jl�osrcfqeldjldlsfjhrql
ugpvfjjhpqdizl�elhjlgfmprqh�fsklypxfnfgkleydelqfheyfgleyfl�gmyhefmelqpgleyfl�xqfglydjlmpqegpilpnfgleyflmpjelpvlidwpgkl
cdefghdijlpglf�ohucfqe¬leyfl�pqegdmepg�jlcfeypsjlpvlsfefgchqhqrlwhslughmfj¬lpglmpcufehehnflwhsshqrklcdg�felpgl
qfrpehdehqrlmpqshehpqjzl�mmpgshqritkleyfl�gmyhefmelmdqqpeldqslspfjlqpelxdggdqelpglgfugfjfqeleydelwhsjlpglqfrpehdefsl
ughmfjlxhiilqpelndgtlvgpcleyfl�xqfg�jlwosrfelvpgleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�lpglvgpcldqtlfjehcdeflpvleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�lpgl
fndiodehpqlugfudgfslpgldrgffsleplwtleyfl�gmyhefmez

{|�~l�qlgfnhfxhqrlfjehcdefjlpvleyfl�pjelpvl�pg�kleyfl�gmyhefmeljydiilwflufgcheefsleplhqmiosflmpqehqrfqmhfjlvpgl
sfjhrqklwhsshqrldqslughmflfjmdidehpq¬leplsfefgchqflxydelcdefghdijklf�ohucfqeklmpcupqfqeljtjefcjldqsletufjlpvl
mpqjegomehpqldgfleplwflhqmiosfslhqleyfl�pqegdmel�pmocfqej¬leplcd�flgfdjpqdwiflds�ojecfqejlhqleyflugprgdcldqsljmpufl
pvleyfl�gp�fme¬ldqsleplhqmiosflhqleyfl�pqegdmel�pmocfqejldiefgqdeflwhsjldjlcdtlwflqfmfjjdgtleplds�ojeleyflfjehcdefsl
�pjelpvleyfl�pg�leplcffeleyfl�xqfg�jlwosrfelvpgleyfl�pjelpvleyfl�pg�zl�yfl�gmyhefme�jlfjehcdeflpvleyfl�pjelpvleyfl
�pg�ljydiilwflwdjfslpqlmoggfqeldgfdklnpiocflpgljhchidglmpqmfueodilfjehcdehqrlefmyqh�ofjzl�vleyfl�xqfglgf�ofjejl
sfedhifslmpjelfjehcdehqrljfgnhmfjkleyfl�gmyhefmeljydiilugpnhsfljomyljfgnhmfjldjldql�sshehpqdil�fgnhmfloqsfgl�gehmifl«zl



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

��

cdefghijhklmhnoppoqrhsthumrskovkosqhwlvxmhlvxhqskhyszzmqymph{okloqh|}hpv~xhvjkmthklmh�tylokmykhx��zokxhklmh
�sqxkt�ykosqh�sy�zmqkxhkshklmh�{qmt�hklts�rlhqshjv��khsjhklmh�tylokmyk�hklmh�{qmt�xh��prmkhjsthklmh�sxkhsjhklmh�st�h
xlv��h�mhvp��xkmphkshtmj�mykhylvqrmxhoqhklmhrmqmtv�h�m�m�hsjh�toymxhoqhklmhv���oyv��mhysqxkt�ykosqhzvt�mk�

cdef�h

cdefehijhklmh�{qmt�xh��prmkhjsthklmh�sxkhsjhklmh�st�hvkhklmhysqy��xosqhsjhklmh�sqxkt�ykosqh�sy�zmqkxhwlvxmh�mt�oymxh
oxhm�ymmpmph�~hklmh�s{mxkh�sqvhjopmh�ophsthqmrskovkmph�ts�sxv��hklmh�{qmthxlv��

f� ro�mh{tokkmqhv��ts�v�hsjhvqhoqytmvxmhoqhklmh��prmkhjsthklmh�sxkhsjhklmh�st��
f� v�klsto�mhtm�oppoqrhsthtmqmrskovkoqrhsjhklmhwts�mykh{okloqhvhtmvxsqv��mhkozm�
f� kmtzoqvkmhoqhvyystpvqymh{oklh�mykosqh|���h
fg oqhysqx��kvkosqh{oklhklmh�tylokmyk�htm�oxmhklmhwts�mykh�tsrtvz�hxys�m�hsth��v�ok~hvxhtm��otmphkshtmp�ymh

klmh�sxkhsjhklmh�st��hst
f� oz��mzmqkhvq~hsklmthz�k�v��~hvyym�kv��mhv�kmtqvko�m�

cdef�hijhklmh�{qmthylssxmxhksh�tsymmph�qpmth�mykosqh������hklmh�tylokmyk�h{okls�khvppokosqv�hysz�mqxvkosq�hxlv��h
zspoj~hklmh�sqxkt�ykosqh�sy�zmqkxhvxhqmymxxvt~hkshysz��~h{oklhklmh�{qmt�xh��prmkhjsthklmh�sxkhsjhklmh�st�hvkhklmh
ysqy��xosqhsjhklmh�sqxkt�ykosqh�sy�zmqkxhwlvxmh�mt�oymx�hsthklmh��prmkhvxhvp��xkmph�qpmth�mykosqh������h�lmh
�tylokmyk�xhzspojoyvkosqhsjhklmh�sqxkt�ykosqh�sy�zmqkxhxlv��h�mhklmh�ozokhsjhklmh�tylokmyk�xhtmx�sqxo�o�ok~h�qpmthkloxh
�tkoy�mh��h

��� ¡¢£d�ddd¡¤¥¦� §̈�©d�ª«d¢ ¡£ª©£©
cd�f�h�lmh�tylokmykhvqphklmh�{qmth{vttvqkhklvkhoqhktvqxzokkoqrhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oym�hsthvq~hsklmthoqjstzvkosq�hklmh
ktvqxzokkoqrh�vtk~hoxhklmhys�~torlkhs{qmthsjhx�ylhoqjstzvkosqhsthlvxh�mtzoxxosqhjtszhklmhys�~torlkhs{qmthkshktvqxzokh
x�ylhoqjstzvkosqhjsthokxh�xmhsqhklmhwts�myk�hijhklmh�{qmthvqph�tylokmykhoqkmqphkshktvqxzokhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymhsthvq~h
sklmthoqjstzvkosqhsthpsy�zmqkvkosqhoqhporokv�hjstz�hklm~hxlv��hmqpmv�sthkshmxkv��oxlhqmymxxvt~h�tsksys�xhrs�mtqoqrh
x�ylhktvqxzoxxosqx�

cd�f�h�lmh�tylokmykhvqphklmh�tylokmyk�xhysqx��kvqkxhxlv��h�mhpmmzmphklmhv�klstxhvqphs{qmtxhsjhklmothtmx�myko�mh
iqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oym�hoqy��poqrhklmh�tv{oqrxhvqph��myojoyvkosqx�hvqphxlv��htmkvoqhv��hyszzsqh�v{�hxkvk�kst~hvqph
sklmthtmxmt�mphtorlkx�hoqy��poqrhys�~torlkx�h���zoxxosqhsthpoxkto��kosqhsjhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymhkshzmmkhsjjoyov�h
tmr��vkst~htm��otmzmqkxhsthjsthxozo�vth��t�sxmxhoqhysqqmykosqh{oklhklmhwts�mykhoxhqskhksh�mhysqxkt�mphvxh����oyvkosqhoqh
pmtsrvkosqhsjhklmhtmxmt�mphtorlkxhsjhklmh�tylokmykhvqphklmh�tylokmyk�xhysqx��kvqkx�

cd�f�h¬�sqhm�my�kosqhsjhkloxh�rtmmzmqk�hklmh�tylokmykhrtvqkxhkshklmh�{qmthvhqsqm�y��xo�mh�oymqxmhksh�xmhklmh�tylokmyk�xh
iqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymhxs�m�~hvqphm�y��xo�m�~hjsth��t�sxmxhsjhysqxkt�ykoqr�h�xoqr�hzvoqkvoqoqr�hv�kmtoqrhvqphvppoqrhksh
klmhwts�myk�h�ts�opmphklvkhklmh�{qmthx��xkvqkov��~h�mtjstzxhokxhs��orvkosqx�hoqy��poqrh�tsz�kh�v~zmqkhsjhv��hx�zxh
{lmqhp�m�h�qpmthkloxh�rtmmzmqk�h�lmh�tylokmykhxlv��hs�kvoqhxozo�vthqsqm�y��xo�mh�oymqxmxhjtszhklmh�tylokmyk�xh
ysqx��kvqkxhysqxoxkmqkh{oklhkloxh�rtmmzmqk�h�lmh�oymqxmhrtvqkmph�qpmthkloxhxmykosqh�mtzokxhklmh�{qmthkshv�klsto�mhklmh
�sqktvykst�h���ysqktvykstx�h���x��ysqktvykstx�hvqphzvkmtov�hsthm��o�zmqkhx����omtx�hvxh{m��hvxhklmh�{qmt�xh
ysqx��kvqkxhvqphxm�vtvkmhysqktvykstx�hkshtm�tsp�ymhv���oyv��mh�stkosqxhsjhklmhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymhxs�m�~hvqph
m�y��xo�m�~hjsth�xmhoqh�mtjstzoqrhxmt�oymxhsthysqxkt�ykosqhjsthklmhwts�myk�hijhklmh�tylokmykhtorlkj���~hkmtzoqvkmxhkloxh
�rtmmzmqkhjsthyv�xmhvxh�ts�opmphoqh�mykosqh|���hklmh�oymqxmhrtvqkmphoqhkloxh�mykosqh®�̄hxlv��hkmtzoqvkm�

cd�f�f�hiqhklmhm�mqkhklmh�{qmth�xmxhklmhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymh{okls�khtmkvoqoqrhklmhv�klsthsjhklmhiqxkt�zmqkxhsjh
�mt�oym�hklmh�{qmthtm�mvxmxhklmh�tylokmykhvqph�tylokmyk�xhysqx��kvqk°x±hjtszhv��hy�vozxhvqphyv�xmxhsjhvykosqhvtoxoqrh
jtszhx�ylh�xmx�h�lmh�{qmt�hkshklmhm�kmqkh�mtzokkmph�~h�v{�hj�tklmthvrtmmxhkshoqpmzqoj~hvqphls�phlvtz�mxxhklmh
�tylokmykhvqphokxhysqx��kvqkxhjtszhv��hysxkxhvqphm��mqxmx�hoqy��poqrhklmhysxkhsjhpmjmqxm�htm�vkmphkshy�vozxhvqphyv�xmxhsjh
vykosqhvxxmtkmph�~hvq~hklotph�mtxsqhsthmqkok~hkshklmhm�kmqkhx�ylhysxkxhvqphm��mqxmxhvtoxmhjtszhklmh�{qmt�xh�xmhsjhklmh
iqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymh�qpmthkloxh�mykosqh®�̄���h�lmhkmtzxhsjhkloxh�mykosqh®�̄��hxlv��hqskhv���~hojhklmh�{qmthtorlkj���~h
kmtzoqvkmxhkloxh�rtmmzmqkhjsthyv�xmh�qpmth�mykosqh|���h

cd�fgh²�ym�khjsthklmh�oymqxmxhrtvqkmphoqhkloxh�tkoy�mh®�hqshsklmth�oymqxmhsthtorlkhxlv��h�mhpmmzmphrtvqkmphsthoz��omph
�qpmthkloxh�rtmmzmqk�h�lmh�{qmthxlv��hqskhvxxorq�hpm�mrvkm�hx���oymqxm�h��mprmhsthsklmt{oxmhktvqxjmthvq~h�oymqxmh
rtvqkmphlmtmoqhkshvqsklmth�vtk~h{okls�khklmh�tosth{tokkmqhvrtmmzmqkhsjhklmh�tylokmyk�h�q~h�qv�klsto�mph�xmhsjhklmh
iqxkt�zmqkxhsjh�mt�oymhxlv��h�mhvkhklmh�{qmt�xhxs�mhtox�hvqph{okls�kh�ov�o�ok~hkshklmh�tylokmykhvqphklmh�tylokmyk�xh
ysqx��kvqkx�



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

��

cdefghijkjjjghcflmjcnojofmpqeim
rjkstjuinidch
rjkststvwxyvz{|y}v~|�v�}�x��y��v�x~��v����y|�yv~��v��~���v~|�v�~��y�v��v~����|�v{xy�xy}v�|v��|�}~���v��}��v�}v
��xy}{��y�v~�~�|��v�xyv��xy}v~}���|�v���v��v�}v}y�~�y�v��v�x��v��}yy�y|�v�|v~���}�~|�yv{��xv�xyv}y���}y�y|��v��v�xyv
�y�x��v��v��|��|�v������yv}y�������|v�y�y��y�v�|v�x��v��}yy�y|�v{��x�|v�xyv�y}���v��y����y�v��v~�����~��yv�~{�v���v�|v
~|�v�~�yv|��v��}yv�x~|v��v�y~}�v~��y}v�xyv�~�yv��v�����~|��~�v�����y���|v��v�xyv��}��vwxyvz{|y}v~|�v�}�x��y��v{~��yv
~��v��~���v~|�v�~��y�v��v~����|v|��v����y|�y�v�|v~���}�~|�yv{��xv�x��v�y����|v������

rjksts�vw�v�xyvy��y|�v�~�~�y�v~}yv���y}y�v��v�}��y}��v�|��}~|�y�v�xyvz{|y}v~|�v�}�x��y��v{~��yv~��v}��x��v~�~�|��vy~�xv
��xy}v~|�v~�~�|��v�xyv��|�}~���}��v��|����~|���v~�y|��v~|�vy�����yy�v��v�xyv��xy}v��}v�~�~�y��vy��y��v���xv}��x��v~�v
�xy�v�~�vx~�yv��v�xyv�}��yy��v��v���xv�|��}~|�yv~�v�y�v��}�xv�|v���v�����y|�v����������v y|y}~�v��|�����|�v��v�xyv
��|�}~��v��}v��|��}�����|�vwxyvz{|y}v�}v�xyv�}�x��y���v~�v~��}��}�~�y�v�x~��v}y���}yv��v�xyv��|�}~���}��v��|����~|���v
~�y|��v~|�vy�����yy�v��v~|�v��v�xy�v�����~}v{~��y}�v�|v�~��}v��v�xyv��xy}v�~}��y�vy|��y}~�y�vxy}y�|�

rjksts¡vwxyv�}�x��y��v~|�vz{|y}v{~��yv��|�y��y|��~�v�~�~�y�v��}v��~����v������y�v�}v��xy}v�~��y}�v�|v��y����|v~}���|�v
���v��v�}v}y�~��|�v��v�x��v��}yy�y|��vwx��v����~�v{~��y}v��v~�����~��y�v{��x���v�����~���|�v��v~��v��|�y��y|��~�v�~�~�y�v
��yv��vy��xy}v�~}��¢�v�y}��|~���|v��v�x��v��}yy�y|��vy��y��v~�v��y�����~���v�}����y�v�|v�y����|v£���

rjks�jliofcef¤n
rjks�stv�|�v��~���v������yv�}v��xy}v�~��y}v�|v��y����|v~}���|�v���v��v�}v}y�~�y�v��v�x��v��}yy�y|�v�x~��v�yv���¥y��v��v
�y��~���|v~�v~v��|�����|v�}y�y�y|�v��v��|��|�v������yv}y�������|�v��v���xv�~��y}v}y�~�y�v��v�}v��v�xyv���¥y��v��v~v��y|v
~}���|�v���v��v�xyv�}�x��y��¢�v�y}���y��v�xyv�}�x��y��v�~�v�}��yy�v�|v~���}�~|�yv{��xv~�����~��yv�~{v��v������v{��xv�xyv
��y|v|����yv�}v����|�v�y~���|y�v�}��}v��v}y�������|v��v�xyv�~��y}v��v�y��~���|v�}v��v��|��|�v������yv}y�������|�

rjks�s�vwxyvz{|y}v~|�v�}�x��y��v�x~��vy|�y~��}v��v}y����yv��~����v������y�v~|�v��xy}v�~��y}�v�|v��y����|v�y�{yy|v�xy�v
��v�y��~���|v{x��x�v�|�y��v�xyv�~}��y�v����~���v~�}yyv��xy}{��y�v�x~��v�yv~���|���y}y�v��v�xyv��y}��~|v�}���}~���|v
������~���|v�|v~���}�~|�yv{��xv���v��|��}�����|v�|����}�v¦y��~���|v§}��y��}y�v�|vy��y��v�|v�xyv�~�yv��v�xyv��}yy�y|��v
�v}y��y��v��}v�y��~���|v�x~��v�yv�~�yv�|v{}���|��v�y���y}y�v��v�xyv��xy}v�~}��v��v�xyv��}yy�y|��v~|�v���y�v{��xv�xyv
�y}��|v�}vy|����v~���|���y}�|�v�xyv�y��~���|�vwxyv}y��y��v�~�v�yv�~�yv��|��}}y|���v{��xv�xyv����|�v��v~v�����~�|�v�}v
��xy}v~��}��}�~�yv�y�~|�v��}v��|��|�v������yv}y�������|v����v�|v���xvy�y|��v�y��~���|v�x~��v�}��yy�v�|v~��~|�yv��v
��|��|�v������yv}y�������|v�}��yy��|���v{x��xv�x~��v�yv��~�y�v�y|��|�v�y��~���|v��}v~v�y}���v��v̈�v�~��v�}��v�xyv�~�yv
��v����|��v�|�y��v��~�y�v��}v~v��|�y}v�y}���v��v~�}yy�y|�v��v�xyv�~}��y�v�}v���}�v�}�y}�v��v~|v~}���}~���|v�}��yy��|�v��v
��~�y�v��}��~|�v��v�x��v�y����|�v�xyv�~}��y�v�~�v|�|y�xy�y��v�}��yy�v��v�xyv�y�y����|v��v�xyv~}���}~��}©�ªv~|�v~�}yyv���|v
~v��xy���yv��}v�~�y}v�}��yy��|���

rjks�s¡vwxyv�~}��y�v�x~��v�x~}yv�xyv�y��~��}¢�v�yyv~|�v~|�v����|�v�yy�vy��~����vwxyv�y��~���|v�x~��v�yvxy��v�|v�xyv��~�yv
{xy}yv�xyv§}�¥y��v��v���~�y��v�|�y��v~|��xy}v���~���|v��v����~���v~�}yy�v���|�v��}yy�y|��v}y~�xy�v�|v�y��~���|v�x~��v
�yvy|��}�y~��yv~�v�y���y�y|�v~�}yy�y|��v�|v~|�v���}�vx~��|�v¥�}��������|v�xy}y���

rjks�s«v��v�xyv�~}��y�v��v|��v}y����yv~v������yv�x}���xv�y��~���|v��}��~|�v��v�x��v�y����|v����v�xyv�y�x��v��v��|��|�v
������yv}y�������|v�x~��v�yv�xyv�����{�|�¬v
®̄°±²³́̄°³µ¶¶·̧¶·¹µ́°³º̧»¼³½¾³́̄°³¿ÀÁ°·³µÁÂ³Ã·±̄¹́°±́³Â̧³Á̧ ³́Ä°Å°±́³µ³Æ°́̄ Â̧³̧¾³º¹ÁÂ¹ÁÇ³Â¹Ä¶È́°³·°Ä̧ÅÈ́¹̧Á³º°Å̧ÀÉ³̧·³
Â̧³Á̧ ³́ÄÈºÄ°ÊÈ°Á́ÅË³µÇ·°°³¹Á³À·¹́¹ÁÇ³̧́³µ³º¹ÁÂ¹ÁÇ³Â¹Ä¶È́°³·°Ä̧ÅÈ́¹̧Á³Æ°́̄ Â̧³̧́ °̄·³́̄µÁ³Å¹́¹Çµ́¹̧ÁÉ³́̄°³Â¹Ä¶È́°³À¹ÅÅ³º°³
·°Ä̧ÅÌ°Â³¹Á³µ³±̧È·́³̧¾³±̧Æ¶°́°Á́³ÍÈ·¹ÄÂ¹±́¹̧Á¼Î

Ï(jj(Ð �}���}~���|v��}��~|�v��v�y����|v��Ñv��v�x��v��}yy�y|�

Ï(jÒj(Ð Ó����~���|v�|v~v���}�v��v����y�y|�v¥�}��������|

Ï(jj(Ð z�xy}v©��y����ª

vv

rjks¡j



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�c

defgfhgfijklmnonpnmq
rstuvwxyzyyytxs{u|rtu}|y}sy~�~�x|~u}|
�yz�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������ �����������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������� �¡�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������¢�������
����������������������������������������������������������������������� �£�����������������������������������������������
���������������������������������¤����������¥����� 

�yz�¦���������������������������§��¥����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������� �̈��������§��¥��������������������������������������������������������¢��������������������������������
���¥������������������������������������������������������������������� �£�����������������������������������������������
���������������������������������¤����������¥����� 

�yz�©���������������������������§��¥������������������ª«���������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

�yz�¬���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������� 

�yz�®�£�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������� 

�yz�̄�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������°������������¢������������������������£�����������¢����������
�����������±�������ª ² �

�yz�³�£�����������¢���������������������������������������������������������������������������������¢����������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������ �́��������������������������������� 

�yz�µ�£��������������������������������������������������������±�������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������²�����±�������¶¶ ª 

rstuvwxy�·yyy{u~vxwwr|x}�~y�s}̧u~u}|~
�y�·���£������������������������������������������������������������������§��¥�����������������¢�������������������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������¹������������������������������������±�������
º » 

�y�·�¦�£�������������������������������������������������������������������¼���������½«¶¾½««²��¿�������
À�����������������À������������À����������� 

�y�·�©�£���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������� �Á�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������¢��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������§��¥����
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �

�y�·�¬����������������¤������������������������¢������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������¶Â���������������������¤�����������������¢������� ����������������¤������
������������������¢����������������������������¤�����������������������������������������������������������������¢������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������¶Â����������������¢������� �£����������������������������¤����������¢�������������������������������
�������������¤������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�c

defghijklmnopqjrlpmsoptujopjmnovjwqxttytpmjvnszzjrxtsmtjsjrlpmxsrm{szjxtzsmolpvno|j}omnjlxjsjrs{vtjl~jsrmolpjopj~s�lxjl~j
sjmnoxuj|sxm�jsqsopvmjtomntxjmntj�}ptxjlxjwxrnomtrm�

defgh�j�pztvvjlmntx}ovtjxt�{oxtujopjmnovjwqxttytpm�jmntjwxrnomtrmjvnszzjns�tjpljxtv|lpvo�ozom�j~lxjmntjuovrl�tx��j
|xtvtprt�jnspuzopq�jxtyl�szjlxjuov|lvszjl~�jlxjt�|lv{xtjl~j|txvlpvjml�jns�sxul{vjysmtxoszvjlxjml�orjv{�vmsprtvjopjsp�j
~lxyjsmjmntj�xl�trmjvomt�

defgh�j�ntjwxrnomtrmjvnszzjns�tjmntjxoqnmjmljoprz{utj|nlmlqxs|norjlxjsxmovmorjxt|xtvtpmsmolpvjl~jmntjutvoqpjl~jmntj�xl�trmj
sylpqjmntjwxrnomtrm�vj|xlylmolpszjspuj|xl~tvvolpszjysmtxoszv�j�ntjwxrnomtrmjvnszzj�tjqo�tpjxtsvlps�ztjsrrtvvjmljmntj
rly|ztmtuj�xl�trmjmljys�tjv{rnjxt|xtvtpmsmolpv�j�l}t�tx�jmntjwxrnomtrm�vjysmtxoszvjvnszzjplmjoprz{utjmntj�}ptx�vj
rlp~outpmoszjlxj|xl|xotmsx�jop~lxysmolpjo~jmntj�}ptxjnsvj|xt�ol{vz�jsu�ovtujmntjwxrnomtrmjopj}xomopqjl~jmntjv|tro~orj
op~lxysmolpjrlpvoutxtuj��jmntj�}ptxjmlj�tjrlp~outpmoszjlxj|xl|xotmsx��j�ntj�}ptxjvnszzj|xl�outj|xl~tvvolpszjrxtuomj~lxj
mntjwxrnomtrmjopjmntj�}ptx�vj|xlylmolpszjysmtxoszvj~lxjmntj�xl�trm�j

defgh�j�~jmntjwxrnomtrmjlxj�}ptxjxtrto�tvjop~lxysmolpjv|tro~orszz�jutvoqpsmtuj��jmntjlmntxj|sxm�jsvj�rlp~outpmosz�jlxj
��{voptvvj|xl|xotmsx���jmntjxtrto�opqj|sxm�jvnszzj�tt|jv{rnjop~lxysmolpjvmxormz�jrlp~outpmoszjspujvnszzjplmjuovrzlvtjomjmlj
sp�jlmntxj|txvlpjt�rt|mjmlj���jomvjty|zl�ttv�j���jmnlvtj}nljpttujmlj�pl}jmntjrlpmtpmjl~jv{rnjop~lxysmolpjopjlxutxjmlj
|tx~lxyjvtx�ortvjlxjrlpvmx{rmolpjvlztz�jspujt�rz{vo�tz�j~lxjmntj�xl�trm�jlxj���jomvjrlpv{zmspmvjspujrlpmxsrmlxvj}nlvtj
rlpmxsrmvjoprz{utjvoyozsxjxtvmxormolpvjlpjmntj{vtjl~jrlp~outpmoszjop~lxysmolp�j

�������effeee� ¡¢�£¤��� £
deffhfj¥lxjmntjwxrnomtrm�vj¦svorj§tx�ortvjutvrxo�tuj{putxjwxmorztj��jmntj�}ptxjvnszzjrly|tpvsmtjmntjwxrnomtrmjsvj
~lzzl}v̈
©ª«¬®̄°±²³́«̄°³µ¶°³®°·±¬̧¬°µ³®¶°¹³²º«¬±̧̄³«»¼

j�l{xz�jklm½ml½¾�rttuj½j§ttj¾�no�omj�¿�j

deffhÀj¥lxjwuuomolpszj§tx�ortvjutvoqpsmtujopj§trmolpjÁ���jmntj�}ptxjvnszzjrly|tpvsmtjmntjwxrnomtrmjsvj~lzzl}v̈
©ª«¬®̄°±²³́«̄°³µ¶°³®°·±¬̧¬°µ³®¶°¹³²º«¬±̧̄³«»°ªµ°«¹¬¬±®Â¶°Ã̧¬̄°¬º¹̧µ̧¹°¬®Ä̧¹¬°̄³°ÅÆ̧¹Æ°º±®̧̄¹́Ã±®°²̄Æ³Ç¬°³µ°
¹³²º«¬±̧̄³«°±ººÃÂ»¼

j§ttj¾�no�omj�È�j�l{xz�jÉsmtj§rntu{ztj

deffhÊj¥lxjwuuomolpszj§tx�ortvjmnsmjys�jsxovtju{xopqjmntjrl{xvtjl~jmntj�xl�trm�joprz{uopqjmnlvtj{putxj§trmolpjÁ���jmntj
�}ptxjvnszzjrly|tpvsmtjmntjwxrnomtrmjsvj~lzzl}v̈
©ª«¬®̄°±²³́«̄°³µ¶°³®°·±¬̧¬°µ³®¶°¹³²º«¬±̧̄³«»¼

j§ttj¾�no�omj�È�j�l{xz�jÉsmtj§rntu{ztjj

deffhËj¿ly|tpvsmolpj~lxjwuuomolpszj§tx�ortvjl~jmntjwxrnomtrm�vjrlpv{zmspmvj}ntpjplmjoprz{utujopj§trmolpj����jlxj�����j
vnszzj�tjmntjsyl{pmjop�lortujmljmntjwxrnomtrmj|z{vj�txljjj|txrtpmj�jjÌjjÍ��jlxjsvjlmntx}ovtjvmsmtuj�tzl}̈

jj

deffhijÎntxtjrly|tpvsmolpj~lxj¦svorj§tx�ortvjovj�svtujlpjsjvmo|{zsmtujv{yjlxj|txrtpmsqtjl~jmntj¿lvmjl~jmntjÎlx��jmntj
rly|tpvsmolpj~lxjtsrnj|nsvtjl~jvtx�ortvjvnszzj�tjsvj~lzzl}v̈

§rntysmorjÈtvoqpj�nsvt jkwj |txrtpmjj� jj Í�
ÈtvoqpjÈt�tzl|ytpmj�nsvt jkwj |txrtpmjj� jj Í�
¿lpvmx{rmolpjÈlr{ytpmvj
�nsvt

jkwj |txrtpmjj� jj Í�

¦ouuopqjlxjktqlmosmolpj�nsvt jkwj |txrtpmjj� jj Í�
¿lpvmx{rmolpj�nsvt jkwj |txrtpmjj� jj Í�
jj
�lmszj¦svorj¿ly|tpvsmolpj lptjn{puxtuj |txrtpmjj� �ÌÌj Í�



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

��

cdeefghijklhmnopklqrstnlhtqhurqkvhnlhrhpkwmklsrxkhnyhsjkhznqshnyhsjkhinw{hrlvhrl|hpnwstnlqhnyhsjkh}wn~kmshrwkhvk�kskvh
nwhnsjkw�tqkhlnshmnlqsw�mskv�hmnopklqrstnlhynwhsjnqkhpnwstnlqhnyhsjkh}wn~kmshqjr��hukhpr|ru�khsnhsjkhk�sklshqkw�tmkqhrwkh
pkwynwokvhnlhsjnqkhpnwstnlq�htlhrmmnwvrlmkh�tsjhsjkhqmjkv��khqkshynwsjhtlh�kmstnlh����hurqkvhnlh���hsjkh�n�kqshunlrh
ytvkhutvhnwhlkxnstrskvhpwnpnqr��hnwh���htyhlnhq�mjhutvhnwhpwnpnqr�htqhwkmkt�kv�hsjkhonqshwkmklshkqstorskhnyhsjkhznqshnyhsjkh
inw{hynwhq�mjhpnwstnlqhnyhsjkh}wn~kms�h�jkh�wmjtskmshqjr��hukhklsts�kvhsnhmnopklqrstnlhtlhrmmnwvrlmkh�tsjhsjtqh
�xwkkoklshynwhr��hqkw�tmkqhpkwynwokvh�jksjkwhnwhlnshsjkhznlqsw�mstnlh}jrqkhtqhmnooklmkv�

cdeef�h�jkhjn�w�|hut��tlxhwrskqhynwhqkw�tmkqhnyhsjkh�wmjtskmshrlvhsjkh�wmjtskms�qhmnlq��srlsq�htyhrl|�hrwkhqkshynwsjhuk�n��h
�jkhwrskqhqjr��hukhrv~�qskvhtlhrmmnwvrlmkh�tsjhsjkh�wmjtskms�qhrlvh�wmjtskms�qhmnlq��srlsq�hlnwor�hwk�tk�hpwrmstmkq�
���������������������������������� ��� ¡¢�£�������¤�¢���¥� ¢���¥�¢�����¦���� §̈©

h�kkhª�jtutsh�z�hrlvh�«�h¬n�w�|hrskh�mjkv��khhh

®̄ °±²³́ d́²µd¶·̧́¹²µ³ º·̧́
hh�kkhª�jtutsh�z�hrlvh�«�h¬n�w�|hrskh�mjkv��khh

cdeef»d¶¼½¾®¿ÀÁÂÃ¼¿dÄ¼ºdº®Ã½ÅÆºÀÁÅÇ®d®È¾®¿À®À
cdeef»fehktou�wqru�khª�pklqkqhrwkhtlhrvvtstnlhsnhmnopklqrstnlhynwhÉrqtmhrlvh�vvtstnlr�h�kw�tmkqhrlvhtlm��vkh
k�pklqkqhtlm�wwkvhu|hsjkh�wmjtskmshrlvhsjkh�wmjtskms�qhmnlq��srlsqhvtwkms�|hwk�rskvhsnhsjkh}wn~kms�hrqhyn��n�qÊh

fe �wrlqpnwsrstnlhrlvhr�sjnwtËkvhn�sÌnyÌsn�lhswr�k�hrlvhq�uqtqsklmkÍh
fÎ
fÏ Ðkkqhprtvhynwhqkm�wtlxhrppwn�r�hnyhr�sjnwtstkqhjr�tlxh~�wtqvtmstnlhn�kwhsjkh}wn~kmsÍ
fÑ }wtlstlx�hwkpwnv�mstnlq�hp�nsq�hqsrlvrwvhynwohvnm�oklsqÍ
fÒ }nqsrxk�hjrlv�tlxhrlvhvk�t�kw|Í
fg f�klvkwtlxq�honvk�q�honm{Ì�pq�hpwnykqqtnlr�hpjnsnxwrpj|�hrlvhpwkqklsrstnlhorskwtr�qhwkÓ�kqskvhu|h

sjkhÔ�lkwÍ
f» �wmjtskms�qhznlq��srls�qhk�pklqkhnyhpwnykqqtnlr�h�trut�ts|htlq�wrlmkhvkvtmrskvhk�m��qt�k�|hsnhsjtqh

}wn~kms�hnwhsjkhk�pklqkhnyhrvvtstnlr�htlq�wrlmkhmn�kwrxkhnwh�totsqhtyhsjkhÔ�lkwhwkÓ�kqsqhq�mjhtlq�wrlmkh
tlhk�mkqqhnyhsjrshlnwor��|hmrwwtkvhu|hsjkh�wmjtskms�qhmnlq��srlsqÍ

fÕ
feÖ feeÔsjkwhqtot�rwh}wn~kmsÌwk�rskvhk�pklvts�wkq�

cdeef»fÎhÐnwhktou�wqru�khª�pklqkqhsjkhmnopklqrstnlhqjr��hukhsjkhk�pklqkqhtlm�wwkvhu|hsjkh�wmjtskmshrlvhsjkh
�wmjtskms�qhmnlq��srlsqhp��qhh×kwnhhpkwmklsh�hhØhhÙ�hnyhsjkhk�pklqkqhtlm�wwkv�

cdeefÕd¶¼½¾®¿ÀÁÂÃ¼¿dÄ¼ºdÆÀ®d¼ÄdÁº¶ÚÃÂ®¶ÂÛÀdÃ¿ÀÂºÆ½®¿ÂÀd¼ÄdÀ®ºÜÃ¶®
ÝyhsjkhÔ�lkwhskwotlrskqhsjkh�wmjtskmshynwhtsqhmnl�kltklmkh�lvkwh�kmstnlhÞ���hnwhsjkh�wmjtskmshskwotlrskqhsjtqh
�xwkkoklsh�lvkwh�kmstnlhÞ�ß�hsjkhÔ�lkwhqjr��hpr|hrh�tmklqtlxhykkhrqhmnopklqrstnlhynwhsjkhÔ�lkw�qhmnlstl�kvh�qkhnyh
sjkh�wmjtskms�qhÝlqsw�oklsqhnyh�kw�tmkhqn�k�|hynwhp�wpnqkqhnyhmnop�kstlx�h�qtlxhrlvhortlsrtltlxhsjkh}wn~kmshrqhyn��n�qÊh

à�ØØØ�ØØhh

cdeefeÖd¾Áá½®¿ÂÀdÂ¼dÂÚ®dÁº¶ÚÃÂ®¶Â
cdeefeÖfeh�lhtltstr�hpr|oklshnyh×kwnhhh�àhhØhh�hqjr��hukhorvkh�pnlhk�km�stnlhnyhsjtqh�xwkkoklshrlvhtqhsjkhotlto�oh
pr|oklsh�lvkwhsjtqh�xwkkokls�hÝshqjr��hukhmwkvtskvhsnhsjkhÔ�lkw�qhrmmn�lshtlhsjkhytlr�htl�ntmk�h

cdeefeÖfÎhâl�kqqhnsjkw�tqkhrxwkkv�hpr|oklsqhynwhqkw�tmkqhqjr��hukhorvkhonlsj�|htlhpwnpnwstnlhsnhqkw�tmkqhpkwynwokv�h
}r|oklsqhrwkhv�khrlvhpr|ru�kh�pnlhpwkqklsrstnlhnyhsjkh�wmjtskms�qhtl�ntmk�h�on�lsqh�lprtvhhsjtws|hh�hhßØhh�hvr|qhryskwh
sjkhtl�ntmkhvrskhqjr��hukrwhtlskwkqshrshsjkhwrskhklskwkvhuk�n��hnwhtlhsjkhruqklmkhsjkwknyhrshsjkh�kxr�hwrskhpwk�rt�tlxhywnoh
stokhsnhstokhrshsjkhpwtlmtpr�hp�rmkhnyhu�qtlkqqhnyhsjkh�wmjtskms�
���¥�¢��¢���� ��¦ ����£� ¢����¡�������¢�¥���¤¢��ã�¡� �̈©

hhhÙhhh

cdeefeÖfÏh�jkhÔ�lkwhqjr��hlnsh�tsjjn�vhron�lsqhywnohsjkh�wmjtskms�qhmnopklqrstnlhsnhtopnqkhrhpklr�s|hnwh�tÓ�tvrskvh
vrorxkqhnlhsjkh�wmjtskms�hnwhsnhnyyqkshq�oqhwkÓ�kqskvhu|hnwhprtvhsnhmnlswrmsnwqhynwhsjkhmnqshnyhmjrlxkqhtlhsjkhinw{h
�l�kqqhsjkh�wmjtskmshrxwkkqhnwhjrqhukklhyn�lvh�tru�khynwhsjkhron�lsqhtlhrhutlvtlxhvtqp�skhwkqn��stnlhpwnmkkvtlx�h



�����

�

�����	
��������������������	���������������������� !"#$%&'()(*+,-.(*+,/.(*+/,.(*++,(012(344,(5"(6&7(897#$:01(;1<'$'='7( >(8#:&$'7:'<��������?@�A�
�A�BC��D�EF�FGH�I@�A����J���	
������A�K�	�
�C�L��M�N��O	K���?@��PQR�Q�C������Q��	�Q��I�Q��A��M�Q��@	��SC��K�	C�
��	��	��C�A���L���	��	��
�@�A����J���	
����T�	��Q���K	���	��	����T��Q���A�������AB��
�B���Q�C�
�����Q��K�Q���AT�Q�C�R����L�K�	A
��C��	��@��QU�����U����K	AA�L����C��
�@��QR�(6&$<(2 :=971'(V0<(!# 2=:72(5"(8;8(< >'V0#7(0'(**W-XW4Y( 1(43Z3/Z34*/(=127#([#27#(\ ],,,4+*YX+Y(V&$:&(7̂!$#7<( 1(43Z43Z34*+.(012($<(1 '(> #(#7<0_7]
MA��F	�AH( *̀a-/X/aXa/b

�c

deffgfhgijklmnopqjnrjklstuvoqwuxljyz{l|qlq}jlz{l|qlqj{lo~ws|s|�j~nj�pps~sn|wxj�lo�smlq}jw|pjqlo�smlqj{lornotlpjn|j
~�ljuwqsqjnrj�nvox�jow~lqjq�wxxjuljw�wsxwuxlj~nj~�lj��|lojw~jtv~vwxx�jmn|�l|sl|~j~stlq�

�������ef�eee�������e�����e���e����������
�{lmswxj~lotqjw|pjmn|ps~sn|qj~�w~jtnpsr�j~�sqj��olltl|~jwoljwqjrnxxn�q�

jj

�������ef�eee�����e��e���e���������
def�gfj��sqj��olltl|~jol{olql|~qj~�ljl|~soljw|pjs|~l�ow~lpjw�olltl|~jul~�ll|j~�lj��|lojw|pj~�lj�om�s~lm~jw|pj
qv{loqlplqjwxxj{osnoj|l�n~sw~sn|q}jol{olql|~w~sn|qjnojw�olltl|~q}jls~�loj�os~~l|jnojnowx�j��sqj��olltl|~jtw�julj
wtl|plpjn|x�ju�j�os~~l|js|q~ovtl|~jqs�|lpju�jun~�j��|lojw|pj�om�s~lm~�j

def�g�j��sqj��olltl|~jsqjmnt{osqlpjnrj~�ljrnxxn�s|�jpnmvtl|~qjxsq~lpjulxn��
gf ���j�nmvtl|~j�� �¡¢£  ¤}j�~w|pwopj¥notj��olltl|~j�l~�ll|j��|lojw|pj�om�s~lm~j
g�

j

g� �~�lojpnmvtl|~q�
¦§̈©ª«¬ª®̄«°¬±²³®́ª©µ«̈¶«·́ µ̧«̈́±¹²°̈́ º«»¼̈½̈ª«¾µ«¿́̈ª̈·¹«¿́¶¬̄³·ª̈¬́µ«·́°«·°°̈ª̈¬́·¹«©±¬À®©«¬¶«©®̄Á̈±®µ«
¶̈«·́ µ̧«¶¬̄³̈ º́«À·̄ª«¬¶«ª®«¾º̄®®³®́ªÂÃ

jyz�sus~jÄ�Ä
yz�sus~jÄ�Ä
yz�sus~jÄÅÄ
yz�sus~jÄ�Äj
yz�sus~jÄyÄ

��sqj��olltl|~jl|~lolpjs|~njwqjnrj~�ljpw�jw|pj�lwojrsoq~j�os~~l|jwun�l�

�Æ��� ���������

�� ��

¦Ç̈º́·ª²̄®Ã ¦Ç̈º́·ª²̄®Ã
jjjj jjjj
¦È̄΅ª®°«́·³®«·́°«ª̈ª¹®Ã ¦È̄΅ª®°«́·³®«·́°«ª̈ª¹®Ã

















































 Draft minutes 02-20-2018 
Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE OWOSSO ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

CITY OF OWOSSO 
FEBRUARY 20, 2018 AT 9:30 A.M. 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Randy Horton at 9:30 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:  Was taken by Tanya Buckelew. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairman Randy Horton, Vice-Chairman Christopher Eveleth, Secretary Daniel 
Jozwiak, Alternates Matt Grubb and John Horvath 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Board Members Tom Taylor and Kent Telesz. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:   Ms. Susan Montenegro, Assistant City Manager and Director of Community 
Development; Mark Agnew, Agnew Graphics. 
 
AGENDA:  IT WAS MOVED BY SECRETARY JOZWIAK AND SUPPORTED BY VICE-CHAIRMAN 
EVELETH TO APPROVE THE AGENDA FOR THE FEBRUARY 20, 2018 REGULAR MEETING AS 
PRESENTED. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MINUTES:  IT WAS MOVED BY SECRETARY JOZWIAK AND SUPPORTED BY ALTERNATE 
HORVATH TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 21, 2017 AS PRESENTED. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Staff memorandum        
2. ZBA minutes from November 21, 2017      
3. Variance application – 640 N Shiawassee 
4. Public notice – 640 N Shiawassee 

 
COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENTS:  None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:    

1. 640 N SHIAWASSEE  – VARIANCE – (RESOLUTION) 
 
Ms. Montenegro stated only 1 comment was received from a neighbor on Pine St. that stated was in favor 
of this variance request. 
 
 1.   VARIANCE REQUEST – 640 N SHIAWASSEE 
 
Mark Agnew, Owner of Agnew Graphics, presented the history of the sign that was installed 18 years 
ago, at which time met the 5’ setback requirement.  Since then MDOT has widened Shiawassee St. two 
times and City of Owosso recently revised the Sign Ordinance requiring a 10’ setback. 
 
The current sign is 47 square feet; with the new sign proposed is 53 square feet.  The sign base was 
installed 18 years ago to meet any future upgrades of the sign, including a larger sign, as the base was 
constructed to sustain additional weight.   
 
Mr. Agnew also noted there are 31 signs on M-21 that would not meet the revised 10’ setback.  If the 
businesses wanted to upgrade their signs, it would involve either a ZBA Variance or move the sign back 
10’ which in most cases would be in driveway, parking areas. 
 
AT THIS TIME, CHAIRMAN HORTON OPENED THE PUBLIC HEARING.  NO ONE SPOKE. 
 



 Draft minutes 02-20-2018 
Page 2 of 3 

UPON MOTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN EVELETH, SECONDED BY ALTERNATE GRUBB, THE 
PETITION FOR VARIANCE AS APPLIED FOR IS APPROVED AS ALL OF THE FACTS OF FINDING 
WERE MET AS WELL AS ONE OF THE SPECIAL CONDITIONS AS LISTED BELOW. 
 

A. This is a request for a use variance subject to Section 38-504(3) of the Zoning Ordinance. The 
applicant must show that a variance meets ALL of the factors expressed in Section 38-504(3) a. 
1-9. in order for the variance to be granted. 

 
Factor 1: (Section 38-504(3) a.1.) “Will not be contrary to the public interest or to the intent and 
purpose of this chapter.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.1.has been met. 

 
Factor 2: (Section 38-504(3) a.2.) “Shall not permit the establishment within a district of any use 
which is not permitted by right within that zone district, or any use or dimensional variance for 
which a conditional use permit or a temporary use permit is required.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.2. has been met. 

 
Factor 3: (Section 38-504(3) a.3.) “Is one that is unique and not shared with other property 
owners.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.3. has been met due to MDOT has widened  

Shiawassee St. /M-52 two times in the last 18 years. 
 

Factor 4: (Section 38-504(3) a.4.) “Will relate only to property that is under control of the 
applicant.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.4. has been met. 

 
Factor 5: (Section 38-504(3) a.5.) “Is applicable whether compliance with the strict letter of the 
restrictions governing area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would unreasonably 
prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose or would render conformity 
with such restrictions unnecessarily burdensome.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.5. has been met. 

 
Factor 6: (Section 38-504(3) a.6.) “Was not created by action of the applicant (i.e., that it was 
not self-created.) 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.6 has been met for the following reasons:   

The request is not self-created, but rather created by MDOT widening Shiawassee St. /M-52 two times in 
the last 18 years causing additional hardship. 

 
Factor 7: (Section 38-504(3) a.7.) “Will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent 
property or unreasonably increase the congestion of public streets or increase the danger of fire 
or endanger the public safety.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.7. has been met. 

 
Factor 8: (Section 38-504(3) a.8.) “Will not cause a substantial adverse effect upon property 
values in the immediate vicinity or in the district in which the property of the applicant is located.” 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.8. has been met. 

 
Factor 9: (Section 38-504(3) a.9.) “Is applicable whether a grant of the variance applied for 
would do substantial justice to the applicant as well as to other property owners in the area, or 
whether a lesser relaxation than that applied fro would give substantial relief to the owner of the 
property involved and be more consistent with justice to other property owners.” 



 Draft minutes 02-20-2018 
Page 3 of 3 

 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) a.9.  has been met:   

 
B. Special Conditions.  When all of the foregoing basic conditions can be satisfied, a variance may 

be granted when any one (1) of the following special conditions can be clearly demonstrated: 
 
 1. “Where there are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships which prevent 

carrying out the strict letter of this chapter.  These hardships or difficulties shall 
not be deemed economic, but shall be evaluated in terms of the use of a 
particular parcel of land.” 

   
 2. “Where there are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or physical 

conditions such as narrowness, shallowness, shape, or topography of the 
property involved, or to the intended use of the property, that do not generally 
apply to other property or uses in the same zoning district.” 

 
 3. “Where such variation is necessary for the preservation of a substantial property 

right possessed by other properties in the same zoning district.” 
 
The Board finds that Section 38-504(3) b.1. has been met due to MDOT widening Shiawassee St. 
/M-52 two times in the last 18 years, therefore reducing the setbacks. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN: 
AYES:   VICE-CHAIRMAN EVELETH, ALTERNATE GRUBB, ALTERNATE HORVATH, 

SECRETARY JOZWIAK, CHAIRMAN HORTON. 
NAYS:   NONE. 
ABSENT:   BOARD MEMBERS TAYLOR AND TELESZ. 

 
ZBA recommends to the Planning Commission to review the current Sign Ordinance and the 
setback requirements. 

 
 

BUSINESS ITEMS: None 
 
COMMISSIONER/PUBLIC COMMENTS:   None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
MOTION BY ALTERNATE HORVATH AND SUPPORTED BY VICE-CHAIRMAN EVELETH TO 
ADJOURN AT 9:55 A.M. UNTIL THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING ON TUESDAY, 
MARCH 20, 2018, IF ANY REQUESTS ARE RECEIVED. 
YEAS: ALL.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
      ____________________________________ 
       Dan Jozwiak, Secretary  
 
 


	AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	180220CouncilMinutes

	PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	1. SpecialAssessmentDistrictNo2018-02
	2. SpecialAssessmentDistrictNo2018-03

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	CITY MANAGER REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. SpecialAssessmentDistrictNo2018-09
	2. ContractAmendment-AddendumNo1-2017TallGrassMowingProgram
	3. ProfessionalServicesAgreementAddendumNo1-GeneralEngineeringServices-EngInc
	4. ProfessionalServicesAgreement-DowntownFacadeImprovements

	ITEMS OF BUSINESS
	COMMUNICATIONS
	1. ZBAMinutes-180220

	CITIZEN COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS
	NEXT MEETING
	BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OPENINGS
	ADJOURNMENT



